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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. NI Shili

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang

Supervisors

Mrs. GU Meijun
Mr. SONG Dapeng
Mr. ZHANG Zhuanggqiu

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Registered office and principal place of business
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

1 Weigao Road

Torch Hi-tech Science Park
Weihai

Shandong Province

PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

29/F Two Chinachem Central
26 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Company secretary

Ms. WONG Miu Ling, Phillis, FCG and HKFCG

Compliance officer

Mr. LONG Jing

EFRES
BITESE

RS (2/E)

& Qi E (ITEAE )
EaRSE
Rt F A £

FHTES

HIEMRTE (F/F/F)
B e &

BIFRITESE

FEfESLE
&AL L
FkE

BEE

BEBEUL
KA
SRR ST
[ATREH

REARLME (THE) EMNEER
FESEMES

it
dtms

gEH

WIE B E L RE
&= B 155

ERTESEMES

i)

fBEmiE 265,
ER AR OIEA2918

[EME

B IE T TFCGRHKFCG

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

' LERSERRESH TRIBMERAT 2022 £



Audit Committee
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Mr. LI Guohui
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Authorised representatives

Mr. LONG Jing
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Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong share registrars and transfer office
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17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre
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Hong Kong

Principal bankers

1. Agriculture Bank of China, Weihai Branch
2.  Bank of China, Weihai Branch

Website of the Company
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ASIEN

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL
POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products, blood management products, and operates
financing business.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into six operating divisions — medical device
products, orthopaedic products, interventional products,
pharma packaging products, blood management products
and others, among which interventional products were
produced by Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc. (“Argon”).
These divisions are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker (Managing Director) in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Medical device
products

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

Orthopaedic — production and sale of orthopaedic

products products
Interventional — production and sale of tumour
products and blood vessel interventional

instruments

Pharma packaging— production and sale of pre-filled

products syringes and flushing syringes
Blood — production and sale of blood
management collection, irradiation, storage,
products separation and sterilization products
Others — finance lease and factoring business
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CORPORATE PROFILE

AR
Revenue Breakdown Y A BR4H
% of sales
HEML
Sale of medical device products
HEBBRBIWER
® - Clinical care FRFREE 34.7%
P Anesthesia_and surgical related products
i BE 2 T AE A 2 G 4.5%
® - Medical testing B2 22153 2.4%
® - Other consumables E 44 7.2%
© Sale of orthopaedic products & FHER 13.4%
Sale of interventional products $H& Y AE M 14.2%
Sale of pharma packaging products
HEEZMEOREM 15.5%
Sale of blood management products
HEMEEEEmMR 8.1%
Segment Profit Breakdown S &R FUBA AR
% of segment
_ >go_22_ gprofit
— ¥ D EB AN G L
| ® Medical device products E&E S E R 40.7%
@® Orthopaedic products B E MR 18.0%
® Interventional products 7T AE & 4.6%
® Pharma packaging products &R 8EER 28.1%
©® Blood management products Mi&EIEE R 6.6%
Others Hft! 2.0%
Segmental revenues (RMB’000)
FEBEA (AREF T
2022 2021 % Change
—E-C —ZT—F  @HAEoL
Sale of medical device products HEBEIME R
Clinical care B PR o 18 4,726,552 4,632,034 2.0%
Anesthesia and surgical related products  FREE K F #7485 = & 615,596 660,016 (6.7%)
Medical testing B2 325,680 294,833 10.5%
Other consumables HMFEM 979,131 705,304 38.8%
Sale of orthopaedic products HE B ZE D 1,830,419 2,126,594 (13.9%)
Sale of interventional products HENAESR 1,938,237 1,772,944 9.3%
Sale of pharma packaging products HEERTEER 2,105,432 2,040,355 3.2%
Sale of blood management products HEMREEEM 1,097,960 976,862 12.4%

13,619,007 13,208,942




CORPORATE PROFILE

NEIRENT
Geographic breakdown 3h & B 4H
2022
- % of sales
SHE L L
® PRC [ 76.8%
@® United States =H 9.3%
® Asia T 6.8%
® EMEA BUN -~ FER R IEM 4.1%
Others E 2.9%
2021
= _ﬂi % of sales
SHE ML L
® PRC P 79.9%
@® United States =E 8.7%
® Asia T2 5.3%
©  EMEA BUM -~ R IENM 3.8%
Others E1th 2.3%
Segmental revenues (RMB’'000)
FHBBWA (ARETT)
2022 2021 % Change
—E=-= —E— #SEEDL
PRC [ 10,453,877 10,552,660 (0.9%)
United States ESE 1,272,330 1,145,923 11.0%
Asia =D 930,581 701,240 32.7%
EMEA B ~ AR ER R FE M 563,217 501,919 12.2%
Others Hith 399,002 307,200 29.9%

13,619,007 13,208,942
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CORPORATE PROFILE

AN
FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE
Increase
2022 2021 (decrease)
g EBEZ—f #BEGED
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARBFTRT ABEBTT
Turnover EER 13,619,007 13,208,942 3.1%
Gross profit EAF] 7,113,082 7,352,893 (3.3%)
Net profit attributable to the owners KRBV B AL ATF]
of the Company 2,723,309 2,275,929 19.7%
Net profit attributable to the owners RET R HRIEEARE]
of the Company (excluding B AFEL AR
extraordinary items) 2,742,668 2,407,853 13.9%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”),
extraordinary items include Shandong Weigao Blood
Purification Products Co., Ltd. issued new shares to
investors, and the Company's equity was diluted from
28.0871% to 26.55%, resulting in a gain of approximately
RMB100,398,000. The Company recorded a post-tax gain
of approximately RMB57,549,000 regarding the taking up
by the government of the using rights of 2 state-owned
construction sites and the buildings, structures, and other
ancillary facilities thereon; and the post-tax expenses of
litigation attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMB177,306,000 (extraordinary items in
2021: the post-tax provision for expenses of one pending
litigation attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB163,075,000).
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ANE#57,549,0007T ; AR B HEE
ANEH—BHFRZREERHOARE
177,306,00070 (ZZ - —F4%1EE .
RABHEE ANEE—BRRFRZRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Attending and Voting in the Annual General
Meeting

In order to determine the shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting to be dated
Monday, 29 May 2023 (the "Annual General Meeting”),
the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 23 May 2023 to Monday, 29 May 2023
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of H
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and
voting in the Annual General Meeting, Shareholders should
ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
H Share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at 17th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m., Monday, 22 May 2023.
In order to qualify for attending and voting in the Annual
General Meeting:—

Latest time to lodge in transfer
instrument accompanied
by the share certificates for
HShares. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ........ 4:30 p.m.,
Monday, 22 May 2023

Closure of register of
members of the Company for
attending and voting in the
Annual General Meeting . .. ... .. Tuesday, 23 May 2023
to Monday, 29 May 2023

Date of
Annual General Meeting . .. ... .. Monday, 29 May 2023
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Entitlement of Proposed Final dividend

In order to determine entitlement to the proposed final
dividend payment, the register of members of the Company
for H Shares will be closed from Saturday, 3 June 2023 to
Thursday, 8 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of H Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for entitlement of the proposed final dividend,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company's H Share registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 2 June 2023.

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022:-

Latest time to lodge in transfer
instrument accompanied
by the share certificates for
HShares. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... ........ 4:30 p.m.,
Friday, 2 June 2023

Closure of register of
members of the Company for
entitlement of the final dividend
for the year ended
31 December 2022 .. ..... ... Saturday, 3 June 2023 to
Thursday, 8 June 2023

Record date of the entitlement of
the final dividend . ... ... ... ... Thursday, 8 June 2023

Expected dispatch date of
the final dividend ... ......... ... Friday, 14 July 2023

The final dividend will be despatched at the risk of those
entitled thereto to their respective registered addresses on or
before Friday, 14 July 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ITHEBREE

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 of RMB0.079 (2021:
RMBO0.065) (before considering any tax effect) per share
totaling RMB361,080,000 (2021: RMB297,091,000),
which will be subject to the approval of shareholders of
the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The final
dividend will be denominated and declared in Renminbi.
Final dividend on non-listed shares of the Company, for full
circulation H Shareholders and for investors investing in the
H shares of the Company through Shanghai-Hong Kong
Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (the
“Southbound Trading”) will be paid in Renminbi, and the
final dividend for other H Shareholders of the Company
will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate for
the final dividend to be paid in Hong Kong dollars will be
the mean of the exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China during
the five business days preceding the date of approval of the
final dividend at the Annual General Meeting. The Company
will appoint a receiving agent in Hong Kong and Mainland
China respectively and will pay to such receiving agent the
final dividend (after deductions of relevant tax, if applicable)
declared for payment to Shareholders. The final dividend will
be paid by the receiving agent on or before Friday, 14 July
2023. The cheques will be despatched to H Shareholders by
ordinary post at their own risks. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Group’'s various achievements as mentioned above
are attributable to the continued supports of the staff,
customers and business partners and shareholders. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks for all your contributions!

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing

Chairman
28 April 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPTIMISATION OF PRODUCT MIX

During the Year, the gross profit margin of the Group
decreased from 55.7% of last year to 52.2%, which was
mainly attributable to the effect from change of product
structure.

The existing major products of the Group under each
business line are as follows:

e  (Clinical care business includes vascular and non-
vascular access infusion devices including infusion
sets, syringes, puncture needles, specialized single-use
clinical collection kits, digital products for clinical care,
digestive nutrition, primary care products

e  The anesthesia and surgery business includes general
anesthesia consumables, local anesthesia consumables,
anesthesia auxiliary consumables, ICU equipment, open
and minimally invasive surgical equipment, wound
healing dressings, wound suture, wound cleaning, and
nonvascular catheter supporting extracorporeal devices

e The medical testing business includes blood collection
devices and blood glucose testing

e The orthopaedic business includes trauma, spinal
implant, artificial joints, sports injury, soft tissue
repair, reconstruction implant, orthopaedic filling, and
orthopaedic related surgical tools

° Interventional business includes tumor intervention,
vascular intervention, and interventional imaging

e The pharmaceutical packaging business includes
prefilled syringes and pre-filled flush syringes

e The blood management business includes blood
collection, storage, separation, and sterilization of
consumables and equipment
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

OPTIMISATION OF PRODUCT MIX (continued)

1. During the Year, the clinical care business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB4,726,552,000, an
increase of 2.0% over last year. With an enhanced
product mix, it has compensated for the reduced
demand due to the restricted clinical business opening
affected by COVID-19. The Group continued to
maintain a dominant position in the market segment.

2. During the Year, the orthopaedic business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,830,419,000,
representing a decrease of 13.9% over last year.

3. During the Year, the interventional business recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB1,938,237,000,
representing an increase of 9.3% over last year, which
was mainly attributable to the significant growth in the
sales of Argon. The sales of Argon products in the PRC
market achieved remarkable progress.

4. During the Year, the pharma packaging
business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB2,105,432,000, representing an increase of 3.2%
over last year, further expanded its market influence in
the segment of pre-pack bio-pharmaceuticals and built
a broad customer base.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group obtained
123 new patents and 171 new patents are under the
application in the PRC. Product registration certificates for 60
new products were obtained. The research and development
for 63 products were completed for which applications
for product registration certificates are underway. For the
overseas market, 14 new patents are under application
and the research and development for 161 products were
completed for which application for product registration
certificates are underway.

The strategy of placing a strong emphasis on research and
development has enhanced the competitiveness and laid a
foundation for the Company to fully leverage its customer
resources and provided the Group with new profit growth
drivers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
over 650 product registration certificates and 800 patents,
of which 103 were patents on invention, in the PRC. For
the overseas market, the Group had over 760 product
registration certificates and 189 patents.

In view of the need for strategic adjustments to the product
mix, the Group continued to increase efforts on the
improvement and subdivision of product layout in existing
products series, so as to maintain its leading position in
research and development capability in China. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, total research and development
expenses amounted to approximately RMB546,552,000
(2021: approximately RMB503,080,000), representing 4.0%
(2021: 3.8%) of the revenue of the Group.

PRODUCTION

During the Year, in order to constantly expand production
capacity, the Group continued to expand its production
facilities including factories of generic supplies and pharma
packaging products to satisfy the sales demand for future
market growth. Meanwhile, the Group proactively promoted
the improvement of production processes and enhanced
intellectualization and automation of production equipment.
The production costs were reduced through efficiency
enhancement and scientific management, maintaining the
Company's overall profitability.

SALES AND MARKETING

During the Year, the Group consolidated the marketing
management system and further adhered to the strategy of
sales channel integration and product mix adjustment and
focused on marketing resources on customer development
and maintenance in the core healthcare market. The
Group achieved substantial results in key client accounts
management. As of the date of this announcement,
the Group newly added 486 hospitals, 18 other medical
institutions, and 617 distributors to its PRC customer
base, and the Group has a PRC customer base of 9,103 in
aggregate (including 3,601 hospitals, 414 blood stations,
1,119 other medical units, and 3,969 distributors) and an
overseas customer base of 7,354 in aggregate (including
3,595 hospitals, 1,683 other medical units, and 2,076
distributors).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEES A

SALES AND MARKETING (continued)

Sales comparison by geographical regions when compared

SHERTBISHE @

KEBEMmEAFMEEERXFHL

with the last year is set out as follows: mr
Turnover by Geographical Information EXRAMEEH
Increase or
decrease over
corresponding
2022 2021 period %
g TECT—F REHLE%
Regions HE RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR®TT
The PRC Eil
— Eastern and Central —EFEREEAR 5,227,412 5,220,106 0.1%
— Northern —#Z4b 2,215,310 2,330,107 (4.9%)
— Southern —EEF 1,036,647 960,984 7.9%
— Northeast —&db 991,513 938,403 5.7%
- Southwest —78F 731,899 857,764 (14.7%)
— Northwest —7adb 251,096 245,296 2.4%
PRC sub-total BRI 10,453,877 10,552,660 (0.9%)
Overseas NEPAN
- USA — X 1,272,330 1,145,923 11.0%
— Asia — o 930,581 701,240 32.7%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa —BUM ~ R ER K FEM 563,217 501,919 12.2%
— Others —Hfh 399,002 307,200 29.9%
Overseas sub-total BENINET 3,165,130 2,656,282 19.2%
Total Wt 13,619,007 13,208,942 3.1%

The integration of sales channels has strengthened
the Group’s market penetration and influence over the
customers. It enhanced sales contribution per customer and
continued to drive up the product penetration to high-end
customers and was an important approach in generating

revenue growth for the Group.

RENEG BB T AEEEEFHN
BBENREI RS
KOoFEEERLERNERZEX
EAEBANHRAERN —BEEZT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEmAEDN

SALES AND MARKETING (continued) HERTIGEER @
Turnover by Geographical Information (continued) SEWAMEER (&)

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor in ~ ERAEENBAERARAERNEENS —
enhancing the results for the Year. Comparison of revenue of BEZERZ ZFTEERWALLEH
principal products with that in last year is as follows: EEERa T -

For the six months ended 31

For the year ended 31 December December
HE+-B=1t-HLEE BE+-B=+—-HLA~EB
Over Over
corresponding corresponding
Product category EmER 2022 2021 period 2022 2021 period
ZB-CE T -fF R —B-ZE —“T--F KEH
RMB'000  RMB'000 %  RMB'000  RMB'000 %
AEEFR AR®TR AEBTR ARETH
Clinical care BRRERE 4,726,552 4,632,034 20% 2,392,562 2,481,391 (3.6%)
Pharma packaging products Enai 2,105,432 2,040,355 32% 1,049,258 1,082,632 (3.1%)
Blood management nKER 1,097,960 976,862 124% 608,477 527,017 15.5%
Medical testing B2k 325680 294,833 105% 164,454 168,878 (2.6%)
Anesthesia and surgical TR EE B F 1l
related products 615596 660,016 (6.7%) 225,635 345,545 (34.7%)
Orthopaedic products BHEm 1,830,419 2,126,594 (13.9%) 739,503 1,042,149 (29.0%)
Interventional products NAEm 1,938,237 1,772,944 93% 1,045,271 907,556 15.2%
Other consumables Hitem 979,131 705,304 388% 382,316 378,084 1.1%
Total e 13,619,007 13,208,942 31% 6,607,476 6,933,252 (4.7%)
HUMAN RESOURCES ADER

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of W ZE__&#+_HB=+—H '&x&EH
12,122 employees. The breakdown by departments when — HEEM12,122%EE » BAF LB
compared with last year is as follows: PIpMran T :




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

DEPARTMENT 2B F3
2022 2021
—E=-C BT —F
Production HE 6,281 5,589
Sales and marketing HERMIZHEE 2,896 2,846
Research and development bt 8% 1,272 1,229
Finance and administration 75 /AT 596 551
Quality control g2 607 519
Management =P 383 308
Purchasing ®EE 87 81
Total w5 12,122 11,123

There are a total of 1,258 overseas employees who are
resided in Hong Kong, USA and Europe. Other employees
of the Group are resided in Mainland China. During the
Year, the total cost of salaries, welfare and social benefits of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB2,178,787,000
(2021: approximately RMB2,068,103,000).

REMUNERATION SYSTEM

The Group's remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local consumption
power and competition in human resources market. The
remuneration policy so determined has become the basis
of determining the salary level of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of directors is proposed
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the directors and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of directors is proposed by the Board subject
to approval by shareholders at forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BIMEEN,258% D RIREB EE
BNEHEF AEENHEMES SN
PRHERt e ER REBEETHE
BRI ERESNRAEENLAR
#%2,178,787,000c (ZE—_—F 1 895
AR #2,068,103,0007T) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a turnover for the year of approximately
RMB13,619,007,000, representing an increase of
3.1% over the previous financial year. Net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately RMB2,723,309,000 (2021: approximately
RMB2,275,929,000), representing an increase
of approximately 19.7% as compared with the
previous year. Net profit attributable to the owners
of the Company (excluding extraordinary items) was
approximately RMB2,742,668,000 (2021: approximately
RMB2,407,853,000 without taking into account of the
restatements due to business combination under common
control), representing an increase of approximately 13.9%
over the previous year.

EIEET st
A1 %5 [o] BE
BHE_ZT_—_#+-B=+—H

TEE FEEXHEEZTNAR
13,619,007,00070 R E—HEEE
WMET3 1% KR BHEE AELALF]
M ANR12,723,309,00070 (Z B = —
F I ARM2,275,929,0007T) 0 &
F—FE EFAHLN19.7% c Feti5%IE
BENARBERE AEBHAFNOARTE
2,742,668,00070 (ZE - —F AL EER
ﬁfﬁﬂ?’“%JTE’]%?&AﬁFﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬂ
2% 89 AR 52,407,853,0007T) » & £
—FEE EF£13.9%-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY B E
Increase
2022 2021 (decrease)
-z 2% ®BEGED
RMB’'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTR AR®TT
Turnover =L 13,619,007 13,208,942 3.1%
Gross profit EF 7,113,082 7,352,893 (3.3%)
Net profit attributable to the ZN/NESIEZ = N
owners of the Company ol 2,723,309 2,275,929 19.7%
Net profit attributable to the RN HFHRBEARR
owners of the Company A ALY @%'
(excluding extraordinary items) 2,742,668 2,407,853 13.9%

During the Year, extraordinary items include Shandong
Weigao Blood Purification Products Co., Ltd. issued
new shares to investors, and the Company's equity was
diluted from 28.0871% to 26.55%, resulting in a gain of
approximately RMB100,398,000. The Company recorded a
post-tax gain of approximately RMB57,549,000 regarding
the taking up by the government of the using rights
of 2 state-owned construction sites and the buildings,
structures, and other ancillary facilities thereon; and the
post-tax expenses of litigation attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB177,306,000 (extraordinary
items in 2021: the post-tax provision for expenses of one
pending litigation attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB163,075,000).

FRNEHIBEBEALERSMREFICE
uuﬁzfﬁﬁﬁﬁ NBEEREELZTHR A
NEIZBEHER28.0871%E B E26.55%

T2 B U

549 AR 1100,398,0007T ;

JRF U [B]2 51 B & %2 5% P {68 AR A8 Ko i |
BEEY BEYREMMEBRE &~ A
AR ERBEREL ARKES7,549,000
T RARABEE NEE—IBRFAZR
BERHNARKE177,306,00070 (Z =
" —ERREBEE  ARBEAE AEWN
—HEHRAFDRZREBREBARKE
163,075,0007T) ©
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position. As
of 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and bank balance
amounted to approximately RMB6,862,278,000. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the net cash flow from
operating activities of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,214,574,000, representing a sound cash flow position.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total interest
expenses of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB191,401,000 (2021: total interest expenses of
approximately RMB140,441,000).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group as of the end of 2022
reduced to 20.1% (2021: 20.9%).

As of 31 December 2022, the total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,504,281,000 (2021: net
cash of approximately RMB2,641,464,000). The gearing
ratio represents total debt as a percentage of total capital.
Total debt is calculated as total borrowings. Total capital is
calculated as the Group’s shareholders’ fund.

RBEERMBER

AREEBRAFEHEFTRENTHER
MW _E__F+-_B=+—H"
AEBRSABETERNAARE
6,862,278,000Tc B E _ T _F+—
B=+—HIEFE  KREEKETEIR
ERBFEHNAANRM2,214,574,000
T IRERERTREBT

BHE_ ST _—_#+”"_B=+—HILH#F
B AERMNA B BEELYA AR
191,401,0007¢ (Z&E - —%F : f| B H
4aEEL A AR 1140,441,0007T) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group’s purchases and sales are mainly conducted
in the PRC and the United States. Assets, liabilities, and
transactions in the PRC are denominated in RMB, while
overseas assets and transactions are mainly denominated
in US dollars. Foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
outstanding borrowings denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group has adopted foreign currency hedging
instruments to achieve better foreign exchange risk
management. The objective of the hedge is to minimise the
volatility of the RMB expenditures expected to be incurred
in the future to meet foreign currency liabilities. The Group’s
risk management policy is to partially hedge the forecasted
cash flows in foreign currencies by considering the
appropriate hedging instruments and costs of hedging. The
Group uses foreign exchange structured derivative financial
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not encountered
any material difficulty due to the fluctuation in exchange
rates nor had it affected its funds for operation purposes.

Due to the fluctuation in exchange rates, the Company
realised a foreign exchange gain equivalent to approximately
RMB138,325,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: foreign exchange loss equivalent to approximately
RMB39,357,000).

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS

1. During the Year, the Group continued to invest
approximately RMB1,069,636,000 in the purchase
of properties and production facilities and plant
construction for the purpose of enhancing the overall
construction of the industrial zone for the Group’s
medical consumables.

2. During the Year, the Group bought the 100%
equity interest in Weihai Weigao Medical Materials
Company Limited held by Weigao Holding Company
Ltd. at a consideration of RMB288,000,000. It is
principally engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sales of infection protection
products.
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS/FUTURE
MATERIAL INVESTMENT PLANS (continued)

3. The Group planned to invest RMB770,000,000 to
acquire the 38.5% interest in the Songyuan Healthcare
Industry Fund (fRR{EEEEEZEEE), which focuses
on the investments in the medical and healthcare sector
mainly covering medical devices, bio-pharmaceuticals,
medical services and rehabilitation and elderly care,
of which a total of RMB308,000,000 has been
contributed.

4. In 2023, the Group planned to invest approximately
RMB200,000,000 in the new production lines, which is
expected to be successively put in operation by 2025.

5. In 2023, the Group planned to further invest
approximately RMB198,000,000 in the upgrading and
reconfiguration of the single-use consumables and
orthopaedic consumables equipment to further enhance
the level of production automation.

6. In January 2023, Weigao Orthopaedic, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement to acquire
100% equity interest in Shandong Weigao Newlife
Medical Device Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the
Company, which is principally engaged in the research
and development, manufacture and sale of tissue repair
product lines, at a consideration of RMB1,030,000,000.
The transfer price is payable in instalments, with an
estimated payment of RMB721,000,000 in 2023.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no future plans involving significant
investments or capital assets acquisition as of 31 December
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2022, the capital commitment
including acquisition, investment, and purchase of
property, plant and equipment which the Group and the
Company had contracted for but not provided amounted
to approximately RMB1,299,231,000 (2021: approximately
RMB1,113,104,000). The above amounts will be financed by
the internal resources of the Group.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, pledged/restricted bank balances
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure trade
facilities such as bills payable and letter of credit and short-
term borrowing amounting to RMB694,084,000 (2021:
RMB760,895,000). The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged the equity
interest in Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company Ltd.,
Shandong Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Financing
Lease Co., Ltd. wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group, as
well as the property and plant with a total carrying value of
approximately RMB627,948,000 of the Company to obtain
long-term borrowings and green bonds from International
Finance Corporation.

The lease financing company pledged finance lease
receivables of approximately RMB17,100,000 (2021: nil) to
secure bank facilities.

The Group had pledged bills receivable of RMB107,611,000
(2021: RMB54,188,000) to secure the letter of credit.

As of 31 December 2022, the loan principal of Argon
amounted to US$340,598,000, which was secured by a
security package of 100% equity interest in Argon and its
subsidiaries as well as the property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories, trade receivables, cash and
bank balances of Argon. In the meantime, the Company
provided a guarantee for Argon.
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2022, the total reserves of the
Group amounted to RMB21,211,874,000 (2021:
RMB18,949,583,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to Hong Kong's generally accepted accounting principles.
As of 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB8,315,208,000 (2021:
RMBS,220,181,000).

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2022 has been a challenging year. Changes in the COVID-19
pandemic situation, macro-environment and international
landscape have presented new challenges as well as new
requirements for the industry and our Company.

In connection with the pandemic, the structure and volume
of the consultation and treatment services of domestic
hospitals were subject to substantial fluctuations, while
the supply chain was also under considerable pressure. The
Company assisted and complemented medical institutions
and downstream partners with persistent efforts to ensure
the supply of materials and minimize any adverse impact.

From November to December 2022, domestic anti-
epidemic control measures were gradually being lifted until
full relaxation. The number of patients seeking medical
consultation and hospitalized patients registered by the
pulmonary departments of hospitals rose substantially,
resulting in higher hospital demands for certain care
products on the one hand, but affecting the sales of certain
products for elective treatments (orthopaedic consumables
in particular) on the other, thereby affecting the provision of
commodities and revenue collection from sales channels at
the end of the year.

The national healthcare reform policies continued to be
advanced in full implementation, as initiatives such as
medical insurance negotiations, centralised pharmaceutical
procurement, volume-based procurements of high-value
consumables and DRGs/DIP, among others, continued to
produce a profound impact on the medical industry. The
volume-based procurement of consumables, in particular,
has presented some challenges for the Company in the
short term, although in the long run it represents enormous
opportunities for development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the clinical care segment, the volume-based procurement
of different products by various provinces will continue to
be advanced. Leveraging its prolific product portfolio and
extensive market coverage, the Company boasted strong
capabilities to counter risks. The Company conducted
comprehensive estimations on industry policies and
established its business presence in advance in active
response. Through various means such as the upgrading and
updating of products, sound cost control and expansion of
the mass market, the Company has seized opportunities to
expand its market share and enhance its competitiveness in
the industry.

As an industry leader in the clinical care sector, the Company
is committed to providing assistance to various types of
medical institutions with a view to elevating the overall
medical management quality and standards of the clinical
care sector in China. On top of its existing infusion products,
the Company has continued to expand and enrich its product
portfolio in specialist care sectors such as anesthetics,
pulmonology and urology, among others.

The digitalised clinical care products launched by the
Company have successively undergone trial application,
installation and online connection at the wards of major
hospitals to help care departments to enhance the regulation
and standardization of clinical care and alleviating the
magnitude of the duties of medical staff as well as staff cost,
while substantially reducing or avoiding medical incidents.
Such products have been widely commended and welcomed
by hospitals and medical personnel. We believe that
digitalised clinical care products hold out immense market
prospects while being capable of promoting sales of clinical
care consumables, generating social benefits that are even
greater than their economic benefits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

In the orthopaedic business, new prices were successively
implemented after the completion of nationwide and
regional centralised procurement of joint, trauma and other
products. The nationwide volume-based procurement of
spine products has also been completed and the signing
of tripartite agreements were completed nationwide in
accordance with requirements. We are glad to note that
the policy for volume-based procurement has become more
reasonable requiring prices cuts by more moderate margins
with due regard for manufacturing companies’ ability to
pursue sustainable development and invest in innovation.
This is conducive to the expansion of market shares held by
industry leaders and enhancement of the industry's drive for
innovation.

In the pharmaceutical packaging business, the Company’s
market position has been further reinforced. The Company
has continued to increase its production capacity to enhance
its ability to serve downstream pharmaceutical manufacturers
and strengthen customer loyalty. In particular, we track and
provide premium services to these enterprises at the early
stage of R&D. The Company will further seize opportunities
presented by the following: faster approval for R&D of
domestic innovative pharmaceutical enterprise; enhanced
overseas competitiveness of domestic manufacturers of drug
preparations; and upgrades in pharmaceutical packaging.
In addition, the Company will focus on the development
of international customers and seize opportunities in the
overseas market to increase its global market shares.

The government has continued to encourage innovation in
medical devices. As the R&D and approval of new products
sped up, enterprises engaged in innovative medical devices
have showcased vigour as rarely seen before. Changes in the
economic cycle have also presented numerous challenges
to some startup enterprises. Seizing this opportunity, the
Company has increased investment in and accelerated
the progress of in-house R&D. Meanwhile, we have been
engaged in strategic engagement and cooperation with such
innovative startups to accelerate the introduction and market
access of new products. The Company has stepped up with
the improvement of its product portfolios to address changes
of the times.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

The Company has continued to improve and enhance
corporate governance and promote strategies on sustainable
development to facilitate long-term and high-quality
development. The Company highlights responsible operation
and meets public demands for medical products with high-
quality products. The Company emphasises the green
development concept and implements concepts, goals and
initiatives in relation to energy conservation and emission
reduction in production and operation. During the year, the
Company tapped the hospital energy management sector
with the establishment of fH/E8EJR, with the aiming of
assisting in energy informatisation at medical institutions in
order to save energy, reduce consumption and lower carbon
emission.

As a leading domestic platform-based medical devices
company, the Company enjoys significant competitiveness in
the following aspects:

1) Outstanding corporate culture and distinguished market
reputation and brand influence.

The Company always practices the corporate culture
of conscience, honesty and loyalty to meet clinical
demands. With strong end-user demand in the market,
the implementation of volume-based procurements
and efficiency improvement in the industrial chain
for medical devices and consumables have put the
Company in a highly favourable position to rapidly
expand its market share and enhance its position and
influence in the industry.

2) Advantage of an Open, inclusive and shared platform

The Company promotes the coordination and
cooperation and sharing of resources among various
segments to fully motivate the flexibility and vigour of
all segments. Through strategic review, the Company
actively cultivates and deploys in new business
segments to build them into new growth points.
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MANAQEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIR B smE DT

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

3)  Solid manufacturing foundations.

The Company enjoys distinct advantages in automation,
materials science, cost control, capacity layout and
quality control and fully meets the requirements of
volume-based procurements on price and quality. The
Company will continue to improve the standard of
digital management in production and manufacturing
and actively deploy in new materials, new technologies
and new processes to maintain and enhance the
competitiveness of its manufacturing business.

4)  Customer resources and channel coverage.

Thanks to diligent efforts over the years, the Company
has developed a distinguished marketing system
catered to the PRC market, featuring in particular
a large, comprehensive network for direct sales
to hospitals. Through further integration of sales
channels, its advantage in channels has been enhanced.
The Company has continued to step up with the
improvement of product portfolios through R&D,
product cooperation with domestic and foreign parties
and M&As to bring into full play and “cash” in on its
channel strengths.

The Company formulates development strategies and
medium and long-term development plans on a rolling
basis. Taking into account changes in industry policies
and the competitive landscape, clinical requirements and
the accumulation of internal resources, the Company has
proposed a three-pronged operational strategy of “platform-
based”, "internationalised” and “digitalised” development
and a dual assurance strategies underpinned by “talents”
and “innovation”. Under the “platform-based” operational
strategy, the Company’'s vision is to become an overall
solution provider for medical institutions with an extensive
product portfolio, while pursuing product sophistication
in specialist treatment sectors to herald progress in clinical
treatment technologies and become a leader in sub-
segments. The Company intends to deliver long-term and
stable value through the implementation of such strategies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

While all living things spring into life at the end of the cold
winter, industry recovery is in also progress. The three-year
battle against the pandemic has ended in a major victory, as
manufacturing and daily activities are returning to normal,
while the volume of consultation and treatment at hospitals
is experiencing exponential growth. In the meantime,
policies governing our industry have become clearer.
Although uncertainties remain in the macro-environment
and international landscape, the management remains fully
confident in the long-term, sustainable development and
growth of the Company in 2023 and beyond.

The management believes that, on the back of its strategic
presence in a wide range of business sectors fields and
high-quality products, an operational strategy underpinned
by persistent market adaptation and a future-oriented
approach and initiatives that motivate employee creativity,
the Company will continue to maintain and strengthen
its leading position in the PRC market. Meanwhile, the
Company will actively promote global resource sharing
to achieve coordinated development in the domestic and
foreign markets in support of stable growth in the Group's
operating results.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
EETREE

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company's management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited consolidated financial statements and the dividend
to be proposed by the Board for presentation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. We are of the opinion
that the Directors, the chief executive officer and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly
observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COI\/II\/IITTEE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2022 and has
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer
Company Limited

GU Meijun

Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC

28 April 2023
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BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIR

The Directors are pleased to submit their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company was established and registered as a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC under the Company
Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000. The H Shares of
the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27 February
2004 and were transferred to Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 29 July 2010. On 7 August 2018, the Company
completed the H share full circulation pilot project to convert
and list 2,638,600,000 non-listed shares into H shares. As at
31 December 2022, there was a total issued share capital of
4,522,332,324 H Shares and 48,300,000 non-listed shares.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products, blood management products, and operates
financing business.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into six operating divisions — medical device products,
orthopaedic products, interventional products, pharma
packaging products, blood management products and
others, among which interventional products were produced
by Argon Medical Devices Holding, Inc.. These divisions are
the basis of the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES (continued)

Principal activities of the Group’s operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Medical device
products

production and sale of clinical care,
medical testing, anesthesia and
surgical related products and other
consumables

production and sale of orthopaedic

Orthopaedic

products products
Interventional — production and sale of tumour
products and blood vessel interventional

instruments
production and sale of pre-filled

Pharma packaging

products syringes and flushing syringes
Blood — production and sale of blood
management collection, irradiation, storage,
products separation and sterilization products
Others — finance lease and factoring business

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment
during the year of 2022 at additions of approximately
RMB1,103,341,000 in order to enhance its production
capacity. Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2022, there was a total issued share
capital of 4,522,332,324 H shares (the “H Shares”) and
48,300,000 non-listed shares (the “Non-listed Shares”) of
the Company.

The changes in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIRG

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, total reserves of the Group amounted
to RMB21,211,874,000 (2021: RMB18,949,583,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB8,315,208,000 (2021:
RMBS&,220,181,000).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. NI Shili

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the directors entered into service agreements with
the Company. The service contracts were signed for an initial
term of three years, unless and until terminated by either
party by giving notice to the other party with three months’
notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the service agreements of all directors are
renewable for successive three-year terms upon expiry.

The service agreements for directors do not stipulate for
any amount of remuneration or bonus payment to be
paid for services provided. The executive directors are paid
with a fixed sum of annual salaries for holding positions
in the Company and entitled to welfare benefits (including
retirement benefits and medical insurance) in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The non-
executive director waived her directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and accepted a nominal
annual fee of RMB1.00.

According to the respective service agreements entered into
between the Company and each of three independent non-
executive directors, each of Mrs. Meng Hong and Mr. Li
Qiang received an annual fee of RMB120,000, and Mr. Li
Guohui received an annual fee of HK$200,000.

Apart from the foregoing, no directors have a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or
the Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director (with meetings as ascribed to it
under the Listing Rules) had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, were entered into or subsisted during or
at the end of the year.
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BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIRG

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors
in the share capital of the Company and their associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (“SFO")), (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(i) Long positions of listed Shares of RMB0.10
each of the Company
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Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage of

Approximate Total of the the issued

Total percentage of number of non-listed share capital

Name of Types of number of H Shares of non-listed shares of of the

Director interests Capacity H Shares the Company shares the Company Company

A28 EHAE 3

HEZ LW ELmikiy ERTREH

Exgth fezEn g1 HRAE HBHEDH% By BHEZHME%  HHEZH%

Mr. Long Jing Personal Beneficial owner 480,000 0.0106 6,000,000 12.42 0.1418
BRALE A EanEBA

Mr. Cong Rinan Personal Beneficial owner 200,000 0.0044 2,000,000 414 0.0481
EHMEE BA EmERAA

Mr. Chen Lin Personal Beneficial owner 196,000 0.0043 - - 0.0043
BMELE A EanEBA

Mr. Ni Shili Personal Beneficial owner 400,000 0.0088 2,400,000 4.97 0.0613
R BA EnERAA
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REPORT OF THE+D+IRECTORS
EETIR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG EFERRONERRTE (&

POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the registered capital (ii) RERAFHEESEEARE (FAR
of holding company, Weigao Holding, an HECGER) SEMEFHNTE

associated corporation of the Company

Approximate
percentage of
the registered

Amount of capital of
Name of registered Weigao
director Capacity capital Holding
RS EE
AT FMES
ERERE U5 g1 HMEXEE = g o
Weihai Weigao International Registered owner 1,078,000,000 89.83%
Medical Investment Holding Company
Limited* (Note)
BB ER BRI EER EEA A
BRERAE (W)
Mr. Chen Lin Beneficial owner 9,760,000 0.81%
PR Ak JT £ BEmEBA
Note: LB BB BHRIELEZERBMRAST (Weihai Weigao Mizk: BERMSEREEREEERERA
International Medical Investment Holding Company Limited*) is B B R M S KBRS E (BREF
owned as to 51.7% by Mr. Chen Xueli and 7.4% by Mr. Chen TEBBRMEENRE) DHEER

Lin (Mr. Chen Xueli is father of Mr. Chen Lin). 51.7%K27.4% °




36

BEPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETIRG

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
associates or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its holding company or any subsidiaries
of its holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire such rights in the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO recorded that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interest in
the issued share capital of the Company.

RBE - L EEEEES

RAEFEREARE BEEANEER
RELENBMBABRUWBERLTR
MEEZFD VBRI AR MK F IR E
ﬁﬁ&ﬂi%%ﬂ'ﬁﬁ@ﬂ HEZERR

AR HEEZERATDXFE R BARME
I B ABBES ULERRZH AR
BIEFAWBR AR HERMEMEA
ERE PR F R o

FERR

R _F+"RA=+—H0 8E2
BARZBES RAERAFE336FEN
Ixﬁx% SCMFTR  BR E XK EEA
ETEFENESI TIRRENER
ABEHRAABDBETREDHAERRE

3£
mm

Percentage

of total

Number of issued

Name of Shareholder Capacity H shares share capital
BT

Be s 4R ERRY

BRRATE 515 HEiRE B BSEE
Weigao Holding Company Limited Beneficial owner 2,099,755,676 45.94%

HEeEBEERAR BEm#EBA

Save as disclosed above, the following shareholders have
disclosed their relevant interests or long positions in the
issued share capital of the Company.

bR EXIEEIN THRBFECIRBERSE
REABDERTRATHESWBEAER
HEFE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERRE®
Number of % of
H shares Issued Share
Name of substantial shareholder interested Capital
R HEET
TERRYER BB HiZ 2 H REZAs /53 LtE
Mr. Chen Xueli 2,099,755,676(L) 45.94(L)
PREF] LA
Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment Holding
Company Limited* 2,099,755,676(L) 45 .94(L)
BSEEREBREEERBRAR
Weigao Holding Company Limited* 2,099,755,676(L) 45.94(L)
HEEEERAD
Note: (L) - Long Position sk (L-—FA
* Source: Website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange * BERIARR BB 48 L
# For identification purpose only # (EN- %l
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEERRIEERD
In 2022, sales to the Group's five largest customers R_E__FraAEERLATLNH

accounted for 4.2% of the total sales for the Year and sales
to the largest customer included therein accounted for 1.2%
of the total sales of the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 14.5% of the total purchases
for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein accounted for 4.9% of the total purchases of the
Year. During the Year, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in
the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

EMAFERHEEI 2% MAEPRK
ERPHERGEFERIEET.2%-
MAEE D REREFAFRBIGEFE
BERIB14.5% MAEPRREREEF
TEREBRAME R FEBIREL9% - AFE
N AABEF HEMBBEARERE
FEFMERE AL BEITRAESRU L
WERRRSENRAEBLRER RH
EhEEENEmEm-o
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On 17 November 2014, share award scheme of the
Company (the “Incentive Share Scheme”) was adopted
by the extraordinary general meeting. The maximum
number of non-listed Shares which may be issued
under the share award scheme would be 223,818,616,
which represent approximately 4.76% of the issued
share capital of the Company, respectively, as incentive
shares to key personnel of the Group, and other
persons as approved by the Remuneration Committee
(the "Selected Employee”), in batches in subsequent
years. The life of the Incentive Share Scheme is for 10
years starting from 17 November 2014. Details of the
Incentive Share Scheme are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 August 2014.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, the incentive
shares will be granted to the Selected Employee, subject
to non-market performance vesting conditions.

According to the Incentive Share Scheme, for Selected
Employee with a domestic identity, the trustee will
administer the incentive shares, which may be organised
in forms of companies owned by the employees, limited
partnership, or qualified trust companies in the PRC,
or for Selected Employee with a foreign identity, the
trustee will hold the incentive shares outside the PRC.

On 11 December 2015, the Company granted first
45,960,000 incentive shares to 111 Selected Employees,
with the consideration of RMB101,112,000 at the
issue price of RMB2.20 per share. The fair value of
the incentive shares as at grant date amounted to
RMB104,121,000.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified vesting
conditions, the difference between the fair value and
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the periods in which services are
expected to be rendered by the relevant employees. The
Group recognised the incentive share expenses of nil
(2021: RMB3,572,000) into the profit or loss during the
current year.
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BITEE XNEHA45,960,00088
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company

(continued)

Three limited partnerships (named Weihai Chang
Hong Enterprise Management Consulting Centre
(Limited Partnership) (B/8 K50 EEEABFRL (B
[R&%)), Weihai Yang Fan Enterprise Management
Consulting Centre (Limited Partnership) (B /8%
TEEEZHTP L (BRE%))and Weihai Hong Tu
Enterprise Management Consultlng Centre (Limited
Partnership) (/B REBEtXEEAEHFL (BERE
%)), respectively) were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme and holding
the shares, and hereby regarded as trustees of the
Company and consolidated to the Group accordingly.

Details of specific categories of share award are as
follows:

REPORT OF THE+D+IRECTORS
EETRG

Ui SERMAR @

(A) TATRGHENEE (B

LB BB R 5T 8 R A IR &R
YZ=BEREGBAE BIDHA
BERAEEEEZHFPL (AR
B%) REHNEEREEZRDO
(BRE®) EBLRETEERE
AL (BRE®)) BILRR
RERNBZREARRALRAER
e AR

AERMBBIERFENT

Vesting Issue

Date of grant period Price

EHAMH BE g8

Batch 1 11/12/2015 5 years RMB2.2
F1it “T-IfF 58 AR®2%

Note: The granted shares are vested in five tranches with the vesting
date on 31 December of each year from 2015 to 2019, the
vested shares are excisable after two years lock up period
following vested.

As of 31 December 2022, the outstanding incentive
shares under the Incentive Share Scheme were
14,456,000 (2021: 16,904,000), included 1,110,000
exercisable shares (2021: 9,922,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trustees
repurchased 8,812,000 shares (2021: 9,108,000),
which would be taken up by the Selected Employees
with the net consideration of RMB35,248,000 (2021:
RMB20,293,000) at the price of RMB6.20 per share
(2021: RMB4.43). The repurchased shares are held by
the trustees for the benefit of the Share Award Scheme,
to grant to other selected employees.

+=B+-8

st : WEPRMGOBDSHTURE  FE
HRR —_Z-—HAFE"T-NEFL
FZ2+-RA=+—H EREBR®
BB B 28 12 00 4F 5 E B E W R T L
e

BE_T_—_F#+-_B=+—H">
BRGNS EIIE T Z M R ITE B
B& 15 714,456,00008 (ZZE - —4 .
16,904,0000%) > €1351,110,000
el fTERGD (ZE — —&F
9,922,00088) °

ﬁ%:%:: +=-AB=
HEFEE ZTEAUERA
6.20C (ZE-—F: ARE¥4.
7o) BERRLEER AT m AEA
8,812,000 MH (ZE - —4F :
9,108, oooﬂy) TREBREAARKE
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(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
trustees sold 2,448,000 repurchased shares for a total
consideration of RMB26,783,000 (2021: 6,660,000
repurchased shares for a total consideration of
RMB94,170,000).

On 21 October 2021, the trustees subscribed the newly
issued 48,300,000 non-listed shares with the total
consideration of RMB172,914,000 at the issue price
of RMB3.58 per share. On 24 December 2021, the
Company granted 48,300,000 incentive shares to 83
Selected Employees.

Based on the Share Award Scheme of the Company,
the Company will repurchase the shares granted to
the Selected Employees when the Selected Employees
are not satisfying specified vesting conditions. The
total consideration paid by the Selected Employees are
recognised as liabilities, and will only be reversed by
portion to other reserve when the shares are vested
each year.

The fair value of the incentive shares as at grant date
amounted to RMB197,490,000 which determined by
market price of listing shares of the Company.

For grants of shares that are satisfying specified vesting
conditions, the difference between the fair value and
the issue price of the vested shares is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the periods in which services are
expected to be rendered by the relevant employees.
The Group recognised the incentive share expenses of
approximately RMB81,077,000 (2021: RMB41,275,000)
into the profit or loss during the current year.

Nine limited partnerships were set up for the purpose of
administering the Incentive Share Scheme and holding
the shares, and hereby regarded as trustees of the
Company and consolidated to the Group accordingly.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) UkinBERCR &

(A) Share Award Scheme of the Company (A) TR BE:E (&)

(continued)

Details of specific categories of share award are as RN AMEENNERENT
follows:
Vesting Issue
Date of grant period Price
REAMY R BB
Batch 2 24/12/2021 5 years RMB3.58
EE —B_—fF 58 AR¥3587
+ZBZ+mAH

(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Medical and (b) WW Medical and Healthcare

Healthcare Company Limited (“WW Cayman™)

On July 26 2018, WW Cayman, a subsidiary of the
Company, adopted a non-qualified share option plan
(the “Share Option Scheme”) for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of WW Cayman and its subsidiaries, which
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the adoption date. Under the Share
Option Scheme, a committee designated by the board
of directors of the WW Cayman may from time to
time in its sole discretion grant options to the eligible
employees.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 8% of the shares of WW
Cayman in issue at closing date. Unless approved by
the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of WW Cayman’s shares in
issue.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares
in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Scheme was
3,181,903, representing 7% (2021: 2,654,859,
representing 7%) of the shares at that date.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.
Options may be exercised at any time after vesting
and will be cancelled if not exercised before the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant.

Company Limited (Tww
Cayman KRB #EET 8

A —E-NFELtBZF+RB AR
&l bt B A B WW Cayman%zr}ﬂ%l@
TEERESTE (TFERESE)  H
FTEEHNZAWW Caymank H K
BRAENEERGERESRMTY
B BB HEEI0CERNER IR
HERESTE > WW CaymanEE
BIEEMNEESIARE2ERNBR
FEREBRLERE-

RIFEREST B o & R IIAE
KRBT EBARE BB E
THIWW Caymanf&{9 BI8% o fRIE
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HEERE (BIEETEMRITEN
RER ) BiTEmN A R1218 8 83
BB EITRETETHRMELH
AEBBWW Caymant 178 %H
H91% o
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(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Medical and (b) WW Medical and Healthcare

Healthcare Company Limited (“WW Cayman™)
(continued)

The exercise price of each batch of option is determined
with reference to the total cash consideration paid by
the Company in the formation of WW Cayman for the
acquisition of Argon, taking into account the relevant
costs and expenses involved, but in no event shall be
less than the fair market value of a share of stock in
WW Cayman on the date of grant.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Company Limited (Tww
Cayman BB HEETE

SHERENTEELE2ELRR
A IZWW Caymanbd UK B8 Z IR
AN RENBELE 5t T &B
M BRI AR AN 2 B 2 7B XE 0 M A 0 ]

AERENZE BEWW Caymanfg
EEE’J N ETHIGEE-

AiEBRERFEFBOT

Vesting Exercise

Date of grant period Price

REAH RE IR

Time-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00

R R 2 R A —E-N\F 4F 10.00% 7T
tAZ+"H

Time-based options 30/10/2019 4 years UsD10.00

B2 £ R E “E-hEF 4F 10.00% 7T
+B=+H

Time-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00

R R 2 R A “E°FF 4F 10.00% 7T
=B+=H

Time-based options 30/07/2021 4 years UsD10.00

REEERRE R -F 45 10.00% 7T
tRA=+H

Time-based options 08/08/2022 4 years Usb11.30

R R 2 R A “ECF 4F 11.30%7T
AV=PAN=!

Time-based options 12/12/2022 4 years UsD11.30

REEERRE s 45 11.30% 7T
+ZR+ZH

Performance-based options 26/07/2018 4 years Usb10.00

REREBRE —E-N\F 4F 10.00% 7T
tAZ+"H

Performance-based options 30/10/2019 4 years UsD10.00

REEERRE “E-hEF 4F 10.00% 7T
+B=+H

Performance-based options 13/03/2020 4 years Usb10.00

REREBRE “E°ZF 4F 10.00% 7T
=BA+=H

Performance-based options 30/07/2021 4 years UsD10.00

REEEBRE R 4F 10.00% 7T
tRA=+H

Performance-based options 08/08/2022 4 years Usb11.30

REREBRE “ZCF 4F 11.30%7T
AV=PAN=!

Performance-based options 12/12/2022 4 years Usb11.30

REEEBRE - — 4F 11.30% 7T
+TZR+ZH
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(b) Share Option Scheme by WW Medical and (b) WW Medical and Healthcare
Healthcare Company Limited (“WW Cayman™) Company Limited (Tww
(continued) Cayman 1B EERgfE 5121
The following table discloses movements of the share TRIEBFRNEERMFERENE
options held by employees during the year: iER -

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Outstanding at

Option type 1112022 during year  during year  during year 31/12/12022
i S g Ja:

-A-H +ZA=+-H

fERiERY I R AT FREY FRfTH FREK I R AT
Time-based options BEEEERE 1,597,650 419,175 (117,775) (6,250) 1,892,800
Performance-based options FKEEEERE 1,057,209 349,669 (117,775) - 1,289,103
2,654,859 768,844 (235,550) (6,250) 3,181,903

During the year ended 31 December 2022, options
were granted on 8 August 2022 and 12 December
2022, respectively. The estimated fair value of the time-
based options granted on those dates is USD2.40. The
estimated fair value of the performance-based options
on those dates is USD2.40.

RB&E—_Z_—_F+-_HF=+—H
LEE BREDINR T -
NBNBRZZEZ_F+"A+=
HEXEH -1 ZFHREHERE
EEBRENMGSI QA FER2.40E
TToRZSAHNTRBEERERR
st A FER2.405% 7T
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Healthcare Company Limited (“WW Cayman”)
(continued)

The fair value of the options was calculated using the
Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

Company Limited (fww
Cayman HIfERHEEE (&)

BREZATERBMR -
M EBEREHE - REHB|AHK
EL I

2022 2021

—EZZ %
Weighted average share price 11.30 10.00
MHEF B
Exercise price 11.30 10.00
TEB
Expected volatility 40% 40%
TRER X
Expected life 1.5 years 7 years
TEER T HA
Risk-free rate 3.00% 2.95%
i LB A

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the comparable companies over
the previous 1.5 years (2021: 7 years). The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Group recognised the total expense of
UsD1,197,000 (equivalent to RMB8,052,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: USD4,108,000,
equivalent to RMB26,506,000) in relation to share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme by WW
Cayman.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(c) Share Award Scheme by Weigao Orthopedic

Device Company Limited (“Weigao
Orthopaedic”)

On 9 May 2020, a share award scheme was adopted
by the extraordinary general meeting of Weigao
Orthopaedic (the “Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme”). A total number of 3,300,000 shares of
Weigao Orthopaedic were awarded to the eligible
senior management and employees (the "Eligible
Employees”), which representing 0.92% shareholding
of Weigao Orthopaedic.

The issue price of Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme is RMB15 per share, the total consideration
amounted to RMB49,500,000. 60% of consideration
was covered by the loan provided by Weihai
Hongyangrui to the Eligible Employees, and the
remaining 40% was funded by themselves.

Details of the shares awarded are as follows:
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Ui in BRI (&

(o) WREEAEMHRHBBRAF

(THE&EL) BRL (3 B st 8

RN _E_EFRBAH EBEE
AR B AF B K & 53R 40 AR 10 B Eh 5T
g2 (THeeRRKRMmEBItE )
533,300,000 = B &R 9 %
TEEBEREREEBRES (TE
ERER)) HtEHEESHKREDN
0.92% o

BeER R BEtanNETES
BERARBIST ERAEAARK
49,500,0007T » HF60% 1L EH
e GHmp e EREERENE
NI HER40%BHEBE S HE

EERROFBOT

Vesting

Date of grant period

BHAMH RED

Performance-based awards 09/05/2020 4 years
RBEERE —E-Ef

LANA 4F

Based on the Weigao Orthopaedic Share Award
Scheme, as the subsidiary of the Company will
repurchase the shares granted to the Eligible Employees
when the Eligible Employees are not satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the total consideration paid by the
Eligible Employees are recognised as liabilities, and will
only be reversed by portion to other reserve when the
shares are vested each year.

The estimated fair value of the performance-based
awards on the grant date is RMB19.8 per share. The
difference between the fair value and the issue price
of the vested shares is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the periods in which services are expected
to be rendered by the Eligible Employees. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, Weigao Orthopaedic
recognised a share awards expense of approximately
RMB2,638,000 into the profit or loss (2021:
RMB5,139,000).

RiBEE S BRI B S8 B
AABAMBATDEECEREER
ZHIEERBROEFLBEERTS
ERESNRD  WEERESFT
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e
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Supplemental purchase framework agreement

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Purchase Framework Agreement with
Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) new annual
caps of RMB1,300 million and RMB 1,500 million for the
years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively.
Purchases of medical based products, including but not
limited to, medical equipment, medical raw materials,
medical packaging materials, pharmaceutical and
medical devices by the Group from the Weigao Holding
Group. The annual cap for purchase transactions of
the Company from Weigao Holding Group shall not
exceed RMB1,300.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. During the Year, the actual amount of
transactions in relation to purchase transactions under
the Supplemental Purchase Framework Agreement was
approximately RMB1,249.9 million.

Logistic support services framework
agreement with logistic company

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into
the Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement
with Logistic Company for a term of two years from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023, pursuant to
which the Company agrees to subscribe, or procure
its subsidiaries to subscribe, and Logistic Company
agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide
integrated medical device supply chain logistic services.
Logistic Company Group delivers the Group's products
to its customers (such as hospitals), collects payment
from the customers on behalf of the Group and settles
the amount paid by the customers (net of the logistic
service fees charged by Logistic Company Group) with
the Group.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Logistic support services framework
agreement with logistic company (continued)

The Group negotiates and agrees the pricing of
medical consumables and devices products directly with
hospitals and nominate logistic operators (including the
Weigao Holding Group) to deliver the products. Logistic
operators collect the payment from the hospitals on
behalf of the Group and the logistic operators settle the
payment received from the hospitals with the Group on
a back-to-back basis. The settlement amount between
the logistic operators and the Group is the net amount
after deducting the logistic services fees charged by
the logistic operators from the gross amount paid by
hospitals. Pursuant to the Logistic Support Services
Framework Agreement, the logistic service fee charged
by Logistic Company Group which, is determined
by the Company and Logistic Company after arm’s
length negotiations and with reference to the market
fees charged by other independent logistic operators
providing similar services as well as the fees charged
by Logistic Company to its independent customers in
its ordinary course of business. The Proposed Annual
Caps in respect of the logistic service fees charged by
Logistic Company was RMB155 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The actual logistic service
fees charged by Logistic Company was RMB78.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The annual cap for logistic and distribution of the
Company shall not exceed RMB5,000.0 million. During
the Year, the actual amount settled with Logistic
Company Group for the product sales to hospitals
under Logistic Support Services Framework Agreement
with logistic company was approximately RMB3,346.9
million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FERERXS @

(continued)

Supplemental deposit services agreement

Under the Deposit Services Agreement dated 23
August 2017 and 20 December 2019, Lanhai Bank
agrees to provide deposit services to the Group and
the Group agrees to utilize such deposit services. On
16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Deposit Services Agreement with Lanhai
Bank to (i) extend the agreement term for one year to
31 December 2023; and (ii) propose new annual cap
of RMB300 million for the year ending 31 December
2023. Except for the extension of the duration of the
agreement and the proposition of the new annual cap
for the year ending 31 December 2023, all other terms
of the Deposit Services Agreement remain unchanged.
The annual cap (maximum daily balance of deposits
(including the interests accrued thereon)) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was RMB300.0 million and
the actual maximum daily balance of deposits (including
the interests accrued thereon) for the year ended 31
December 2022 was approximately RMB162.6 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

4.

Supplemental finance leasing and factoring
framework agreement

Under the Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement dated 5 December 2018, 27 September
2019 and 2 November 2020, the Group agrees to
provide finance leasing and recourse and non-recourse
factoring and other commercial factoring services to
Weigao Holding Group. On 16 November 2021, L
BemEHAEARAT (Shandong Weigao Financial
Leasing Co., Ltd.) and ELBEEMEHRERRE AT
(Shanghai Weigao Financing Lease Co., Ltd.), both
are subsidiaries of the Company, entered into the
Supplemental Finance Leasing and Factoring Framework
Agreement with Weigao Holding to (i) extend the
agreement term for two years to 31 December 2023;
and (ii) propose new annual caps of RMB500 million
for each of the years ending 31 December 2022 and
2023. Except for the extension of the duration of the
agreement and the proposition of the new annual
caps for the years ending 31 December 2022 and
2023, all other terms of the Finance Leasing and
Factoring Framework Agreement remain unchanged.
The annual cap in respect of the finance leasing and
factoring business contemplated under the Finance
Leasing and Factoring Framework Agreement (as
supplemented by the Supplemental Finance Leasing and
Factoring Framework Agreement) for the year ended
31 December 2022 was RMB500.0 million and the
actual aggregate value of finance leasing and factoring
amount for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB347.4 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FERERXS @

(continued)

Supplemental sales framework agreement

Under the Sales Framework Agreement dated
5 December 2018, 18 December 2019 and 2 November
2020, the Company agrees to sell or procure its
subsidiaries to sell, and Weigao Holding agrees to
purchase or procure its subsidiaries to purchase
products including but not limited to, medical devices,
carton box and moulding. On 16 November 2021,
the Company entered into the Supplemental Sales
Framework Agreement with Weigao Holding to (i)
extend the agreement term for two years to 31
December 2023; and (ii) propose new annual caps
of RMB500 million for each of the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023. Except for the extension
of the duration of the agreement and the proposition
of the new annual caps for the years ending 31
December 2022 and 2023, all other terms of the Sales
Framework Agreement remain unchanged. The annual
cap for the sales transaction from the Group to Weigao
Holding shall not exceed RMB500.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, During the Year, the actual
transaction amounts of sales by the Group to Weigao
Holding Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately RMB444.8 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

6.

Supplemental services framework agreement

Under the Services Framework Agreement dated
5 December 2018 and 2 November 2020, the Company
agrees to subscribe or procure its subsidiaries to
subscribe, and Weigao Holding agrees to provide or
procure its subsidiaries to provide services including but
not limited to, dormitory, catering services and hotel
services. On 16 November 2021, the Company entered
into the Supplemental Services Framework Agreement
with Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term
for two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) propose
annual caps of RMB40 million for the year ending
31 December 2022. Except for the extension of the
duration of the agreement and the proposition of the
new annual caps for the year ending 31 December
2022, all other terms of the Services Framework
Agreement remain unchanged. The annual cap for
the services transaction purchased by the Group from
Weigao Holding shall not exceed RMB40.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. During the Year, the
actual transaction amounts for the services provided by
Weigao Holding Group to the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB19.7 million.

Service provision framework agreement

On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into
the Services Provision Framework Agreement with
Weigao Holding, pursuant to which the Company
agrees to provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide,
and Weigao Holding agrees to subscribe or procure
its subsidiaries to subscribe medical related services
including but not limited to, sterilization, examination
and radiation validation services for a term of two
years from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023. The
proposed annual caps in respect of the transactions
contemplated under the Services Provision Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB35.0 million. During the Year, the actual amount
of transactions relating to service provision framework
agreement was approximately RMB23.6 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
7. Supplemental tenancy framework agreement

Under the Tenancy Framework Agreement, the Group
agrees to lease its premises located at industrial zone
at Chucun in Weihai in Shandong Province, the PRC to
Weigao Holding Group and receive rentals therefrom.
On 16 November 2021, the Company entered into the
Supplemental Tenancy Framework Agreement with
Weigao Holding to (i) extend the agreement term for
two years to 31 December 2023; and (ii) propose new
annual caps of RMB25 million for each of the years
ending 31 December 2022 and 2023. Except for the
extension of the duration of the agreement and the
proposition of the new annual caps for the years ending
31 December 2022 and 2023, all other terms of the
Tenancy Framework Agreement remain unchanged. The
annual cap for the rental received by the Group from
Weigao Holding Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 shall not exceed RMB25.0 million and the actual
transaction amounts for the rental received by the
Group from Weigao Holding Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 was approximately RMB9.4 million.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Acquisition of Weigao Medical Materials

On 9 September 2022, the Company entered into the
Agreement with Weigao Holding in relation to the
Acquisition. Weigao Holding holds 45.94% of the issued
share capital of the Company as of the date of this report.
It is a connected person of the Company. The Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. The Company will
settle the consideration of RMB288.0 million in cash. As
the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
Acquisition exceeds 0.1% but is below 5%, the Acquisition
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
For details, please refer to the announcement and the
supplemental announcement of the Company dated 9
September 2022 and 17 September 2022 respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Equity Transfer of 100% in Weigao New Life to
Weigao Ortho

On 3 January 2023, Shandong Weigao Orthopedic Materials
Company Limited ("Weigao Ortho”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the equity transfer agreement
("Equity Transfer Agreement”), with Weigao Biotechnology,
Weigao Fusen, Weigao Imaging, Weigao Qiquan (collectively
the “Vendors”) and Weigao New Life (the “Target”),
pursuant to which Weigao Ortho agreed to acquire, and
the Vendors agreed to transfer to Weigao Ortho their
respective equity interests for a total of 100% in the
Target. Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment
Holding Company Limited (“Weihai Weigao International”)
holds approximately 89.83% equity interest in Weigao
Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”), which is a
substantial shareholder holds approximately 45.94% equity
interest in the Company. The Target is an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of Weihai Weigao International, thus a
connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the entering
of the Equity Transfer Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Weigao Ortho settled the cash consideration
of RMB1,030 million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,168
million) in five instalments. As of the date of this report,
the registration of Weigao Ortho as the registered owner
of the Target has been completed. As one or more of
the applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in respect of the Equity Transfer Agreement exceeds
0.1% but is below 5%, the Equity Transfer Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but is exempted
from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements. For details, please refer to the announcement
and the supplemental announcement of the Company dated
3 January 2023 and 15 February 2023 respectively.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
shareholders as a whole.

ASSURANCE PROCEDURES PERFORMED BY
AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
appointed the auditor of the Company to report on the
above continuing connected transactions between the
Company and the connected persons for the year ended 31
December 2022. The auditor of the Company was engaged
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA and reported
the following conclusion to the Board:
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ASSURANCE PROCEDURES PERFORMED BY
AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company:

a. nothing has come to our attention that causes auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s
board of directors.

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to
auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c. nothing has come to auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
auditor’s attention that causes the them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected
transactions, the independent non-executive directors of
the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the
transactions were made in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the Framework Agreements governing
them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders as
defined under the “Listing Rules” of the Company or their
respective associates has any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.
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BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "CCGP")
contained in the Listing Rules which set out the principles of
good corporate governance and the Company is required to
comply with the code provisions of the CCGP. The Company
fully admitted that good corporate governance, as part
of the Company’s culture, can create values to the Group
and the Shareholders efficiently. The Board is committed
to continuing to enhance the standards of corporate
governance within the Group and to ensure that the Group
conducts its businesses in an honest and responsible manner.
The Group has adopted practices which meets the code
provisions of the CCGP.

CHANGE OF BOARD COMPOSITION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the change of
information on director and senior management during the
year ended 31 December 2022:-

1. Mr. LIAN Xiaoming (E/)\EA) has tendered resignation
as a non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 6 June 2022.

2. Mr. LU Jungiang (E938) has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company with effect from 6
June 2022.

3. Mr. NI Shili (Rt F)) has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 6 June 2022.

4. Mr. LO Wai Hung (EfZ7%) has tendered resignation
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company, a chairman of audit committee, a chairman
of remuneration committee, a chairman of nomination
committee and a member of corporate governance
committee with effect from 6 June 2022.

5. Mr. LI Guohui (ZE##) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, a chairman of audit
committee, a chairman of remuneration committee, a
chairman of nomination committee and a member of
corporate governance committee of the Company with
effect from 6 June 2022.
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CHANGE OF BOARD COMPOSITION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

Mr. HU Yunyong (88Z£78) has tendered his resignation
as a shareholders’ representative supervisor of the
Company and a chairman of supervisory committee of
the Company with effect from 6 June 2022.

Mr. SONG Dapeng (RAHE) has been appointed as a
shareholders’ representative supervisor with effect from
6 June 2022.

Mr. YUE Chunliang (dE5Z& E) has tendered his
resignation as an employee’s representative supervisor
of the Company with effect from 22 April 2022.

Mr. ZHANG Zhuangqiu (584t #k) has been appointed as
an employee’s representative supervisor of the Company
with effect from 22 April 2022.

Mrs. FU Mingzhong (B8 fH) has tendered resignation
as an independent non-executive director, a member
of audit committee, a member of remuneration
committee, a member of nomination committee and
a member of corporate governance committee of the
Company with effect from 28 September 2022.

Mrs. MENG Hong (Z4I) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, a member of audit
committee, a member of remuneration committee, a
member of nomination committee and a member of
corporate governance committee of the Company with
effect from 28 September 2022.

Mrs. WANG Jinxia (£#882) has tendered resignation
as an independent non-executive director, a member
of audit committee, a member of remuneration
committee, a member of nomination committee and
a member of corporate governance committee of the
Company with effect from 30 December 2022.

Mr. LI Qiang (Z358) has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, a member of audit
committee, a member of remuneration committee, a
member of nomination committee and a member of
corporate governance committee of the Company with
effect from 30 December 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
of its securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive right under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIVERSITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its diversity policy with respect
to the composition of the Board. In assessing candidates
running for directorships, the Nomination Committee will
consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, technical expertise and the ability to fulfill the
requirements of the Board. Details on the biographies and
experience of the Directors are set out on pages 84 to 89 of
this report.
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As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio in the workforce
(including the senior management of the Company) of the
Group comprised 56% male and 44% female. As at 31
December 2022, the Board has one female member, out of
a total of nine members. The Group believes that the gender
ratio of the workforce is within the reasonable range. The
Group will review the effectiveness of the measures and
practices against the actual circumstances of the Group
and will adopt new policies when considered necessary. In
particular, it will continue to monitor the gender ratio and
will aim at achieving a greater gender diversity in hiring all
positions across the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT AND MARKET
CAPITALIZATION

Based on the publicly available information known to the
Company and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as of
the date of this report, the public float of the Company is in
compliance with that stipulated under Rule 8.08 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. As at 31 December 2022, the market
capitalization of the Company was approximately HK$57.97
billion.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN
PREPARING THE GROUP’S CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged the responsibility for preparing
the accounts and have confirmed that the preparation of
the Group's financial statement is in compliance with the
relevant regulations and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Directors adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent and reasonable
judgments and estimations.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
prepared by the Directors on a going concern basis. There
are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. A statement by the external
auditor of the Company regarding their responsibilities of
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the "“Independent Auditor's Report” in this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEWRS

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
LONG Jing
Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
28 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company recognize the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “"Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, which
have been adopted by the Group since its listing on 28
February 2004.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
specific enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the
year of 2023.

The following summarizes the corporate governance
practices of the Company:

The Board of Directors

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility
to act objectively in the interests of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
The Board of Directors (continued)

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, including four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. LONG lJing (Chairman)

Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang

Mr. NI Shili

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui
Mrs. MENG Hong
Mr. LI Qiang
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Board currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of the Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed by annual confirmation that he/she
has complied with the independence criteria set out in Rules
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Director consider that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgment. Amongst the three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Guohui has the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise required under Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings were held two times during this year
to review and approve financial and operating performance,
interim and annual results. Ad-hoc meetings will also be
convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Notice of board meeting will be sent to all Directors at
least 14 days prior to a regular board meeting. Reasonable
notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc board meetings.
Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant
materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable requests, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Number of Board meetings held during the year 2021: five.

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2022 was as follows:

EBTEFETHEHFXBENRE
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Attendance
in 2022
RZEZZ
By H FE
Executive Directors: WITES
Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman) RS (£/F) 100%
Mr. CONG Rinan (Chief Executive Officer) = HEE (THAEH) 100%
Mr. LU Jungiang EsRiE 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2022) (MZEZZFEANNBEZD)
Mr. NI Shili R R S5 4 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2022) (MZEZZFERANNBEZD)
Non-executive Directors ERITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) RS (B F/E) 100%
Mr. CHEN Lin [R5 100%
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming ENBRSE A 100%
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (MZ2ZZFEABEMD
Independent non-executive Directors BIUERITES
Mr. LI Guohui FEIE S E 100%
(appointed on 6 June 2022) (MZEZZFERANRNBEZD)
Mrs. MENG Hong RA T+ 100%
(appointed on 28 September 2022) (MRZ2EZZHFABZ+N\BEZM
Mr. LI Qiang FaREt 100%
(appointed on 30 December 2022) (M2 ZHF+-A=1+BHEZMD
Mr. LO Wai Hung ERIERE 100%
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (MZ2ZZFEABEMD
Mrs. FU Mingzhong TRz L 100%
(resigned on 28 September 2022) (M2 ZHFABZ+N\BEMD
Mrs. WANG Jinxia FiRER T 100%

(resigned on 30 December 2022)

WRZE-__F#+-B=1+HEMT

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are
recorded, and final version are submitted to Directors for
review within reasonable time after the meetings, normally
14 days after the meetings.

Secretary of the Board assists the chairman to establish
meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of
items in the agenda.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Board Meetings (continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions. The Directors
concerned can express views but will not be counted in the
quorum of meetings and shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution(s).

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Long
Jing is the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director
of the Group’s business. Mr. Cong Rinan is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the Board
itself, who is responsible for the leadership of the effective
operation of the Board, and ensuring that all major and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board on a timely
basis and in a constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is appointed by the Board. He is responsible for the
management of daily operations of the Company and the
implementation of the strategies and plans determined by
the Board.

Experience

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors
possess administrative leadership, diversified knowledge
and extensive management experience in the industry. The
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
knowledge, experience and judgment in different areas.
The Board will seriously consider the objective views of the
independent non-executive Directors for making decisions,
and regard this as an effective guidance for the Group’s
business direction.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Directors’ responsibility

The Board manages the business of the Company on behalf
of its shareholders. The Directors consider that they are
obliged to fulfill their responsibilities in a prudent, diligent
and faithful manner, so as to create value for shareholders
and safeguard the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12 August 2005 in accordance with the requirement of
the Code. The remuneration committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui,
Mrs. Meng Hong, Mr. Li Qiang and one non-executive
director Mr. Tang Zhengpeng.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group’s performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which is subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR BTFEFETEHSTINIESE
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS F

(continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued) FMEESE (@

ZEI

During the Year, one meeting have been held by the E’;‘KEE%F@H%%@ TE—Xg
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration FH FFEHMNEZE SR EHENT &
committee attended the meeting during which the ‘;tOEE%%E%L TERRB ZEBEZZHF
remuneration package of directors, supervisors and senior EEZEZ -BEERSREEBEAEFEH
management of the Company for the year 2022. The ZH-HMEESTTENEINTHEOE
chairman of the remuneration committee reports the HBZERTHER WIRMHEESE-
findings and provides recommendations to the Board after

each meeting.

During the Year, the remuneration committee has convened HAFE > FMEZE T H B
one meeting and the attendance of each remuneration & HIMZESZIMENEER
committee member is set out below:

Attendance
in 2022
R-ZE-Z
Member of Remuneration Committee #HMESERE BY i FE =
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung ERIERE 100%
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (MZ2ZZFEA/BEMD
Mrs. FU Mingzhong TBRfrZ L 100%
(resigned on 28 September 2022) MRZEZZFEABZ+NHED
Mrs. WANG Jinxia Ef%ﬁﬁir 100%
(resigned on 30 December 2022) (M2 ZHF+Z“A=+H#MD
Non-executive Directors JERITES

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng wm IEME 4 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee on 21
May 2012 in accordance with the requirement of the Code.
The nomination committee comprises Mr. Li Guohui, Mrs.
Meng Hong, Mr. Li Qiang and one non-executive director Mr.
Tang Zhengpeng. The chairman of the nomination committee
is Mr. Li Guohui. The terms of reference of the nomination
committee have been defined. The principal duties include:

—  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy.

—  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

- to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

— to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall have access to
independent professional advice if necessary. All members
of the Nomination Committee have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management
for obtaining necessary information.

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years, and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR BTFEFETEHSTINIESE
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS F A @)

(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued) RBZEET (B)

The Company has not experienced any casual vacancy AABXRE HIRBAEE DM SR TR
for members of the Board. In the event that there is such  BYIE R oM HIBZF BN BAIEMER
circumstance, the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy ZEHRMEEZEINESBEESSEEN
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first EXKREADT LBETREBER-
general meeting after his appointment.

The Board selects and nominates Director candidates based ZEZERBEAEEZEREEEZNTAERK
on whether they possess the skills and experience needed for — ERZRIKERIT LB FEEA o
the Group’s development.

During the Year, the nomination committee has convened E\Zliif RELEZEGHEBH=RE
three meetings and the attendance of each nomination % IRLEESEMENEFERNOT !
committee member is set out below:

Attendance
in 2022
Member of Nomination Committee RBZEEHE B =
Independent non-executive Directors EHIIJEHITES
Mr. LI Guohui %Iﬁﬁf‘ai
(appointed on 6 June 2022) (MRZEZZERBAHEZMD 100%
Mrs. MENG Hong BTt
(appointed on 28 September 2022) MRZE2EZZFALEBEZ+N\BEZD 100%
Mr. LI Qiang FoREE
(appointed on 30 December 2022) MRZE-_—_F+-_B=1+HEZD 100%
Mr. LO Wai Hung FETE'JE?EE
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (MRZEZZERBAHEHMD 100%
Mrs. FU Mingzhong TERFZ+
(resigned on 28 September 2022) MRZEZZFALAZ+N\BED 100%
Mrs. WANG Jinxia FREL L
(resigned on 30 December 2022) MRZE__F+-_B=1+H&HD 100%
Non-executive Director ERITES

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng  IEBE S 4 100%
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TEERERS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee
on 30 May 2013. The corporate governance committee
comprises Mr. Long Jing, Mr. Li Guohui, Mrs. Meng Hong
and Mr. Li Qiang. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Long
Jing. The terms of reference of the corporate governance
committee have been defined. The principal duties include:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Corporate Governance Committee will be provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall have
access to independent professional advice if necessary. All
members of the Corporate Governance Committee will have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary
and separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for obtaining necessary information.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR EsF
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS Sl

(continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELRS

(&)

Corporate Governance Committee (continued) TEELEZET (@

During the Year, the corporate governance committee has
convened one meeting. The attendance of each Director is

set out below:

M

REFE  EXEBRES
GR-REFNHERF WM

FETEFXBNRE

FTHAR—R

Attendance
in 2022
Member of Corporate Governance HZ-ZEZZ
Committee TtEERZEEHRE HY i FE =
Executive Director HITES
Mr. LONG Jing BERR o 100%
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. LO Wai Hung ERIERE
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (R _F,NB/NHEMT 100%
Mrs. FU Mingzhong TRz L
(resigned on 28 September 2022) MRZEZZFEABZ+NHEMD 100%
Mrs. WANG Jinxia FiREL L
(resigned on 30 December 2022) (RZE__F#+-B=+H8T) 100%
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT B K&
Financial Reporting MBRSE

All Directors are provided with explanations and information
by the management of the Company so as to enable them to
have discussions and make assessment at Board meetings.

All Directors acknowledge the responsibility for the
preparation of its accounts, with the responsibility statement
in respect to the financial reports made by the Directors set
out in this annual report. The auditors have also made a
statement about their responsibilities in the auditor’s report.

The Board presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment on the position and prospects of
the Group in all shareholder communications.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERERS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training program and budget.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, the audit committee of the
Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Li Guohui (chairman of the audit
committee), Mrs. Meng Hong, and Mr. Li Qiang and one
non-executive director Mr. Tang Zhengpeng. The terms of
reference of the audit committee have been clearly defined.
Its principal responsibilities include:

—  To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the
same at the general meeting for consideration. To
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors when the general meeting is
authorizing the Board to determine the remuneration
of the auditors, and to address any questions regarding
the resignation or retirement of that auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.

To monitor the completeness of the financial statements
of the Company and the annual report and accounts
and half-year report of the Company and to review the
significant opinion of the respective financial reporting
contained therein. In this regard, the committee will
review the relevant statements and reports of the
respective annual report and accounts and half-year
report of the Company before submitting the same to
the Board.

To oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Company.
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TEERERS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

During the Year, the audit committee has convened four
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and
reviewed the interim and annual results and have discussed
and considered the internal control procedures of the Group.
The attendance of each Director is set out below:

MEREH® @
BRZEE (B

E\ZKEJ* BERZESHBAHORE
B LI EmEABRPARFEEE

2@’\ TR AEEANEBEIERFET T

HABZ ZEFHOEEZXUT :

Attendance
in 2022
R-ZE-Z
B =
Independent non-executive Directors JHIIJEHITEE
Mr. LI Guohui FEIE L
(appointed on 6 June 2022) (MRZEZ—FEXBHEZMD 100%
Mrs. MENG Hong %Iﬁi
(appointed on 28 September 2022) MRZEZZFAEBEZ+N\BEZMF) 100%
Mr. LI Qiang FaiLeE
(appointed on 30 December 2022) (RZEBE_—_F+_-_B=+HEZMDT 100%
Mr. LO Wai Hung FETET’E?EE
(resigned on 6 June 2022) (MRIZEZZERABAHEHMD 100%
Mrs. FU Mingzhong TP+
(resigned on 28 September 2022) MRZIEZZFALAZ+/N\BED 100%
Mrs. WANG Jinxia FREL LT
(resigned on 30 December 2022) MRZEZZFE+ZHA=1+H#HMD 100%
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng v IEMB SR A4 100%

The scope of responsibilities of the audit committee is
available on the websites of Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There was no disagreement between the audit committee
and the Board in respect of the selection, appointment,
resignation or removal of external auditors during the year of
2022.

The audit committee can consult independent professional
advice in accordance with stated procedures at the expense
of the Company.

In 2022, the remuneration for the services provided by
auditor and/or its affiliates to the Group was approximately
RMB13,401,000, among which the audit services amount
to RMB8&,915,000, and non-audit services amount to
RMB4,486,000 which mainly tax related services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board

The Board should assume the responsibility for the leadership

and

monitoring of the Company, and is collectively

responsible for promoting the success of the Company. The
responsibilities of the Board are defined explicitly in the
Articles of Association of the Company.

(1)

(2)

(10)

(11)

(12)

to be responsible for convening shareholders’ meetings
and report on its work at shareholders’ meetings;

to implement the resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings;

to determine the business plans and investment plans of
the Company;

to formulate the annual fiscal budgets and final
accounts of the Company;

to formulate profit distribution proposals and loss
recovery proposals of the Company;

to formulate proposals for increasing or reducing of the
registered capital of the Company and proposals for
issue of debentures of the Company;

to draft proposals for the merger, division and
dissolution of the Company;

to determine the establishment of the internal
management bodies of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the
Company, and to appoint or dismiss the deputy general
manager and other senior management, including
the person in charge of finance, pursuant to the
recommendations of the general manager, as well as to
determine their compensations;

to formulate the basic management system of the
Company;

to formulate proposals for amendments to the Articles
of Association of the Company; and

to exercise other functions as stipulated by the
Articles of Association or granted by the shareholders’
meetings.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

The Board has granted authority to the chief executive
officer to implement the following strategies and to be
responsible for the day-to-day operation:

(1) to be in charge of the management of production and
operation and to organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

(2) to organize the implementation of the annual business
plans and investment plans of the Company;

(3) to draft proposals for the establishment of internal
management bodies of the Company;

(4) to draft the basis management system of the Company;

(5) to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the
Company;

(6) to propose the appointment or removal of the deputy
general manager and other senior management,
including the person in charge of finance, of the
Company;

(7) to appoint or dismiss the management personnel other
than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the
Board; and

(8) to exercise other functions granted by the Articles of
Association and the Board.

The chief executive officer grants authorisation to chief
financial officer, and senior management within his terms of
reference.

The Board is supported by four committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. Each of
the committees has its defined terms of reference covering
its duties, rights and functions. The chairman of the
respective committees report to the Board regularly and
make recommendations on matters discussed as appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to
its shareholders. Information of the Company is disseminated
to the shareholders in the following manner:

e delivery of the interim and annual results and reports to
all shareholders;

e  publication of announcements on the interim and
annual results on the Stock Exchange website, and issue
of other announcements and shareholders’ circulars in
accordance with the continuing disclosure obligations
under the Listing Rules; and

e the general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Board has maintained an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and investors, and will regularly review
this policy to ensure its effectiveness. Information will
be communicated to Shareholders and investors mainly
through the Company’s financial reports (interim and annual
announcements and reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings that may be convened, as
well as by making available all the information submitted
by the Company to the website of the Stock Exchange
and its corporate communications on the Company's
website. Shareholders can direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors may at any time
make a request for the Company's information to the extent
such information is publicly available.

Communications with shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Director.

The shareholders’ meeting provides an effective forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman, together with the chairmen or members of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee are available to answer shareholders’
questions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Communications with shareholders (continued)

The procedures demanding for a poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand for a poll are included in the notice
of shareholders’ meeting and the accompanying circular.
The relevant procedures are explained at the shareholders’
meetings.

The external auditor has been appointed as the scrutineer to
ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded.

The results of the poll have been posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company
on the business day following the meeting.

Furthermore, the Company continues to enhance the
ongoing communications amongst the shareholders,
investors and analysts, including:

e establishing specialized bodies and employing staff to
serve investors and analysts and answer their relevant
questions;

e arranging site visits to the production bases of
the Company in order to keep them abreast of
the operations and the latest developments of the
Company;

e collecting and analyzing, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the
operations of the Company given by securities
analysts and investors and compiling them into reports
periodically, and selectively adopting them in the
operations of the Company;

e providing relevant information, including introduction
to the Company, the Board and corporate governance,
results of the Company, financial summary, marketing
materials of the Company and press releases on the
website of the Company; and

e taking the initiative to communicate with various
parties, particularly following the announcement of
interim, annual results and substantial investment
decisions, organizing briefings, press conferences and
one-on-one interviews with investment institutions.
Besides, the Company also regularly communicates with
investors on an one-on-one basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness, and such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles in
relation to the Group’s financial, operational, compliance,
risk management and internal controls, and internal audit
functions. The Board has responsibility to ensure the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ investment.

The Group has internal control systems to formalize the
risk management of the Group, to build up a standard and
effective risk management system to manage risk and to
provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss. Appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure the assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and
accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirement and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately managed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined levels of responsibility and reporting procedures.
The Company has retained an independent professional
firm as external advisor to assist the Company to perform
an assessment on risk management and internal control
mechanism of the Group. We have our own Internal Audit
Department to fulfil the requirement of internal audit
function. Together with the supports from the external
advisor, the internal audit function can facilitate the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors in ascertaining the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems on an annual and ongoing basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has conducted an
annual risk assessment which identified respective strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks, and compliance risks
for each of the major business segment of the Group.
Risk factors were analyzed and consolidated at the Group
level. Based on the risk assessment results, following a risk-
based methodology audit approach, a three-years’ audit
plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into
annual audit projects. The Group’s internal audit department
performed the annual reviews in accordance with the
audit plan with a view to assisting the Board and the Audit
Committee to evaluate the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group strictly regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information as set out in information disclosure
policy to ensure potential inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately approved
and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work
performed by the internal audit department, the Audit
Committee and the Board are of the view that the Group
has maintained adequate and effective risk management and
internal control system during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board
remains informed and relevant. The directors are committed
to complying with the Corporate Governance Code A6.5
on directors’ training. All directors have participated
in continuous professional development by attending
seminars and/or studying materials to director’s duties and
responsibility and provided a record of training they received
for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 to the
Company.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to
or updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
and senior executives to enrol in a wide range of professional
development courses or and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance or act and corporate governance
practices organised by professional bodies and independent
auditors so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written
materials to develop and refresh their professional skills; the
company secretary also organises and arranges seminars
on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the Directors to assist them in discharging
their duties.
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TEERARS

DIRECTOR'S TRAINING (continued)

Directors’ continuous training and development

(continued)

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the new requirement of the CG
Code on continuous professional development during the

Year:

BEFZIEIN @®

EFZHERIIRER (B

RBEARBFEZCH RTEEEE
ATHRARFEEXERMRE &
$3A$$F“ﬁﬂ§ UTFEMERLEHA
AEFZAG BERBEZE

Corporate Governance/Updates on
laws, rules and regulations
TEER MIEG RARRH 2 EH

Read materials Attend workshops

REME HEHRSE
Executive Directors: HiTES
Mr. LONG Jing (Chairman) BRRLEE (FE) 4 v
Mr. CONG Rinan ERMAY (THER) v/ v/
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LU Jungiang EREE v v
(appointed on 6 June 2022) MZEZZF B HEZD
Mr. NI Shili RHF e v/ 4
(appointed on 6 June 2022) MZEZZF B HEZD
Non-executive Directors EHITER
Mr. TANG Zhengpeng (Vice Chairman) 5 EMELE (BIE/E) 4 4
Mr. CHEN Lin BRI & 4 4
Mr. LIAN Xiaoming EINBEE
(resigned on 6 June 2022) MZEZZF B HE#D
Independent non-executive BiFRTES
Directors
Mr. LI Guohui FEIBLE v v
(appointed on 6 June 2022) MRZEZZFEXBAHEZMD
Mrs. MENG Hong BAYT v v
(appointed on 28 September 2022) MWZEZZFABZ+/\HE
&1)
Mr. LI Qiang Fgkh 4 4
(appointed on 30 December 2022) MWZEZZF+ZRA=1+H%E
&1)
Mr. LO Wai Hung BRELE 4 4
(resigned on 6 June 2022) MRZEZZFABAHEMD
Mrs. FU Mingzhong THEfmzt+ v 4
(resigned on 28 September 2022) MZEZZFABZ+/\BH#
)
Mrs. WANG Jinxia IRERL v v

(resigned on 30 December 2022)

R_E-__F+_A=+H#
)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors arising out of corporate activities
of the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the
new Corporate Governance Code. Such directors’ liability
insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, no claim has
been made against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company with effective from 26 May 2006.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December
2022, Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional trainings to update her skills
and knowledge.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, amendments to the Articles of Association
with shareholders approval have been made on 6 June 2022,
28 September 2022 and 30 December 2022 regarding the
change in number of directors, the rename of address of
principal office of the Company in the PRC and the standard
adjustment to the existing business textual expression by the
business registration authorities in China respectively. An
updated version of Articles of Association of the Company
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LONG Jing, aged 49, is the chairman of the Board
and executive director of the Company. Mr. Long joined
the Company in July 2005 and served as the manager of
sales management department and vice-general manager
of sales of the Company until August 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of the Company from August 2018
to March 2021. He has been an executive director of the
Company since December 2018 to date, a director of
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited
(stock code: 688161) from March 2020 to date and the
chairman of the Board of the Company from March 2021
to date. Prior to joining the Company, I\/Ir Long served
as the sales chief of WEAZLE T4/A5 (Shandong
Plastic Materials Industry Company*) from 1996 to 2002.
Mr. Long obtained a bachelor degree in marketing from
Shandong Economic University and a master degree in
business administration from Shandong University. He also
obtained the Chinese professional qualification of Certified
Public Accountant (CPA), with nearly 20 years of experiences
in sales and operation management in the medical device
industry.

Mr. CONG Rinan, aged 42, the executive director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Cong joined the
Company in August 2003. He served as supervisor, deputy
manager and manager of the syringe production workshop
until December 2013. During the period from January 2014
to December 2014, Mr. Cong served as the assistant to
the chief executive officer of the Company. From January
2015 to December 2018, he served as the deputy general
manager of the clinical care business unit of the Company;
from January 2019 to March 2021, he has been the general
manager of the clinical care business unit; he has been the
chief executive officer of the Company from March 2021
until present; he has been the executive director of the
Company from May 2021 until present. Mr. Cong obtained
a bachelor’'s degree in applied chemistry from Yantai
University and a master’s degree in engineering from Harbin
Institute of Technology. He completed the Master of Business
Administration (MBA) program at Renmin University of China
in 2019 and obtained the title of senior engineer of medical
device professional, with nearly 20 years of experience in
production and operation management in the medical device
industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LU Jungiang, aged 49, an executive director of the
Company and a director and a general manager of Shandong
Weigao Orthopaedic Device Company Limited (stock code:
688161). Mr. Lu joined Weigao Orthopaedic in January 2018
as the deputy general sales manager of Weigao Orthopaedic
and has been the director and general manager of Weigao
Orthopaedic in September 2018 and from September 2019
to present. Mr. Lu indirectly holds 0.20% equity interest
in Weigao Orthopaedic through Weihai Hongyangrui
Information Technology Center (Limited Partnership). Prior to
joining Weigao Orthopaedic, Mr. Lu served as the regional
manager, sales manager of Eastern China and deputy general
manager of the medical devices products business division of
the Group since October 2000. Mr. Lu obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from the University of
Wales in the United Kingdom and has more than 20 years
of experience in sales and operation management in the
medical device industry.

Mr. NI Shili, aged 61, an executive director of the
Company and a director and a general manager of Shandong
Weigao Purui Pharmaceutical Packaging Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ni
joined the Company in May 1995. He worked as the product
sales manager for the infusion sets of the Company until
December 2004 and product sales manager for pharma
packaging materials of the Company from January 2005 to
March 2009, respectively. He serves as the general manager
of the pharma packaging materials division since April 2009
to date. Mr. Ni graduated from Heilongjiang Radio and
TV University majoring in marketing and is a professional
intermediate engineer in medical technology with nearly 30
years of sales and operation management experience in the
medical device and pharma packaging industry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. TANG Zhengpeng, aged 52, is the vice chairman of
the Board and a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Tang joined the Weigao Holding in December 2017
and currently is a director of Weihai Weigao International
Medical Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and the vice chairman
of Weigao Holding; and a director and vice chairman of
Weihai Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code 002248) in
March 2018 and from July 2018 to pressure. Prior to joining
Weigao Holding, Mr. Tang was the assistant to the president
of Bank of Communications, Weihai Branch, the president
of Minsheng Bank, Weihai Branch and the assistant to
the president of China Minsheng Bank, Qingdao Branch.
Mr. Tang graduated from Shandong University majoring in
business administration and completed the EMBA program
of China Europe International Business School in 2019, with
over 20 years of experience in banking and corporate finance
management.

Mr. CHEN Lin, aged 47, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Chen joined Weigao Holding in September
2000 and has served as assistant general manager and
general manager of Weigao Holding and currently is a
director of Weihai Weigao International Medical Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. and the chairman of Weigao Holding.
Mr. Chen graduated from Shandong University, Weihai
with a degree in economic management and completed a
Master of Business Administration (MBA) program at Renmin
University of China in 2004, with over 20 years of operation
management experience in the medical device industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Guohui, aged 51, an independent non-executive
director of the Company and joined the Company in 2022.
Mr. Li is currently the chief strategy officer and co-chief
financial officer of China Aircraft Leasing Group (“CAL"), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1848).
From July 2019 to December 2022, Mr. Li held position
in Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited (“Zhongsheng
Holdings”) (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 0881) and currently serves as an executive director
and joint chief financial officer of Zhongsheng Holdings.
From August 2013 to July 2019, Mr. Li was the vice
president, chief financial officer and executive director of
China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3320), a non-
executive director of Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000423)
and China Resources Double Crane Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600062) and a supervisor of Sanjiu Medical &
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000999). From September
2009 to August 2013, he was the accounting director of the
finance department of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. From April 2006 to September 2009, he was a
senior analyst of IMC Development Management Company
Limited in Hong Kong. From October 2005 to April 2006,
he was a M&A investment analyst in IMC Fanya, Singapore.
Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in naval architecture and
marine engineering from Wuhan University of Technology,
a master’s degree in business administration from Wuhan
University, a master’s degree in financial management from
Nanyang Technological University in Singapore and obtained
professional qualifications as a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) qualified by the CFA Institute of Chartered Financial
Analyst and a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) qualified by
the Singapore Institute of Chartered Accountants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. MENG Hong, aged 56, an independent non-
executive director of the Company and joined the Company
in 2022. Mrs. Meng is currently an associate professor of the
Accounting Department of the Business School of Shandong
University (Weihai). She has over 20 years of experience in
research and teaching at university. From 1994 to 1999, Ms.
Meng worked at Auditing Firm of Weihai High-tech Industrial
Development Zone (B /B8EEITEXME BTN ERMN),
where she was responsible for auditing and appraising. From
2012 to 2018, Mrs. Meng served as an independent director
of Shandong New Beiyang Information Technology Co., Ltd
(stock code: 002376.SZ). From 2016 to 2022, she served
as an independent director of Shandong Weida Machinery
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002026.5Z) and Zhuhai Winbase
International Chemical Tank Terminal Co., Ltd. (stock code:
002492.57). Currently, Ms. Meng is also an independent
director of Sunfly Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 300423. SZ), Weihai Guangwei Composite Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 300699.57) and Tianrun Industrial Technology
Co., Ltd (stock code: 002283.5Z). Ms. Meng obtained a
bachelor’s and master's degree in economics from Shandong
University and a doctorate degree in economics from Hoseo
University in South Korea. She is an asset appraiser in China.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LI Qiang, aged 47, an independent non-executive
director of the Company and joined the Company in 2022.
Mr. Li is currently the managing partner of Grandall Law Firm
(Shanghai). Mr. Li is mainly engaged in the legal practice
of capital markets, including private equity investment,
corporate listing and M&A restructuring. Mr. Li is also the
director of the Securities Business Research Committee of
the Shanghai Bar Association and an arbitrator of Shanghai
Arbitration Commission. Prior to joining Grandall Law Firm
(Shanghai), Mr. Li worked as a paralegal at the Shanghai
office of Boss & Young from March 2003 to April 2005;
as a marketing manager at Lenovo Group Limited from
September 1999 to August 2000; and as a staff member
at China National Arts & Crafts (Group) Corporation from
July 1997 to June 1999. Mr. Li has provided legal services
to more than 40 companies in their domestic and overseas
listing and restructurings, and has nearly 20 years of
extensive legal experience in listing. Mr. Li also serves as
independent directors of Shanghai Anoky Group Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 300067.5Z) and Impulse (Qingdao) Health
Tech Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002899.57). Mr. Li obtained
his master's degree in law from Shanghai University of
International Business and Economics, master's degree in law
from Chicago-Kent College of Law and EMBA from China
Europe International Business School (CEIBS).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Supervisors

The Company has a committee of Supervisors whose
primary duty is to supervise the senior management of the
Company, including the Board, Directors, managers and
other senior officers. The function of the committee of
Supervisors is to ensure that the senior management of the
Company acts in the interests of the Company, and does
not violate the rights of the Company’s shareholders and
employees. The committee of Supervisors reports to the
shareholders in general meetings. The articles of association
provides that the committee of Supervisors has the right
to investigate the Group’s financial affairs; to supervise
the directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the event that they contravene any laws,
administrative regulations or the articles of association in
the performance of their duties; to require the Directors,
general managers and other senior management to rectify
any activities committed by them that is harmful to the
interests of the Company; to examine financial reports,
result reports, profit distribution plans and other financial
documents prepared by the Board to be submitted to
shareholders in general meeting, and in appropriate cases, to
appoint certified accountants or certified practicing auditors
in the name of the Company to assist in such review; to
propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings of
shareholders; to represent the Company during negotiations
with the Directors or to initiate legal proceedings against
the Directors; and other functions and powers given
by the shareholders in general meeting. The committee
of Supervisors currently comprises the following three
members:
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Supervisors (continued)

Ms. GU Meijun, aged 46, a shareholder representative
supervisor and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of the Company. Ms. Gu joined Weigao Holding in 1996
and held positions such as accounting supervisor, accounting
manager, assistant to general manager, and chief accountant
of Weigao Holding. Ms. Gu has been a supervisor of Weihai
Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002248) from March
2021 to date. Ms. Gu graduated from Beijing Information
Technology Institute with a bachelor’s degree in financial
management and passed the middle-level accountant title
examination.

Mr. SONG Dapeng, aged 45, a shareholders’
representative supervisor of the Company and is the assistant
to general manager of Weigao Holding. Mr. Song joined
Weigao Holding in November 2009 and has served as the
head, manager and assistant to general manager of the
audit and risk management department. Prior to joining
Weigao Holding, Mr. Song worked as the manager of the
audit department of Weihai Jinzheng Accountancy* (B /&%
IF & sHEME#FT) from January 2006 to October 2009. Mr.
Song has been the chairman of the supervisory committee
of Weihai Huadong Automation Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002248) from
March 2021 to date. Mr. Song graduated from Shandong
University of Finance and Economics* (LI 58487 2 x)
majoring in accounting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Supervisors (continued)

Mr. ZHANG Zhuangqiu, aged 46, an employee’s
representative supervisor of the Company and is currently
the vice general manager of the clinical care business division
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from University of
Science and Technology Liaoning GEERIE K2) in July
1997 majored in mechanical manufacturing. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhang worked for Samsung Electronics
(Shandong) Digital Printers Ltd. (Z2EF (LIR) SHEHTEN
AR /AE) from July 1997 to January 2012 and worked
for Weihai Weigao Medical Systems Co. Ltd. (/&8 = B &
RHABIRAT), a subsidiary of the Company’s controlling
shareholder, Weigao Holding Company Limited, as the vice
general manager of production department from February
2012 to December 2015. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in
January 2016 and successively served in different positions
in the Company such as the assistant to general manager of
the clinical care business division and vice general manager
of production department.

Senior Management

Mr. WU Xuefeng, aged 45, the chief financial officer of
the Company. Mr. Wu joined the finance department of
the Company in July 2001. He served as the manager of
the manufacturing finance department and the manager
of the sales finance department of the Company until July
2012; from July 2012 to October 2013, he was the manager
of the risk management department of Weigao Holding;
from October 2013 to February 2017, he was the financial
controller of the pharmaceutical distribution business
department of Weigao Holding; and from February 2017 to
present, he has been the financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Wu obtained a bachelor degree in finance management
from the University of QiQiHar in Heilongjiang Province and
obtained a master degree in business management from
the Missouri State University, the United States, with more
than 20 years of experience in the accounting and finance
management.

Ms. WONG Miu Ling, Phillis, aged 54, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company in
May 2006. She is a Chartered Secretary and fellow members
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Governance Institute. Ms. Wong has over 25
years of experience in corporate finance and management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Overview

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Shandong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance (hereinafter called "ESG”)
Report (the “Report”) of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”). The
Report outlines the policies, sustainability strategies,
management approach and initiatives implemented by
the Group in the environmental and social aspects of its
business, and performance of the Group in this regard.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the Group’s manufacturing business
of medical consumables, orthopedic products, and
equipment in China and the manufacturing business
of interventional products of Argon Medical Devices
Holding, Inc. (“Argon Medical”), with its headquarters
based in the United States. Such businesses are the core
business and major source of revenue of the Group.
The sales and R&D operations in overseas regions are
not covered in the reporting scope due to their impact
on the ESG performance is not significant. During the
Reporting Period, there were no significant changes to
the scope of reporting.

Reporting Basis

The Report discloses the required information under the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, and
complies with the relevant provisions. The relevant
provisions and details are listed out at the end of the
Report.

Reporting Principles

The Group adheres to the following reporting principles
as the basis for the preparation of the Report.
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Reporting Principles (continued) EEIRIFR (&)
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Materiality

The threshold at which ESG issues determined by
the Board are sufficiently important to investors
and other stakeholders of the Group that they
should be reported, details of which are set out in
the sections headed “Stakeholders’ Engagement”
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and “Materiality Assessment” below for more ST A B8 0 2 B8 o
details.
Quantitative =21t

The quantified environmental and social key
performance indicators are disclosed in the Report
to give stakeholders of the Group a comprehensive
picture of the Group's ESG performance. The
information is accompanied by a narrative,
explaining its purposes and impacts.

Balance

Every effort has been made in the Report to reflect
the performance of the Group’s ESG activities
impartially and avoid selection, omission or
presentation format that might inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment of the readers
of the Report.

Consistency

As far as is reasonably practicable, the Group
has used consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG MANAGEMENT

Board Statement

The Board takes overall responsibility for ESG matters
and their integration into the Group’s management
approach and strategies. It guides the management and
monitoring of ESG matters that have been identified
as relevant to the Group and reviews ESG-related goals
and targets.

Chairman’s Statement

The Group is committed to corporate social
responsibility and balancing environmental, social and
economic benefits, and hopes to balance its business
development with the interests of its key stakeholders
and operates its business in a sustainable manner. To
achieve this vision, the Group has set a sustainability
framework that focuses on environmental protection,
resource management, employee and community
wellbeing and guides the Group’s sustainability efforts
to ensure that sustainability elements are integrated
into our business processes and all business decisions.

Global warming is a major concern of governments
worldwide. The Chinese government has developed
more rigorous environmental laws and regulations. The
Group takes the environmental protection policy of the
Chinese government as the development blueprint,
aligns with the strategy of safe, harmonious, green
development and clean production, and instills the
concept of environmental management into the core
of its operating activities. In 2020, the Company issued
a green bond. The Board considers that the Green
Bonds will support the Group to implement resource
and energy efficiency measures, and to research and
development and introduce the first Electron Beam
sterilization (E-beam) process in China to displace toxic
gas-based process along its manufacturing process.
The plants in Mainland China began to work on clean
production in 2022. At the same time, the Group pays
attention to and loves nature, and makes joint efforts
with employees to build an environment-friendly and
resource-saving enterprise.
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, the employees of the
Group show team spirit, rise to the challenge of the
crisis and grab the chance, make use of corporate
advantages and the accumulated rich industry
experience over the years to enable the Group to
stand from the severe epidemic. At the same time, the
Group provides multi-pronged support to employees
to protect them from infection and stop the spread of
the COVID-19 in society. The prevention and control
measures include implementing the COVID-19 control
system, setting up the epidemic prevention and control
team, and providing epidemic prevention materials to
employees. Despite the severity of the pandemic, the
Group still pays attention to the employee remuneration
and benefits, career development opportunities and
provides a safe working environment, so that employees
can work proactively and enthusiastically. The Group
strictly adheres to the initial aim of embracing corporate
social responsibility, actively participates in public
welfare undertakings, and carried out activities such as
WEGO Bright Action, WEGO Love Project, WEGO Life
Relay Project, etc., donated money and materials during
COVID-19 epidemic. However, there might be a long
way to fight against the pandemic. The Group hopes
that all of the employees and society will continue to
put unremitting efforts in leading through the crisis
and challenges and make continuous progress towards
sustainable development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

There was a resurgence in health care services of
medical institutions as the pandemic in mainland
China was effectively contained. The Group’s product
and market diversification strategies and resource
integration measures have demonstrated continuous
anti-risk capabilities. Providing high-quality products
and services is one of the core values of the Group.
Therefore, the Group vigorously improves the
innovation system, adheres to scientific management,
improves the quality management system, and has
passed a series of international accreditations. The
Group adheres to product mix optimisation and
adjustment strategy focusing on the introduction of
foreign advanced production equipment, and enhances
efforts on technological transformation to improve
technological standards, production efficiency and
product quality. In addition, the Group integrates
marketing resources to improve efficiency of new
product sales through the sharing of internal channel
resources. Building an ecosystem with diversified
products and a collaborative and efficient organisational
system and through our platform strategy, the
Company will provide an enriched product mix and
holistic solutions to medical institutions and patients to
improving efficiency and quality of service.
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

To achieve the above vision, the Group has set a
number of environmental and social key performance
indicators (“KPI”) and taken a top-down approach to
disintegrate the KPIs into the functional departments.
Not only has the Group improved the well-being of
the employees, but it also urged the employees to
make changes in different areas, such as reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and making good use
of resources. ESG matters that the stakeholders of
the Group rate as priorities are tracked through the
stakeholders’ engagement exercise (Please refer to
the section “Stakeholders’ Engagement” below for
details). During the Reporting Period, the Group has
made achievements by actively supporting the Group’s
sustainable development strategies and objectives
from the management team and all employees. The
relevant scope, progress and achievements relating to
the environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in the
Report.

The Group has always adhered to the policy
of "“Pioneering and innovating, realistic and
consolidating”. By adhering to the mission of “creating
a healthy future with white angels”, establishing the
core values of conscience, sincerity and loyalty, and
sticking to the development strategy of “one centre
and three adjustments”, the Group is committed to
building a global company, a world-class enterprise,
entering into the ranks of the strongest enterprises of
international medical devices, realising the vision of
“being the number 1 in China, and a world-class and
most respected innovative enterprise of medical devices
and medicines”. The Group hopes that its professional
management team can commit to stable operation
and prudent financial management policy, dare to
rise to continuous challenges, implement sustainable
business strategies and improve business performance,
and create more meaningful long-term value for the
company and our stakeholders.
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Governance Structure

The Board believes that sound ESG strategies can
create investment value for the Group and deliver long-
term returns to its stakeholders. The establishment
of appropriate governance framework is critical
to the Group’s successful implementation of ESG
sustainability strategy. Therefore, the Group set up
the ESG governance structure with clear duties and
responsibilities. The Board sets long-term policies
and strategies for all sustainability matters, reviews
the implementation status and progress of ESG work
annually and reports on its performance. The Board will
also identify, review and evaluate the Group’s corporate
responsibility, sustainability and climate change
response through internal meetings. The management
team reports to the Board on a regular basis to assist
the Board in assessing and determining whether the
company has established an appropriate and effective
internal control system to contain the ESG risks. At
the operational level, functional units are responsible
for ensuring the integration of sustainability strategies
and practices into the Group's business operations and
exploring new action plans or initiatives.

The Board

e HEFEEMERS

RIG s tERERHRS

“RIE-HEREANER @

ERRE

EEEMHEETESESGRIEBEIE
FEENREBEIATNES
REERKR BUIBENELIE
RoWAEBRRINEMESGH EHAY
ARBEEREBRERER  FItE
EEEILTESGRERB  LHIE
RENEENEE -EFTHEM
ERFEERFEFERES &
KRB SFEERESGHERBRIFR
HITHE R BE R I RABRI T 1F
KR - BEFEEETRENNEE
A BZ AN EAEREES
E-AIRBEERRRIFECEYER
HEZ - EEEREHRRNEFTE
TTER UBHEFEFLRETE
AR BEERAES G BERE
RO ZEFIESGREE - IR EEREE B
H > BRAEMIE SRR A 758
LERREMNEBBRALEBN XS
EED FR RS MATES B

=1k

The Board members are responsible for:

e Developing long-term sustainable development policies and strategies
e FIERENPIFEERET it KRR

e Assessing and identifying risks and opportunities associated with ESG

o SHEKRETERRESGERE M IKE

e Ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
monitoring systems
s MERAEKRAEMNESGRAREERNEGEZRG

e Reviewing and approving policies, objectives and action plans or
measures related to ESG
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e Reviewing and approving the ESG report
o BHESGHREE
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Governance Structure (continued) EARE (B

Management Team

B 1 E X

Functional Department
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The management team is responsible for:
mEEEEESE .

Developing and reviewing ESG-related policies, objectives and action

plans or measures o \
il € L 1@ SYESGAR RV LR ~ B AR R (T BN 5t &S $E i
Monitoring and reporting to the Board on the progress and quality of

implementation of the action plan or measures
EERMEFGERITH BN IEMOVAITEEHER

Identifying ESG risks and opportunities
a8 I ES G JEL g e 1 488

Reviewing the ESG report
BERIESGREE

The functional departments are responsible for:
HBEHrfIasE .

Identifying, assessing, formulating and reporting to management on
significant ESG issues
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Performing ESG risk management and internal monitoring
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Ensuring ESG policies, objectives and action plans or measures are
integrating into business operations
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Reporting to management on the progress and quality of
implementation of the action plan or measures

MEEEERTHFSHERNATEEHER

The Board has appointed an independent consultant
to assist in collecting data and information on ESG
matters and conduct various analysis, and to provide
improvement recommendations on ESG performance.
The Group has collected and analysed the views of
key stakeholders on ESG matters and conducted a
materiality assessment to identify important ESG issues
for the Group, details of which are disclosed in the
sections “Stakeholders’ Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” below. To effectively lead the Group's ESG
process, the Board continuously monitors the work
of all departments to ensure that they work closely
together to achieve the sustainable development goals
of operational compliance and social responsibility.

100 SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EFEgELREIBERBARAESG
EEETEENENKRE RS
T/ WRESGEMFKRIBIEM NS
BE - AEBEERENSTEER
MEHESGEEWNER » W#ETE
BT LR A E B EEESG
EE ARHEFEARNRERN T
mEZH) RTEEFTE BHE
B ARV EEAREBMESGETR
EFETEEREMMANITIE E
RETFEZEERESE EREE
EREENRatsEANIFE
BREZ

' LERSERRESH TRIBMERAT 2022 £



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business, provide support for
environmental protection and the communities where
the business is located. The Group maintains a close
tie with its stakeholders, including government/
regulatory organisations, shareholders/investors,
employees, customers, suppliers, community, etc. and
strives to balance their opinions and interests through
constructive communications in order to determine the
directions of its sustainable development. The Group
assesses and determines its environmental, social and
governance risks, and ensures that the relevant risk
management measures and internal control systems
are operating effectively. The following table shows the
means of communication with the stakeholders and the
management response to the stakeholders’ expectations
and concerns:

Expectations and Means of
Stakeholders concerns communication
FinE HZHEX BEEE
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Management response

EEERE

Government/regulator ¢ Compliance with laws ¢ Periodic report/

organisations and regulations announcement
B/ BTERER RS/ BREAS
REdE
o Fulfill tax obligations ¢ Correspondence
BIRBER ERRAM
o Safe production ¢ Handle official business
ZeEE through government
affairs website or
* Joint anti-epidemic application
HEHE BB BT B

BREFMELE

o Uphold integrity and compliance in operations

REBRRFAEREH

o Pay tax on time to contribute to the society

BEGRUCELE

o Establish comprehensive and effective internal
control system

BUZEAMNABEHESR

o |mplement clean production

ETRREE

o (Cooperate with the government's epidemic
prevention policies and guidelines

BB BT B RISk 77 it
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT (continued) “CRIR-HEREBHNERE ®
Stakeholders’ Engagement FipEsH (@)
Expectations and Means of
Stakeholders concerns communication Management response
FinE HEREK BBRE EREERE
Shareholders/investors e Return on investment ¢ Information disclosed e Management possesses relevant experience
KRR/ RESE KEDH on the HKEX website and professional knowledge in business
KB R EZ sustainability
¢ Information (=) EEEAGHERLCRNZENH BREBN
transparency IEST {:d
BiBHE o The Company's website
/NI N o Ensure transparency and efficient
e Corporate governance communications by publishing information in
system ¢ General meeting and websites of HKEX and the Company regularly
NEAIEREE other shareholders’ BERERM AR R BRI EHRERER
meetings REBERBNER
o Operation of risk BERAEREMBE
management 2% o Strive to improve internal control and focus on
REARER risk management

BENHEAREEREARER
* Joint anti-epidemic

EEME o Adopt effective preventive and control
measures
FEA M

o Actively penetrate the integration and product
structure adjustments and other strategic
means, continue to promote the product
penetration rate of core customers, and seek
to bring considerable revenue growth
RHERARERSRERGRBEZNHRR
FROREREROEFNEREES X
HRABNBRAL R
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

R tERERRS

Y RE-HERELANER @

HRESE (B

Expectations and Means of
Stakeholders concerns communication Management response
EbE HEREK BBRE EREERE
Employees e Labour rights Staff activities Set up contractual obligations to protect
8T B ETEH labour rights
HIEEHNERURES LD
e Career development Employee performance
EXERE assessment Encourage employees to participate in
BTHENER continuous education and professional training
e Compensation and to enhance their skills
welfare Induction and on the BEET2RRENE REXBIRRE
FBENER job training i
UN:- 22803 dex
o Health and safety Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
BERZZE Internal meetings and remuneration scheme
announcements BUAT sBENAREINFMESR
* Joint anti-epidemic NBERENRBS
HEMNE Pay attention to occupational health and
Contact via safety
email, phone and AERERRERZS
communication
application Organise employee activities to enhance
BABTHMELIH cohesion
M BEARERRE BWMETEPLULRRF S
F“ ke
o Provide anti-epidemic supplies (such as face
masks and alcohol)
REMER® (MASKRBER)
Customers * High quality products Business visit * Improve the quality of products and services
xR and services BB ES continuously in order to maintain customer
BEEmART satisfaction
Contact via email and FERULEBEERARBURRE R
o Reasonable price phone call
EBREE BERBFIHrKREE o Ensure proper contractual obligations are in
g place

o Timely delivery

RERE

BRETENER
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Il. ESG MANAGEMENT (continued) “RIE-HEREAGNEE @
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued) FirE2A (@)
Expectations and Means of

Stakeholders concerns communication Management response
FinE HEREK BBRE EREEFRE

Suppliers e Stable demand e Business visit e Ensure proper contractual obligations are in

HEAER BRRE il place

BRETENER

e Good relationship with e Contact via email and

the Company phone call
HRRRERFAR BRAEFBHREE
Hﬁi“‘g

o Corporate reputation

tXiE8
Communities * Environmental e The Company's
HE Protection official website and
RiG(RE information publicity
website of government
* Reduce greenhouse gas department
emissions NG g

HARE RN BN FIfE B ATHEIE

o Reduce waste e Community activities
generation HEED
ROBRYMESL

o Effective resource
utilisation

BXWERF A
e Community
contribution

HESHA

e Economic development

pelyigid=

e Joint anti-epidemic

RERE

104  SHANDONG WEIGAQ GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Maintain strong and long-term relationship

with suppliers

REBAERBIAFRE

Select suppliers with due care

BEREMER

Pay attention to the problem of climate
change and actively take various clean
production measures to encourage employees
to actively participate in charity activities and

voluntary services

RIRGECLRERNEBERLER
wR S TRES B EEHNSERS

Encourage employees to actively participate in
charitable activities and voluntary services

wRE TRIES B EEHNSERS

Maintain good and stable financial
performance and business growth

BRERERENYBRRNEBER
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued)

RIG s tERERHRS

“RIE-HEREAGNEE @

Materiality Assessment BRI

During the Reporting Period, the Group held discussions PRHREHARN AEEEEIEEET
with the management and conducted materiality NmkBBAEEE ETEEN
assessment through various channels to identify T I HFERFMERAEER
environmental, social and governance issues that their AONIRE -t ERERER B
key stakeholders and the Group are both interested in; MBS HEEENERREE %
and assessed the level of concern as viewed by them; MEELEEYEEZMNESGERE - ¥
so as to select the relatively important ESG issues. For REEMTE AEESEHRIUAT
materiality assessment, the Group has adopted the =ERE :

following three processes:

Identification °

5

Prioritisation °
FIILBEIE

[
Validation °

Foi

P

Through diverse channels and internal discussion
BBZITRERANE

Examines and adopts the ESG issues of concern in the past
stakeholders’ engagement
AR R R AR B T 5 0 B 2 B R B PRI RUESGER B

Draws attention to emerging ESG issues
BT EAVESGEER B

Synthesises, analyses and evaluates the views of all parties to identify
and prioritise potential and important issues

A DMETEEARE UHBEBETEENEE IRt EFRE
ST BRI

Develops materiality matrix based on the importance of the issue to
the Group and its key stakeholder
REZFENAER AT ERFHENEEZREERRESHIEMEE

Interacts with the management team to validate the results of
materiality assessment and ensure that these issues are aligned with
the sustainable development direction sought by the Group
HEREEEZES URIFEEUTEHER BREERELELERS
KR IFEERFE—R

Reports the results of materiality assessment to the Board and makes
the required disclosures in the ESG Report
RHEHFTENEZMTEERAEFTEER > WRESGRESHIELE
PR SR RO B2
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ESG MANAGEMENT (continued) Y RE-HERELANER @

Materiality Assessment (continued)

The materiality assessment will help the Group
to ensure that business development meet the
expectations and requirements of stakeholders. The
matters of concern to the Group and stakeholders are
set out in the following materiality matrix:

EEMTE (B

EEMNEENTERRFRERHE
REESMERMENREEEZNR
AEBMF D EFIREONFEIESS
HRUTHEZMEREBR :

Materiality Matrix EZ 456

¢ Anti-discrimination & Employee training and @ Discharge of wastewater
R AR promotion BEIKHER
S Thrygaz=
& Labor rights protection BLEAIRET @ Discharge of non-
RIESE TR & Employee compensation hazardous wastes
and benefits mEBEEMHEIN
=| itk =ps|
BT RMR =R @ Discharge of hazardous
e A Customer satisfaction wastes
< BERmEE BEBEEYHR
k= A Product quality and
o safety
5 ERHBARS
g A Service quality
o RFFE =
i; A Anti-epidemic
s BB
]
3 A Community involvement @ Emission of greenhouse @ Occupational health and
% HE2H gas safety
N R 3 o
f‘g @ Exhaust gas emission BEREIK BERRAZZ
3 + BERIFIR () En?rgy use A Operational compliance
S g BEJRE wom aie
v
= o A Anti-corruption
£ = RES
2
£ A Intellectual property
- rights
HNGH A R
A Protection of customer @ \Water resources @ Use of raw materials
privacy utilization R A4 #HsE A
REE P AR =R :
W AR A Supplier management
2 & Measures to prevent HEEEIE
S child labor and forced
lefosri & Talents management
=
B ET RS TH AT R
=il
Low f& Medium High &

Importance to the Group XK BN EEH

® Environment BB HE ¢ Employee ETHE A Operation EEHHE
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strictly abides by the environmental
protection laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (the "State”), including the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’'s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the "Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste
Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, the “Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, laws and regulations
of the local government of the United States and
other applicable requirements and standards.
According to the applicable laws and regulations on
environmental protection and making reference to the
Group’s operating environment, structure, production
capabilities, and human resources, the Group
established regulations on pollutant management to
regulate waste gases, wastewater, noise, and different
types of solid wastes generated in operation and
production. During the Reporting Period, domestic
companies in the PRC conducted compulsory clean
production reviews and proposed a number of feasible
clean production plans to effectively reduce pollutants
and conserve energy, and were rated as the advanced
level of clean production in the PRC. The Group
continues to reduce the carbon footprint through
various policies, measures and actions to heighten all
levels awareness of the importance of their impact on
the environment, thus reducing the adverse effects
on the environment caused by the business activities
of enterprises and the personal life of employees.
The relevant information will be represented in detail
in the sections of “Management of Emissions” and
“Management of Resource Utilisation” below.

RIG s tERERHRS

= IRIBRE

AEEERETHEARENE
(TR ) RIBRERERIER
BE(PEARKELNBEIRERE
E) S (PEARKENBE KRR TS HM
BE)SAPEARFEMBEIAS R
BE) S (PEARHEMEEREEY)
BHIRIERE)  (PEARKEMN
BIRIBIRE IS RIAE)  (PEA
REMBIESAERZE) - ZEE
BB ERERKREMBERNE
KERAE o AEBKRERVIRE
ERER URBAEENEEIR
BARB-EEENRADERSE
HIE KB SRYNEEGE MR
HEEREEBRETMELNE
R B REREBEREY N
REHR FEERNATRERS
MBEREESZZ REZEAIITHE
BREETTE AWML SR
Y R BRI BE TR > AR BT 7 B P9 B R
FTESRERKFT -RBRTEEEAEESE
MT7BECHERREZENEE L
REBERNEBBEEHE HHEN
T8 LUBDBR B 15 > AE MRl i
ENEXLHHEETNEALEH
RIBEMAREE  ERAERESN
X TEERYNEIE) B IERER
AEIR B0 T Al AL
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Management of Emissions

The Group focuses on the research, development,
production and selling of disposable medical
supplies and devices for various medicinal uses.
The Group understands that the waste gas,
wastewater and solid waste, etc. generated
in the operation process will have certain
impact on the environment. Therefore, the
Group includes environmental factors into our
business development strategy, and set up safety
technology department in the production plant
to supervise the implementation of the Group’s
environmental protection policies by each
department, and continuously optimise various
environmental protection and pollution prevention
measures and equipment, and regularly organise
seminars to brainstorm aiming at solving major
environmental issues. The Group keeps a close
watch on the national environmental protection
policy and development, and takes appropriate
adjustment measures according to the national
environmental protection requirements while
conducting various production activities; the Group
also refers to the local environmental laws and
regulations and integrate the characteristics of
different businesses to establish perfect internal
rules and regulations, so that all levels of the
Group can better understand their work in
environmental protection. Moreover, the Group
invests resources in effective environmental
facilities and equipment to enhance the
effectiveness of the Group’s environmental
protection policies, so as to reduce the generation
of pollutants and avoid wasting resources, and
accelerate the sustainable development strategy of
the Group.

= IRBRE ®

HEp B R

AEBTEME - BE -EE
RHERNRZRBEBERERAEN
—RMEBEAMKREm K E
ETRINEEBRETRE
EHEERBEKKREREYE
CRBRETR-—ENTE A
EAREBRBRFRERZMAZE
BERRET REERER
T RERAMEPT BEE R EPT
HAERRFRBRNWEKIE
o FEEEERIRIEMEN
SRAEMERE  UKRE
HEBM S 8RR Em U
REANRFREE - AEER
T B8 B R B0 1R R BBk B &%
B EETEELEEZHNG
By > FE B ZX AV IR (R 2 KEREUE
ENRRBER ~AEET2R
EMBIRFRERER &RET
FEBRTR BIITENRA
BREGE > BLEEXEE
EEMTHEESNIRERE
HEBIE FAREEAERR
EXMBIRIE R0 ER R 058
75 EIRRIECR BB WM L
MO EESRYRBERRE
EIR EMm AR By el
BERRBEL X
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)
Management of Exhaust Gas Emission

The exhaust gas generated during the daily
operation and production process of the
Group mainly derives from the volatile organic
compounds (“VOCs”) in the injection molding,
extrusion and printing and other processes, the
dust in the carton production, powder, granulation
and grinding processes, and waste gas generated
during the electric welding process, oil fume
waste gas during cooking in the canteen, and
automobile exhaust generated due to the use of
vehicles. The Group has established a rigorous
management system for air pollution prevention
and control, stipulating the responsibilities of each
department in the aspect of waste gas prevention
and control. The safety technology department
is responsible for supervising and inspecting, and
provides rewards and punishment opinions and
technical guidance, so as to effectively manage
various air pollutants. In addition, the Group sets
up appropriate waste gas treatment equipment
according to different production processes
aiming at strictly complying with the applicable
laws, regulations, requirements and standards
of the State and various operation sites for the
prevention and control of air pollution, and
maintain waste gas treatment equipment based on
the national and industrial emission standards to
ensure that the operation of the equipment and
facility is normal and the emission of waste gas
is able to meet the standard. The Group has also
formulated operating procedures for various types
of exhaust gas treatment equipment to strictly
prohibit employees from operating in violation
of regulations, resulting in excessive emission of
waste gas, and to ensure the safety and health
of employees. The Group regularly repairs and
maintains the equipment. If any abnormal situation
is found, the employee must immediately report to
the management department and take appropriate
actions to prevent major environmental pollution
accidents caused by waste gas leakage. The Group
works from the source and strictly stipulate that
the VOCs content of various raw and auxiliary
materials used in the production process must
meet the national standards and requirements,
and it is strictly prohibited to purchase and use
materials containing excessive VOCs, so as to
ensure the VOCs pollutants in the exhaust gas is at
normal level.

RIG s tERERHRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Exhaust Gas Emission
(continued)

In addition to managing the exhaust gas generated
during the production process, the Group’s
pollution prevention and control management
system also covers the exhaust gas derived from
daily office operations and employee activities.
For details of emission reduction measures, please
refer to the “Energy Conservation” section of
“Management of Resource Utilisation” below.

Management of Wastewater Disposal

The Group has established a management
system for wastewater disposal based on the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China”. The Group
assigns employees to be responsible for the
treatment of industrial wastewater, monitoring
and inspecting the discharge of the production
department, and grasping and evaluating the
environmental quality. The Group sets up a
sewage treatment station within the factory.
After multiple harmless treatment procedures,
the wastewater is discharged to the local sewage
treatment plant for further disposal. The Group
also regularly cleans up the sediment in the
wastewater pool, strictly prohibit dumping waste
oil, chemicals or any material that may cause
pipe blockage into the sewer, and cooperate in
the regular repair and maintenance of sewage
disposal facilities and pipes to ensure their normal
and effective operation, so as to eliminate the
running, emitting, dripping and leakage of sewage
pipes and avoid the secondary pollution to the
environment. In addition, the Group entrusts the
storage and transportation company holding the
“Hazardous Waste Operation Permits” to assist in
the treatment of the hazardous wastewater that
cannot be treated temporarily.

1E1% 5 (&)
BRI EIE (B&)

BRFKEEE ()

BrTEBEAEBRRETMES
BEE R AR E BT 2P /é.”é
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TEEA R 2EMFTEIR
%ﬁf’f%ﬂk/ﬁ & B R E AN
RESKEBEL KIBLEE
ECERERR  REEKIERE
EMTKEEBEBIEE— TR
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Wastewater Disposal
(continued)

A large amount of waste oil was generated
as some plants underwent a major overhaul
of production equipment in the previous year.
However, the waste oil decreased since no
major overhaul was conducted during the
Year. Accordingly, the Group generated a total
of approximately 53.51 tonnes of hazardous
wastewater during the Year, representing a
decrease of approximately 11.98 tonnes or
18.29% in hazardous wastewater compared
with the previous year. Owing to an increase in
production volume and higher water consumption
of plants in the United States due to water leakage
of water pipes and taps and higher temperatures,
the Group generated a total of approximately
28,417,544.06 tonnes of non-hazardous
wastewater during the Year, representing an
increase of approximately 4,432,268.95 tonnes or
18.48% in non-hazardous wastewater compared
with the previous year.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets targets to reduce the generation of
both hazardous wastewater and non-hazardous
wastewater this year by 2% respectively when
compared with the previous year. The target for
the hazardous wastewater generation intensity has
been achieved this year. The water consumption
of plants in the United States increased due
to water leakage of water pipes and taps and
temperature issues, so the non-hazardous
wastewater production intensity increased this
year. Please refer to the table below and the
section headed “Summary of Environmental Data
and Performance” below for the relevant data.

RIG s tERERHRS
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HBEREERAEITAEHSE
& BEmAMmR L » Bt A
ERAEEMEENEEZE
KB EFER/DAI11.98ME 5L
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Wastewater Disposal
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
wastewater are as follows

= IRBRE ®

1. HIBMIBNER (&)

BAkEENEE (&)

RBREHRN FEENE S A
BEERBKNELER RO TR

2022 2021
2022 2021EE
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)
(1) (05)
Hazardous Wastewater BEEK
Total =) 53.51 65.49
Intensity’ BE 0.01 0.02
Non-Hazardous Wastewater &EZEEk
Total? 1852 28,417,544.06 23,985,275.11
Intensity’ BE! 7,907.13 7,828.28
Notes: 5% -

! The intensity is calculated based on the production

volume per million units.

2 Some plants of the Group have not kept data of non-

hazardous wastewater discharged, so they are calculated
based on the actual water consumption.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Solid Waste Disposal

The solid waste generated by the Group in its
daily operation mainly includes recyclable waste,
non-recyclable waste and hazardous waste,
which mainly derive from part of the production
processes, daily life of employees, engineering
construction, purchased materials, product
development and testing, etc.

The Group has formulated relevant management
systems to monitor and manage the process of
collection, classification, storage and disposal of
various solid waste, aiming at complying with the
applicable laws, regulations, requirements and
standards of the State and operation sites for the
prevention and control of environmental pollution
by solid waste, and following the principles
of comprehensive utilisation and reasonable
disposal of solid waste. In addition, the Group
hopes to continuously reduce the generation
of solid waste through different source waste
reduction measures and training. For instance,
the Group purchases and uses recyclable and
reusable packaging materials as much as possible,
properly store raw and auxiliary materials and
take purchase restriction measures to avoid the
generation of expired materials; we actively seek
and develop green technology, and phase out the
production process generating solid waste which
will cause serious environmental pollution; strictly
regulate the employees to operate the production
equipment according to the regulations so as to
avoid unnecessary waste; continuously educate
employees about waste classification to enhance
their awareness of environmental protection, thus
effectively improving the effectiveness of waste
management measures.

RIG s tERERHRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Solid Waste Disposal
(continued)

For the storage of all kinds of wastes, the
Group implements the principle of class-
based storage. Recyclable, non-recyclable and
hazardous wastes are classified and stored, and
the corresponding temporary storage areas are
set for different categories of wastes. At the same
time, it is forbidden to mix collection, storage,
transportation, and disposal of hazardous wastes
that are incompatible in nature but have not been
safely disposed. In addition, it is strictly forbidden
to mix hazardous waste with non-hazardous
waste for storage, so as to curb any behavior that
may pollute the environment. For the temporary
storage area of hazardous waste, the Group have
taken measures to prevent scattering, loss, leakage
and corrosion in accordance with the “Pollution
Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Storage”.
The containers of various hazardous waste are
also labeled with marks, and the containers must
be well sealed and free from spillage, so as to
avoid any chance of secondary pollution to the
environment.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Solid Waste Disposal
(continued)

The Group has engaged professional consultants
to assist in the disposal of various solid waste. The
hazardous solid waste must be handled by licensed
hazardous waste treatment service providers
promulgated by the Central People’s Government
of China. The Group have signed contracts with
hazardous waste treatment factories to report
the transfer of hazardous wastes in real time
and establish relevant information management
records in accordance with the “Measures for
the Management of Hazardous Waste Transfer”,
and it is not allowed to dump randomly and
strictly prevent any improper disposal. For the
general non-hazardous solid waste, the Group
adopts various recycling methods to increase the
utilisation rate of waste as much as possible; if
disposal is necessary, the Group also entrusts
collectors with local environmental certification for
recycling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group generated
about 272.42 tonnes of hazardous solid waste,
representing an increase of about 90.65 tonnes
or 49.87% compared with the previous year, and
about 3,607.76 tonnes of non-hazardous solid
waste, representing an increase of about 332.31
tonnes or 10.15% compared with the previous
year.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets targets to reduce the generation of
both hazardous solid waste and non-hazardous
solid waste this year by 2% when compared
with the previous year. The target for the non-
hazardous solid waste generation intensity has
been achieved this year. Owing to the update of
the hazardous waste list since the previous year,
the generation of hazardous solid waste has
increased, so the hazardous solid waste production
intensity increased this year. Please refer to the
table below and the section headed “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance” below for
the relevant data.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Solid Waste Disposal
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous solid waste by the

= IRBRE ®
1. HIBMIBNER (&)

EIRENEENEE (&)

RBREHRN FEBNESK
EEEREYIELERE RN

Group are as follows: Tk
2022 2021
20225 20214 &
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)
(8) (ig)
Hazardous Solid Waste HEEEIRREY
Total me 272.42 181.77
Intensity’ BE 0.08 0.06
Non-Hazardous Solid BEE R
Waste 2
Total e 3,607.76 3,275.45
Intensity’ BE 1.00 1.07
Notes: BT -
1 The intensity is calculated based on the production ! FERUME—BEH4NEES
volume per million units. &
2 The data for the previous year are restated to conform 2 T EEHEREIEALLERA

with the current year’s presentation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)
Management of Greenhouse Gas Emission

The greenhouse gas produced by the Group
mainly derives from the use of electricity in
offices and factories, and the fuel usage in
company’s vehicles. In view of more and more
rigorous policy on air pollution control in China,
the Group adopts low-carbon processes in the
operation and production process, reduces the
use of resources and maximises the effectiveness
of resources to eliminate resource waste and
decrease the production of greenhouse gas, aiming
at implementing the “Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
related laws and regulations. For details on various
measures to effectively utilise resources, please
refer to the “Energy Conservation” section of the
“Management of Resource Utilisation” below.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there was no
violation or non-compliance incident in relation
to environmental protection that had a significant
impact on the Group.

Management of Resources Utilisation

The Group mainly applies gasoline, diesel,
electricity, tap water, paper and other resources in
business operations. With the aim of complying
with the "“Energy Conservation Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the "“Urban Water
Conservation Management Regulations” and
related laws, regulations and policies regarding
resource conservation, and to build a low-carbon
and low-consumption operating environment, the
Group has formulated relevant internal rules and
regulations in each plant area, and continued to
identify and review the implementation of various
measures on energy conservation and emission
reductions to reduce the impact of business
activities on the environment. The Group ensures
that every employee understands the importance
of saving resources, and adopt a number of
measures to make full use of resources, maximise
their effectiveness, and avoid waste.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Energy

Conservation of Gasoline, Diesel, Natural Gas and
Refrigerants

Gasoline and diesel are mainly used for
automobiles, trucks and forklifts. The Group has
taken a number of conservation measures to
reduce the emissions of waste gas and greenhouse
gas. For instance, the driver must apply and
obtain approval before using the vehicle, and it
is also necessary to plan the route in advance.
If passengers go to the destinations which are
the same or near to each other, they will be
arranged to use the same vehicle to shorten the
driving distance and reduce the consumption of
gasoline and diesel; the driver must switch off
idling vehicles to reduce energy consumption
due to idling of the engine. The Group regularly
repairs and maintains vehicles to improve the
utilisation of energy and reduce fuel consumption
and exhaust gas caused by component failures;
we also replace old vehicles as needed to increase
energy efficiency; we encourage employees to
use public transportation or walk for commute.
The Group also concerns the carbon emissions
caused by business trips, and actively implements a
number of measures. For instance, make good use
of various communication tools to communicate
with business partners to reduce the use of
vehicles and the number of business trips, thereby
reducing the generation of greenhouse gas and
exhaust gas. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed approximately 45,213.67 liters of
gasoline, representing a decrease of approximately
55,158.89 tonnes or 54.95% compared with the
previous year. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed approximately 187,514.21 liters
of diesel, representing a decrease of approximately
55,231.99 tonnes or 22.75% compared with the
previous year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Energy (continued)

Conservation of Gasoline, Diesel, Natural Gas and
Refrigerants (continued)

Natural gas is mainly used in the glass tube
cutting and annealing production process of
the molding workshop. Natural gas is used as
required. The valve of the natural gas pipeline
will be turned off when the natural gas is not
used. The power department shall report the
consumption of natural gas on a monthly basis,
and explain the reasons if the actual consumption
exceeds the budget. The Group will inspect and
maintain natural gas transmission lines on a
regular basis to avoid unnecessary waste caused
by leakage, and leakage of natural gas may also
cause safety issues. During the Reporting Period,
the Group consumed approximately 1,328,337.12
m3 of natural gas, representing an increase
of approximately 364,954.81 m3 or 37.88%
compared with the previous year.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets targets to reduce both gasoline and
diesel consumption intensity by 2% and increase
natural gas consumption intensity by 2% this
year when compared with the previous year. In
order to reduce costs and increase efficiency, the
Group gradually changed the vehicle usage model
in the previous year, sold vehicles for functional
departments and reception, and switched to car
rental services. The consumption of gasoline and
diesel dropped further, resulting in a decrease in
their intensity. Due to the new production lines
established by the Group during the Year, the
commissioning of new production equipment,
and the increase in the consumption of natural
gas, its intensity has increased. Please refer to the
table below and the section headed “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance” below for
the relevant data.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) = IRIR(RE

:l:
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2. Management of Resources Utilisation 2. BREFEANERE (&

(continued)

Conservation of Energy (continued) Ei#95ETE (2)
Conservation of Gasoline, Diesel, Natural Gas and BOAT1E 7500 ~ 5500~ XA R
Refrigerants (continued) REGH (B
During this Reporting Period, the Group's use of RREBRRN > XEBEFEHAER
energy and Scope 1' greenhouse gas emitted are Ezﬁﬂiﬂiﬂl NEE - RERE
as follows: BIERI TR
2022 2021
20225 20215
C0: C02
equivalent equivalent
emissions emissions
Consumption ZafbiK Consumption B of i
B2 EEHHE EHE HEHHE
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)
(1) (1)
Gasoline babic 45,213.67 litres 122.43 100,372.56 litres 27177
45,213.674%# 100,372.56 A7
Diesel e 187,514.21 litres 495.64 242,746.20 litres 642.67
187,514.212% 242,746 20 %
Natural Gas AR 1,328,337.12 m* 2,556.23 963,382.31 m? 1,853.91
1,328,337.121 5 % 963,382 3111 53K
Refrigerants s 11.34 kilograms 19.56 47.62 kilograms 78.13
11.348F 4160AF
Group’s Total Emission  EEHF A48 2 3,193.86 2,846.48
Group’s Emission Intensity? EEHHEE/E 0.89 093
Notes: B 5E -

! Scope 1 refers to the greenhouse gas emissions directly !
generated by the Group’s business, including combustion
of gasoline, diesel, natural gas, refrigerants, etc.

2 The intensity is calculated based on the production 2
volume per million units.

3 The data for the previous year are restated to conform 3
with the current year’s presentation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Energy (continued)
Conservation of Electricity and Steam

The Group controls energy usage and enhances
the efficiency of resource utilisation through
daily management in the office area. The
Group promotes the use of high-efficiency
and energy-saving lamps. If the light during
the day can meet the working requirements,
the lamps must be turned off. Moreover, the
Group requires employees to check and ensure
that electrical appliances, computers and other
electrical equipment used by themselves and
their departments have been turned off when
they are off duty, and that the dust screens of
air conditioners are regularly cleaned to save
electricity. LED lighting system is set up in each
office to reduce electricity consumption.

The Engineering Department actively carried out
energy-saving reconstruction of various production
and electrical equipment in the factory area, and
implemented corrective measures of energy use
based on the load or the equipment usage to
control the electricity consumption effectiveness
of the plant. The energy saving reconstruction
of high-energy-consuming machine tools was
performed for orthopedics business, and the Group
actively checked for leakages in compressed air
pipes and various joints and repaired them in
time to prevent air compressors from operating
under air leaks. The Group replaced some ordinary
motors with permanent magnet motors; installed
power saving transformers; in the off-season of
electricity consumption, the transformers that
are not in use were reported to be stopped; and
the production plan was reasonably arranged
to achieve the purpose of energy saving
and consumption reduction. The Group also
encourages employees to reduce incorrect use of
equipment, thereby reducing unnecessary energy
consumption. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed approximately 169,540.38
megawatt hours ("MWh") of electricity,
representing an increase of approximately
26,624.03 MWh or 18.63% compared with
the previous year, mainly due to an increase in
production and household electricity consumption
arising from growing production and headcount.

RIG s tERERHRS

iﬂ 1% 5 (&)

BRERANEE (8

BOAYEETR (%)

BRI FH BT R & |

$$IR%A*EWLLE
EIE EHISERERMREA
,\,}_@ﬂ%xﬁl moRERBIEES
BEEMEEB R B RN ALLE
WRERETLIEER BBEH
BRABMAE AEEERET
THREBEEREREDRE
“BF?@%E’]* “EBEKERSE
'f%a%gjﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ/ﬁ uﬂ*ﬂ%

E@ﬁ%%%@ P MEIETA R E R
B EE LJLED,E"?EH%,%E
LUR/ViEEBE S

TRENTHRELEEYS
TE 4 R FO R 2R 1 T B A
BE R R B S WA
4R 55 2 17 A SR 165 FE B R 35 48
B » L2 1 2 8 - 5
P2 75 5 75 A5 FE 60 48 PR O£ 1T
B ABUE - M A MEHE G
REE RS EEESRRN
R R R4 DL
=B 1B R BN TR -
S [ 5 50 ) 2 i
ENEER TR BELE
r%@¢§  BET

—J u%%ﬁ@gﬁﬁ%zamo
AEBTERE TR /DAL
MERRE MR ERASNE
iERE#Z RBREHRN K
EELHFEE/149169,540.38
JKER & EFEENLY
26,624.03JK R BFB118.63% °
TEEHREEERET A
BEF EERERETHE
(AT 3 0 o

0

]]
m

121




122

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIR s tERERRS

I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Energy (continued)
Conservation of Electricity and Steam (continued)

Steam is mainly used in heating supply, air
conditioning, the sterilization process of prefilled
syringes and drying of semi-finished products
and granules, etc. The steam used by the Group
is mainly purchased from suppliers. Although the
use of steam does not produce any greenhouse
gases, it is necessary to burn fuel to produce
steam, resulting in greenhouse gas and exhaust
gas emission. Therefore, the Group takes different
measures to save the use of steam. For instance,
limit the use of air-conditioners and heating
according to seasonal and temperature change,
adjust the temperature reasonably, and it is strictly
prohibited to turn on the air-conditioners while
opening the doors and windows; close the steam
pipe valve when not using steam. The power
department is required to report the steam usage
on a monthly basis, and to explain reason under
the circumstance that the actual amount exceeds
the budget. During the Reporting Period, the
Group used approximately 154,246.66 tonnes of
steam, representing an increase of approximately
32,152.50 tonnes or 26.33 % compared with the
previous year, which was mainly attributable to the
growing production.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the
Group sets a target to decrease the consumption
of electricity and steam this year by 2%
respectively when compared with the previous
year. Owing to higher domestic electricity
consumption resulting from the increase in the
number of employees, the electricity consumption
intensity increased accordingly. During the Year,
the Group concentrated on the production of
protective clothing, masks, and other products due
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Steam was needed in
the production workshop for cooling and heating,
resulting in higher consumption of steam than
expected, and its intensity increased accordingly.
Please refer to the table below and the section
headed “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” below for the relevant data.
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2.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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= IRBRE ®

Management of Resources Utilisation 2. BEREANERE (@
(continued)
Conservation of Energy (continued) BiAYRETE ()
Conservation of Electricity and Steam (continued) BAIIEHAE I RZE R ()
During this Reporting Period, the Group's use PRREBER ZXEBFHE
of electricity and the Scope 2' greenhouse gas RFFERNEE ZRERE
("GHG") emitted are as follows: BRI TR
2022 2021
20225 2015
CO: CO:
equivalent equivalent
emissions emissions
Consumption —afbiK Consumption K of i
ERE EEHNE HRE 2EHNE
(Tonnes) (Tonnes)
(1) ()
Electricity BN 169,540.38 MWh 101,426.26 142,916.35 MWh 85,708.66
169,540.383k FL B 142,916.35 K BLBS
Steam 2 R 154,246.66 Tonnes Not applicable 122,094.16Tonnes Not applicable
154,246.66M FiER 122,094.16% TR
Group’s Total Emission  EBH NS 101,426.26 85,708.66
Group’s Emission Intensity  EEHHEEE 28.22 27.97

Notes:

! Scope 2 refers to the Group's business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased electricity
emissions, including consumption of purchased electricity.

2 Steam is produced by burning wood, plant, biomass
fuel or other energy sources in a boiler to provide heat
energy, and the exhaust gas (such as sulfur dioxide,
nitrogen oxide, dust, etc.) and greenhouse gas will be
formed during the process of burning fuel. The Group
purchases steam from suppliers. However, the suppliers
fail to provide the type and composition of fuel used
for steam production, and such information will affect
the calculation of emission coefficient of exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas, resulting in that the Group does
not have reliable information on emission coefficient to
calculate the emission of greenhouse gas and exhaust
gas. Therefore, the Group has not disclosed the relevant

data in this report.

3 The intensity is calculated based on the production

volume per million units.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Water

The Group mainly uses water sources supplied
by the government. At present, the water supply
can meet the needs of daily operation. Although
the Group has not encountered any problems in
obtaining applicable water sources during this
Reporting Period, the Group is clearly aware of
the importance of water resources to production,
construction and living. Therefore, the Group
encourages our employees to develop good
water use habits, improve their awareness of
water conservation, and hope to conduct the
most basic environmental education from the
source. Moreover, the Group actively implements
different water use measures, attempt to develop
water recycling technology, increase the reuse
rate of water resources, improve the method
of using water in operation and reduce the
discharge of wastewater, aiming at reducing the
Group's needs of water resources. All production
departments and offices regularly check the water
facilities, pipes, faucet, etc. within their area
to prevent waste of water. Once any employee
finds that the pipeline and valve are damaged
and leaking, he should immediately inform the
Maintenance Department for repair. About 50%
of the wastewater will be recycled to reduce the
generation of various cleaning wastewater in the
factory area. The condensed water produced by
the chiller and heat exchanger in the Group’s
machine room is pumped to the cooling pool
and the water treatment pool of the needle
making workshop, and the actual water saving is
calculated by two separate water meters equipped
on the water delivery pipeline, so as to save
the water cost. After treatment in the sewage
treatment center, the domestic sewage will be
recycled and used in the landscape lake in the park
as its supplementary water source, so as to save
water.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2.

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Water (continued)

The higher production volume as well as higher
water consumption of plants in the United States
due to water leakage of water pipes and taps
and higher temperature, the Group consumed a
total of approximately 28,854,603.12 tonnes of
water during the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 4,562,525.84 tonnes or
18.78% compared with the previous year.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period,
the Group sets a target to reduce the water
consumption intensity this year by 2% when
compared with the previous year. The water
consumption of plants in the United States
increased due to water leakage of water pipes
and taps and temperature issues, so the water
consumption intensity increased this year.
Please refer to the table below and the section
headed “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” below for the relevant data.

During this Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
water resources are as follows:
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Management of Resources Utilisation
(continued)

Conservation of Paper

The Group actively promotes the “paperless
office” and encourages employees to distribute
information and documents in electronic format
via the online office system so as to reduce
photocopying and printing; encourages employees
to implement the principle of “think clearly before
print”, carefully choose the documents needs to be
printed to reduce the use of paper. Employees are
required to use double-sided printing and reuses
paper as much as possible, puts the double-sided
wasted paper into the recycled paper collection
box. Moreover, the Group has established paper
procurement and requisition procedures to
effectively regulate and improve the paper-using
habits of each department. During the Reporting
Period, the Group consumed approximately 44.47
tonnes of paper, representing an increase of
approximately 9.70 tonnes or 27.90% compared
with the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to the growing production.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Being a socially responsible enterprise, protecting
the nature and the environment has become an
important part of the Group’s corporate culture.
The Group continuously identifies, evaluates,
manages and reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of the environmental management
system to enable all levels of the Group to better
understand the negative impact of resource
use habits and the business activities on the
environment. We have rooted environmental
awareness in all levels of the Group through
various policies, measures and actions, and we
require employees to pay attention to their own
behaviors and be responsible for the environment,
improve the resource use habit, and strive to
eliminate the Group's potential adverse effects on
the environment (please refer to the “Management
of Emissions” and “Management of Resource
Utilisation” sections above for details,). In the
future, the Group will continue to invest resources
in appropriate environmental protection projects,
and re-identify the source of waste generated
in the operation process and the impact on
the environment when using resources so as to
establish an environmental management system
in line with national standards. Moreover, the
Group will also increase and improve various
environmental protection facilities and ancillary
equipment, hoping to fulfill social responsibilities
and obligations during business development so
as to realise the coordinated growth of enterprise,
society and environment, and meanwhile
meeting the customers’ increasing concern for
environmental protection and contributing to
environmental protection.

RIG s tERERHRS

= IRBRE @

RIERXARR

FR—RELEEEEN®E
X REXRBRAREENS
AEECEXCHERIRM
RTEAEENRERERE
MTBEANERERNEE
REXETHHNIRBMEMH
BETE AEEFERH
st EENBRIRIEEES
B9 B B 15 0 B AR R 0 A B
EERBHER HEHMTE
REREHRERNEAERN
FEEEH  REEINERRER
HoOBRETIEBESNTA
THIREES NEETHA
ERNEE SHEREER
HERENBEAMNEE (55
MEKRFESEZ EXTHRYE
B HIEREANEE &
) o AEE S ER T E R
ERNEEMRRER TE
MMHEEEREPELEREY
WRBEKRERERFHIRIE
WEE URIFEERIE
IRIREEG E > I &
B eIk ERBIRR
KRR ERE  HEELE
ERBETETHEREMN
5 BREX - HERIRIE
MR 3 R TR E A S0 E B
MEEFPHIRFBA @A LR
BREBREREE—D o

127




128

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIR s tERERRS

I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

4,

Climate change

Climate change is making extreme weather
events more frequent and severe, often causing
catastrophic damage. Climate change is also
changing seasonal and annual patterns of
temperature, precipitation and other weather
phenomena, increasing heavy rainfall, rising
tides and flooding risks, which may cause severe
damage to assets such as buildings, warehouses
and stored goods, resulting in economic losses.
In the long term, climate change may lead to sea
level rise, long-term changes in climate patterns
of chronic heat waves (such as persistently higher
temperatures, etc.). The unprecedented crisis from
global spread of COVID-19 has created significant
challenges around the world, the risks of climate
change is still imminent. Understanding these
trends and the relationship with our business can
help the Group to prepare, analyse possible risks
and opportunities, help seize the opportunities
of potential benefits and establish the response
capacity of the Group in the long run.
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I1l. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

4,

Climate change (continued)

Climate change is a major concern of governments
around the world. Governments may change
relevant policies, laws and regulations to deal with
climate change. Therefore, the Group needs to
change internal policies and measures, increasing
the risk of facing relevant laws and regulations,
which may increase operating costs and affect
product demand. Both enterprises and society
focus on energy conservation and emission
reduction, so the Group is committed to reducing
carbon emissions and waste generated by each
production plant and office. The Group reduces
the consumption of electricity, water, paper and
gasoline used by vehicles from the source and
follows the principle of Use Less, Fully Exploit,
Seek Alternatives, Fix and Reuse, Rethink, through
daily management and strengthens education and
publicity, and actively takes technically feasible
and economically reasonable measures, so as to
reduce operating costs, reduce carbon emissions
and waste, and actively explore new models of
low carbon development. At the same time, the
Group has formulated scientific reasonable and
realistic goals, indicating that the Company has
a directional and purposeful plan for reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, and is prepared in
advance to respond to national-level regulatory
policies of climate change. Besides, the ESG targets
of the Group provide benchmarks and future
directions for the annual review of progress in
greenhouse gas reduction and energy transition,
and motivate more efficient actions to address
climate change.
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Employees are the Group’s most valuable assets. The
Group strives to provide a non-discrimination, equal,
harmonious and safe workplace. The human resources
strategies are formulated for the long-term benefit
of the Group and take into account the sustainability
strategies in setting commensurate salary and benefits,
providing staff training for personal and career
development, establishing an equal and competitive
mechanism to regulate the process for employees’
promotion and advancement, so as to create incentives
to attract, develop, retain and reward talents. The
Group’s human resources policies vary by locations to
comply with the local labour laws and regulations.

The Group has strictly complied with the relevant laws
and regulations on employment and labour of Mainland
China and Hong Kong, including the "Constitution
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Minors”,
the “Provisions on the Special Protection on Minor
Workers”, the “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour”, the "Law of the People's Republic
of China on the Protection of Women’s Rights and
Interests”, the “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Regulations on Work
Related Injury Insurances”, the “Trade Union Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Employment
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Labour Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Disabled Persons”, the “Individual Income Tax Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Implementing
Regulations of the Labour Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China”, the "“Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases Law of the People’'s Republic
of China” and the "Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China” of Mainland China, laws
and regulations of the local government of the United
States and other applicable requirements and standards.
Relevant information will be described in detail in the
sections headed “Employment”, “Health and Safety”
and “Labour Standards” below.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

Employment

The Group has established an internal management
system which specifies the requirements for
recruitment, promotion, dismissal, working hours,
rest periods, compensation, welfare and other
benefits.

Recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
equal opportunity, diversity and
antidiscrimination

The Group has always advocated equal job
opportunities and respects personal privacy. The
Group always insists “talent-oriented” in its
recruitment process, and has formulated relevant
management policy to regulate the recruitment
process and selected talents from multiple
channels in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations of each business location. These laws
and regulations make clear requirements for
employees’ remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
vacation, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits
and other benefit. The department head defines
the job responsibilities and requirements of each
position, and the human resources department will
screen applicants according to the requirements.
The appropriate candidates would be selected
based on their work experience, professional
knowledge, academic background, communication
skill to provide equal job opportunities, and
regardless of their race, gender, age, nationality,
religion or marital status. The policy applies to all
phases of the employment relationship, including
but not limited to hiring, promotion, performance
appraisal, training, personal development and
termination. The Group handles the dismissal of
employees and compensates them in accordance
with the local laws and regulations.
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Employment (continued)

Recruitment, promotion, dismissal,
equal opportunity, diversity and
antidiscrimination (continued)

In order to enhance employees’ work quality
and efficiencies, the Group conducts periodic
and systematic performance appraisal and fairly
assesses the level of awards, salary increment
and/or promotion recommendations based on a
number of criteria, including working experience,
seniority, knowledge and skills, performance,
contributions, etc. During the performance
appraisal process, the department head
communicates and discusses with the employees
and sets up work goals and self-development plan
for the coming year, and arranges appropriate
training programs for employees to develop their
potential.

On the basis of equality, the Group hopes to
identify talents who are committed and dedicated
to work. The Group has confidence and high
hopes on those employees who are willing to
take responsibility, keep learning, continuously
improving their abilities and willing to move
forward with the Group.
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(continued)

1. Employment (continued) 1. EfE @&
Recruitment, promotion, dismissal, BE-EH HE - FEHE -
equal opportunity, diversity and BTIERRIEER &)

antidiscrimination (continued)

At the end of the Reporting Period, the number of PREBPR AEBENEE
the Group’s employees was 11,633 (2021: 11,123) ANEA11,633% (20214 ¢
and its distribution is as follows: 11,123%) " ESMBRAT
E
2022 2021

2022FE 20214 E

Gender 1% 5

Male B 56.27% 56.21%
Female 7% 43.73% 43.79%
Employment Type B£8R

Full-time 28 100.00% 100.00%
Age Group FHe AR

18-30 18-30 37.64% 35.04%
31-45 31-45 49.45% 50.67%
46-60 46-60 11.82% 13.23%
>60 >60 1.09% 1.06%
Geographical Region ith&

Mainland China A [ g A 93.35% 93.32%
The United States EE 6.62% 6.66%
Other H1h 0.03% 0.02%
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(continued)

1. Employment (continued) 1. EfE @&
Recruitment, promotion, dismissal, BE-EH HE - FEHE -
equal opportunity, diversity and BTIERRIEER &)

antidiscrimination (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's average RHREHHR KEREETS
monthly employee turnover rate is as follows: BAMKELN TR
2022 2021

20225 E 2021 E

Gender 1451

Male B 2.99% 1.97%
Female pogcs 2.56% 2.10%
Age Group FHe4ER

18-30 18-30 4.12% 2.68%
31-45 31-45 1.90% 1.60%
46-60 46-60 2.47% 1.99%
>60 >60 2.57% 1.83%
Geographical Region HE

Mainland China =eyElasp:ul 2.86% 2.01%
The United States ESE| 1.98% 2.27%
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

Employment (continued)

Remuneration, welfare and other
Compensation

The Group conducts internal reviews on all levels
of employee remuneration on a regular basis,
and endeavors to establish a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system based on the
latest compensation data in the industry. The staff
remuneration level is determined based on each
position’s requirements in terms of knowledge,
skills, experience and education background. All
production plants and offices determine employee
benefits according to the situation at their
locations, and some production plants and offices
implement remuneration system that provides both
salaries and performance-based bonuses.

The basic remuneration of employees includes
salaries, overtime pay, various allowances and
bonuses. The employees in the mainland China
also enjoy other benefits, including employee
dormitories, canteens, employee shuttle
service, festive lucky money packets and gifts,
Women's Day gifts, hospitalization medicare,
physical examination, student grant for children
of employees, etc. In addition to providing
basic medical insurance and life insurance for
American employees, Argon Medical also provides
educational assistance and employee assistance
programs to subsidise employees’ continuous
learning and provide problem assessment and
professional consulting services for them and their
immediate family members.
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Employment (continued)

Remuneration, welfare and other
Compensation (continued)

The Group has been supporting the rehabilitation
program for the disabled. During the Reporting
Period, it hired approximately 800 employees with
physical disabilities to arrange jobs suitable for
their abilities and skills, hoping that they would
be able to support themselves. The Group will
send condolences to disabled employees who
have difficulties in life every year to reduce the
burden on the family and society. It has established
a special office for disabled employees to be
responsible for the daily management of disabled
employees, as well as a psychological counseling
room to provide psychological counseling to
disabled employees. Besides, the Group has
established free meal reception windows and
dormitories for disabled employees in the canteen.
The dormitories are equipped with televisions,
wireless internet, heating, fans and other facilities.
The Group pays attention to the travel issues of
disabled employees, and provides them with free
shuttles, builds barrier-free passages in production
workshops, dormitories, canteens and other
places, and installs handrails on stairs to allow
them to travel “barrier-free”.

In accordance with the local labour laws and social
security laws and regulations, the Group provides
social security benefits for all employees. For
example, the Group contributes to various social
security scheme (including endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
work injury insurance and maternity insurance)
and housing provident fund for the employees in
mainland China and contributes to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for Hong Kong employees.
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Employment (continued)

Remuneration, welfare and other
Compensation (continued)

The Group attaches importance to employees’
health and encourages work-life balance, and
protects their rights of rest days and holidays in
accordance with the local labour laws. In order
to strengthen the cohesion among employees,
enhance their sense of belonging and reduce their
work stress, the Group organises various types of
leisure activities, including basketball, badminton,
football and singing competition, outreach
activities, etc.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group attaches importance to employees’
health and work-life balance and protects the
employees’ entitlement to rest days and holidays.
Employees’ work hours are set in compliance with
local labour laws. All employees are entitled to
rest days and holidays, for example, annual leaves,
marriage leaves, maternity leaves, funeral leaves
and work injury leaves.

Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

The Group did not reduce the employee benefits or
lay off employees during the COVID-19 pandemic
outbreak in 2022. For the sake of employees’
health and safety, the Group has formulated an
emergency plan for epidemic prevention and
control, and has adopted a number of epidemic
prevention measures. Please refer to the "Health
and Safety” section below for details.
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Health and Safety

The Group always pays attention to the health of
its employees and workplace safety and recognizes
that the corporate itself is the body responsible
for production safety. It should adhere to the
philosophy of “people-oriented and safety first”
and assume the responsibility to prevent and avoid
occupational hazards. To comply with the relevant
local safety production laws and regulations, the
Group has formulated relevant safety management
systems and emergency incident plans with
reference to the production environment of each
plant, and provide effective safety management
mechanisms and incident handling guidelines to
prevent, control, and eliminate the loss caused by
the emergency incidents and ensure the safety of
the employees. Employees at all levels will sign the
safety responsibility statements, and follow strictly
the requirement as stated thereon.

Safety Production Structure

To comply with the Production Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China and relevant local laws
and regulations and to manage production safety
more effectively, the companies in mainland China
formulated management regimes in respect of
work safety, including a management system for
work safety target, accountability system for work
safety, management system for identification and
evaluation of hazard sources, management system
for occupational health, management system for
fire safety, and established safety management
departments. The safety management departments
are responsible for organising the formulation and
assessment of annual safety production targets
of all functional departments and companies and
organising trainings to ensure that all employees
clearly understand their own safety responsibilities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

2.

Health and Safety (continued)
Safety training

Training is closely related to safe workplace and
occupational health. The Group prepares an annual
safety training plan based on the actual situation
of each department. The Group enhances the
employee’s awareness on occupational health and
safety, raises their consciousness and improves
their professional skills, especially for those job
positions with significant potential safety hazards,
and enable them to perform their duties in a safe
environment, by providing an all-round safety
training program and explaining to their employees
about the enterprise development strategy.
Employees have to report to the management
immediately when incident occurs or be aware
of any potential hazards. Employees are required
to undergo various types of machine operation
training, understand the production process and
guidelines of the production department, the
operation technology of each facility, and accept
safety education from the production department
and team. In order to strengthen employees’
occupational safety awareness, the Group regularly
organises job technical training to ensure that
employees can meet the safety standards in terms
of thinking, knowledge and technology. During
the Reporting Period, the companies in mainland
China organised a number of training courses on
safety, including the training on establishment
of efficient emergency management systems of
enterprises, training on identification and control
of hazard sources, training on adverse events of
medical equipment, fire safety knowledge, training
on occupational disease and health, training for
health officers, operation and safety regulations of
each production process and post, emergency drill
for all kinds of safety accidents (such as handling
drills for accidents related to the use of hazardous
chemicals, fire accidents, accidents of special
equipment, environmental accidents, accidents
related to mechanical injury). Staff of special work
types (e.g. electricians, welders, etc.), must receive
relevant professional safety training and possess
valid license from the government authority before
they are put to work. The Group will continue to
provide training to minimise occupational health
and safety risks during the production process.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

2.

Health and Safety (continued)

Safe Working Environment

To implement the safety production direction of
“safety-foremost with prevention-oriented and
comprehensive treatment”, the safety technology
department organises regular safety meetings
to continuously discuss issues related to safety
production and employees’ occupational health
with relevant departments. In addition, the
safety technology department is responsible
for monitoring and management of hazards to
ensure that safety hazards in the production
workshop can be identified in a timely manner,
take appropriate measures to eliminate or control
risks, and post occupational hazard notification
cards in the production plants to remind and
warn employees of various sources of hazards
and related preventive measures, so as to ensure
the employees are working in a safe environment.
The engineering department is responsible for
the maintenance of production machines. In
case of fault, it is necessary to report for repair
immediately to ensure that the employees work
in a safe environment. In order to ensure that the
machinery and equipment are in good condition to
reduce the risk of safety accidents, the engineering
department regularly inspects the production
machinery and equipment and fire-fighting
facilities (including fire extinguishers, fire hoses,
etc.). If abnormal conditions are found, immediate
repairs must be arranged.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

Occupational health of employees

In accordance with the applicable local laws
and regulations related to safety production and
prevention and control of occupational diseases,
the Group established management policies related
to occupational health, labour protective supplies,
etc., and constantly improve it to protect the
health and rights of workers. The Group provides
employees with labour protective supplies (such
as masks, protective gloves, protective clothing,
goggles, earmuffs, safety shoes, etc.) that
meet national standards, supervise and educate
employees to wear and use the same according
to regulations, and set up strict safety work and
fire safety guidelines. Since the production process
involves chemical substances and noise that can
affect the employee’s health, some companies
in mainland China engage qualified agencies
to inspect the occupational hazards of each job
position periodically. The inspection covers dust,
carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides, noise, etc. The
inspection results of noise in a small number of
job positions failed to meet the requirements of
occupational exposure limits.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

2.

Health and Safety (continued)

Argon Medical

To ensure that employees are equipped with
sufficient knowledge and skills to carry out their
work safely, Argon Medical organised pieces of
training on standard operating procedures of all
production processes, procedures for assessment
of health hazards, procedures for wearing
protective clothing, protection of private health
information, risk management procedures, disaster
recovery plans, and others during the Reporting
Period. Argon Medical developed emergency
plans for various types of emergencies (such as
environmental accidents, fire, gas leakage, and
others), specifying the responsibilities of each
department and the corresponding emergency
measures, to effectively and quickly deal with
emergencies to ensure the safety of employees
at the accident site. Argon Medical sets up the
accident reporting mechanism. In the case that
accidents occur on employees during work,
relevant employees are required to complete the
medical authorisation form, and the employees
will be sent to medical institutions for treatment
immediately. The employees’ supervisors and
those who witness the accidents are required to
complete the relevant forms to record the process
of the accident and to provide relevant measures
to prevent similar accident from happening in the
future, so as to ensure the safety of employees.
Besides, in order to provide their employees with
a drug-free, alcohol-free, smoke-free and anti-
violent working environment, Argon Medical sets
out in the employee handbook about the work
rules policies and disciplinary actions for violations
of the rules.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

2.

Health and Safety (continued)

In respect of the outbreak of COVID-19, for the
sake of employees’ health and safety, the Group
has implemented various preventive measures
according to the actual situation of different
business locations, and details are as follows:

e Launched COVID-19 prevention and control
policy, and set up epidemic prevention and
control team to cope with the situation
of possible spread of the COVID-19 in the
offices, production plants, dormitories and
canteens;

e Issued notices of epidemic prevention from
time to time to remind employees to take
prevention measures against epidemic;

e  Conducted sterilization in the entire factory
area, including offices, production workshops,
dormitories, canteens, washrooms, etc. and
keep sterilization record;

e  Strictly controlled the access of personnel
to the production plant area. All employees
and visitors must wear masks, measure body
temperature, fill in personal health conditions
form and sanitize their hands and ensure
those personnel access to the production
plant area do not have any suspected
symptoms of infection;

e  Ensured sufficient stock of the COVID-19
prevention materials such as thermometers,
disinfection sprayers, hand sanitizers,
masks, medical gloves, ultraviolet lamps for
disinfection;
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(continued)

2. Health and Safety (continued) 2.

Employees must wear mask at work and be
aware of hand hygiene;

e Distributed mask user manual to employees
to ensure that employees use masks correctly
in order to effectively prevent the spread of
epidemic;

e  Cancelled all gatherings and reduce the time
of staying outside during the severe period of
epidemic; and

e  Tried not to hold meetings, tried to use cloud
office, WeChat, telephone, SMS and other
electronic communication methods, and
reminded employees to maintain safe distance
from others.

During the Reporting Period, the number of lost
working days due to work injury is as follows:
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2022 2021
20225 E 2021 E

Lost Working Days due to A TBBLXTEHE
Work Injury
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

2. Health and Safety (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the number and rate

RIG s tERERHRS

M- EEREIER @
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RBREHRN FEERTTH

of work-related fatalities are as follows: WA RLEERNTER
2022 2021 2020
20224 [F 2021EE 2020 E
Work-related fatalities; RITHHET :
— No. of staff - A¥ 1 person - 1 person
1A - 1A
— Rate s 0.01% - 0.01%

3. Development and Training

An excellent corporate team is the most important
for the sustainable and long-term business
development of the Group. Therefore, we discover
and cultivate professional talents through strict
recruitment systems, standards, and procedures,
and introduced competition mechanisms We also
encourage employees to continue their education
and lifelong learning. In addition to meeting
the needs of business development, the Group
also improves the quality, professional skills, and
knowledge of its employees through continuous
training.
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IRIR s tERERRS

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

3.

Development and Training (continued)

Newly recruited employees in the mainland China
must participate in induction training. The training
aims to introduce the Group’s background and
business, corporate culture and operation model,
industry knowledge, organisational structure,
employee handbook, rules and regulations,
and operational safety, etc. They must pass an
assessment before they can be put to work. In
addition to basic training, the Group also provides
employees with skills training, professional
training and management training according to
the requirements of different positions. Senior
management personnel are provided with training
covering legal knowledge and management skills.
Middle management personnel are provided with
training in the fields of engineering technology
and quality control. General salesperson are
provided with training on product knowledge,
sales knowledge and legal training related to work
risks. For production employees, the main focus
of the training content is production operation
skills and safety training. The training is mainly
in the form of lectures and online self-study.
In addition, employees must also participate in
three-level safety training to enable employees
to understand the relevant production safety
laws and regulations of the state, learn safety
knowledge, acquaint themselves with the key
safety production work of each position (please
refer to the “Health and Safety” section below for
details of workplace safety training). The Group
hopes to lay a solid foundation for the long-term
development of employees by enabling employees
to master professional theories and possess
professional knowledge and new knowledge for
overcoming challenges ahead. Argon Medical
provides employees with hazard reporting
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

3.

Development and Training (continued)

training, which includes employee responsibilities,
different components of the hazard reporting
plan, understanding of various hazard reporting
labels and where to find relevant materials for
hazard reporting, etc., and the purpose is to
enhance the employees’ safety awareness. During
the Reporting Period, the companies in mainland
China provided employees with new hire induction
training, training on the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, training
on finance, training on the Seven Habits of Highly
Effective People, training on team development,
training on bidding, training on newly developed
products, training on quality management (please
refer to the “Product Responsibility” section
below for details), training on the management of
work safety and employees’ occupational health
(please refer to the “Health and Safety” section
below for details), etc. Argon Medical provided
employees with training on environmental
protection, supplier management, product quality
management, human resources, and other aspects,
such as pollution control philosophy, hazardous
and non-hazardous waste management, supplier
qualification and approval procedures, inspection
and testing, quality system manual, good
documentation standards, talent selection, and
development.
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(continued)

3. Development and Training (continued) 3. BRRIEIN (&
During the Reporting Period, the percentage of the RREBRN > XEENZE
Group's employees trained’ is as follows: BEEDLUW TR
2022 20213

20225 E 2021 F3

Gender 1431

Male B4 43.10% 50.64%

Female 7% 57.36% 64.90%

Employee Category Hi&R4HE5!

Senior management SR EIEE 84.51% 59.04%

Middle management FREIRE 59.71% 51.67%

Ordinary staff ZEET 48.60% 57.08%

During the Reporting Period, the average training RREBRR AEERENFE

hours? per the Group's employee are as follows: S LIS G T

2022 20213
20225 F 20214 E3

Gender 14 51

Male B 7.99 8.67

Female 2z 9.34 10.50

Employee Category H4R4E 5

Senior management =R EIEE 24.49 18.80

Middle management RiREEE 17.31 15.75

Ordinary staff Z@EET 8.18 9.19

Notes: Mok -

1 “The percentage of employees trained” refers to the ! ZINETHDL RIEAER
number of the Group's employees trained during the RREHAZIINEES ABBRIU
Reporting Period divided by the sum of employees of the TEBFREBEABKIERSE
Group at the end of the year and the resigned employees BAPRE R 2 B A\ BUAEA] o

during the Reporting Period.

2 “The average training hours” refers to the number of ? MEEZIISE 2IEREER
training hours provided by the Group to the employees REHRNRESRMEEINNE
within the Reporting Period divided by the sum of REEUAEBRFRES AH
employees of the Group at the end of the year and the BREmEHEANERES ABE
resigned employees during the Reporting Period. Ao

3 The data for the previous year are restated to conform 3 TEESEESEIEALEA
with the current year’s presentation. iRo
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

(continued)

4.

Labour Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and protects
labour rights and interests, and do not allow to
hire child labour and forced labour. The Group
examines the identification documents of the
candidates in the hiring process to prevent
employment of child labour. The Group also strictly
implements various measures to prevent any form
of forced labour; for example, labour contract is
signed by the employee on a fair and voluntary
basis, ensure employees do not need to bear any
onboarding costs, never deduct wages, benefits
or property of employees, detention of employee’s
identity card or other identification documents
is strictly prohibited, any form of physical abuse,
assault, body search or insult, or forcing an
employee to work by means of violence, threat
or unlawful restriction of personal freedom are
all forbidden. Employees’ consent for working
overtime is required to avoid involuntary overtime
work, and the employees are compensated as
appropriate in accordance with the applicable
labour laws and regulations. In addition, the legal
affairs department regularly reviews employment
regulations to ensure that the Group's human
resources management policies comply with the
relevant labour laws and regulations. During this
reporting period, the Group did not involve in any
violation of the laws and regulations related to
child and forced labour.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there were no
confirmed violations of laws and regulations
related to employment, labour practices, health
and safety and labour standards with significant
impact on the Group.
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V. OPERATING PRACTICES

1.

Supply Chain Management

The Group hopes to establish long-term and stable
strategic partnership with competent suppliers;
and develop together with suppliers on an equal
and win-win basis. Before the Group concludes
contracts with our major business partners, the
Group insists on performing an assessment about
the quality and ethical standards of our business
partners based on different criteria. The Group
has developed strict internal rules and regulations,
an evaluation system for new supplier selection,
alternative suppliers selection and relationship
continuity; and a “list of qualified suppliers” is
established. When selecting new suppliers, the
Group needs to assess the suppliers’ qualifications,
management systems, production equipment, etc.
After the trial use of the new raw materials found
acceptable, the Group will select the best suppliers
to continue the relationship; and we will require
the suppliers to have accredited qualification and
good internal management system, stable quality,
punctual delivery, legal compliance, possess the
required professional technical competence/quality,
etc. This is to ensure that suppliers are competitive
and the products and services provided by them
are of good quality. We enter into annual contracts
and long-term quality standard agreements with
critical suppliers in order to ensure stable quality of
materials.

Argon Medical also maintains the list of qualified
suppliers and the policy on supplier qualifications
and selection. The list of qualified suppliers is
reviewed and assessed at least once every year
and to decide whether to keep the supplier on
the list. The assessment criteria included the
quality of products, and the punctuality of supplies
delivery, etc. Besides, Argon Medical conducts
onsite vendor visits and inspect the raw materials
and products. The number of onsite visits will be
increased if the supplier is new to the company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

1.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the number and
geographical distribution of the suppliers that have
business with the Group are as follows:
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2022 2021
20224 [F 2021 fE
Country E=x
China Ho 7] 2,274 2,581
The United Stated eS| 1,283 979
Other countries HBER 98 102
Product Responsibility EmEE

“Self-improvement, Innovation and Development,
Keep Improving, and Pursuit of Excellence” are the
corporate spirit of the Group. The Group adheres
to the quality policy of “Meeting and Striving to
Exceed the Greatest Needs of Customers”, and
by monitoring the process of product quality and
customer service, it maintains a good relationship
with customers, communicate to ensure that
customer needs and expectations are understood
and met, and hopefully to customer satisfaction,
and to make continuous improvements to its
products and services.
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V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.
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Product Responsibility

Management of Product Quality

The Group is committed to satisfying customers
with quality products. With technological
advancement and improved living standards,
customers are increasingly demanding for product
quality. Therefore, the Group implements effective
quality control and keeps improving product
quality. Employees themselves are experts in their
jobs, and their wisdom, valuable experience, and
advice on quality improvement play a significant
role for products. The companies in Mainland
China hold monthly quality meetings attended
by middle and senior management personnel
to review and study the problems the Group
encountered during the production and operation
process. Through the internal review or invitation
of external review for departments of production,
research and development, quality, sales and other
departments, the Group will develop relevant
improvement measures for the problems found.
The Group does not conduct animal testing for its
products.

Argon Medical has a quality management system,
prepares the relevant quality control manual
and index for the product production processes
and different stages in accordance with the
requirements under 1SO13485 and the standards
of the U.S. Food and Drug Administration and
the Public Health Agency of Canada to design,
develop and manufacture products in compliance
with the requirements of such standards, so as
to ensure that the quality of products is in line
with the international standards. The corporate
management team of Argon Medical sets out the
quality policy for the company and communicates
with employees at all levels on a regular basis.
The quality policy emphasises on how employees
collaborate closely with their customers and
understand the customers’ requirements on
products, so as to provide better products, and
deliver and fulfill the orders punctually. The
customer satisfaction stems from each employee’s
persistence on product quality.
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2.

Product Responsibility (continued)

Management of Product Quality

The Group believes that employee quality has
a positive impact on product quality, thereby
regularly providing training on product quality
management. During the Year, the training
organised by domestic companies in the PRC
includes post-operation management procedures
of quality personnel, Good Pharmacovigilance
Practice, the Measures for the Reporting and
Monitoring of Adverse Drug Reactions, the
Measures for the Supervision and Administration
of Drug Distribution, and others. During the Year,
the training organised by Argon Medical includes
quality system manual, verification of software in
quality system, training on inspection and testing,
quality records, and sample retention, so as to
ensure that the quality inspectors possess the latest
skill and knowledge. The Group also hopes that
employees can gain a sense of satisfaction and
accomplishment at work, seize every opportunity
to improve the product quality with the Group
together and move towards a higher quality goal.

Management of Customer Service

If a customer finds that there is a problem with
the quality of the product or the product does not
meet its needs, the customer can process their
request through our after-sales service mechanism
and the problematic product could be returned
to us according to the Product Returns Process.
Besides, when we receive customer complaints
about our products, we will follow the Feedback
and Compliant Processing Procedures to improve
the quality of our products.
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Product Responsibility (continued)

Management of Customer Service
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the number of
products and service-related complaints received
by the Group is as follows:

EmBE (@

EFRIRBEE (#B)

RSN FEBZERR
EmkRENRFHENOT
x:

2022 2021
20224 [F 2021 fE
Products and BREBRRERKRBENKRT
service-related
complaints received 8,867 6,753
Recall of Products B ZE im

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
have goods sold or shipped by the Group that
need to be recalled for safety and health reasons.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy
Policies

Privacy and confidentiality is one of the core
values of the Group. Customer information will be
handled with due care and confidentially. As far
as any confidential information obtained through
business relationships is concerned, unless required
by law or professional authority or duty, employees
cannot disclose any information to third parties
without prior appropriate authorisation.

Maintenance and Protection of
Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights,
and employees are not allowed to own or use
copyrighted materials without the permission of
the copyright owner.
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V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2.

Product Responsibility (continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there was no
identified violations related to goods and services
with a significant impact on the Group, and we
have not received any complaints about violations
of customer privacy, loss of customer information
and breach of intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining high ethical standards is one of the
core values of the Group. The Group adopts
a zero-tolerance attitude towards all kinds of
corruption, bribery and extortion. In order to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations of
each operating location, the Group has formulated
an employee handbook or related rules and
regulations to strictly regulate the behavior of
employees, and stipulate the improper solicitation,
acceptance of bribes or other illegal benefits (such
as property, banquet activities), etc., and stated
clearly the severe penalties in case of violations.
The Group demands all employees to build a habit
of strictly abiding by the rules and regulations, and
eliminate all bribery and/or corruption offences.
For employees who violate the company’s code
of conduct, the company will impose disciplinary
action or punishment of dismissal. During the
Reporting Period, the Group organized “Reshaping
Responsibility Missions and Practicing the Three
Hearted Culture” for employees, implemented
the Group’s political, ideological and work spirit,
further strengthened corporate governance,
standardized employee behavior, and avoided
various risks. It includes the "WEGO Ten Articles”,
which includes anti-bribery, preventing illegal
transactions and other violations; and the Group
requires employees to sign the “"WEGO Ten
Articles” commitment letter. These measures show
the Group’s determination to combat corruption
and uphold integrity. We hope to contribute to
building a clean and honest social environment.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

3. Anti-corruption (continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, there was no legal
litigation involving corruption of the Group or its
employees.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a good corporate citizen, the Group proactively
participates in social welfare and donation activities.
During the Reporting Period, Argon Medical sponsored
a number of funds or charity activities, such as fire
safety education activities, sports competitions, history
museums, etc., supported students through tutoring
and scholarships and offered grants for educational
research. The Group has always operated and paid
taxes in accordance with the law, and spared no effort
to help resolve local employment pressures. The Group
prepares for employees to plan well after retirement
and provide social insurance benefits for all employees.
The Group has always maintained a good operating
environment and development order, and have made
certain contributions to maintaining social stability and
building a harmonious community.
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VII.ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA + -IEBEHERRBPE
SUMMARY

Unit 2022 2021°
B 20224 2021EES
Greenhouse Gas Emission?
BERREHNE
Scope 1"
EE—"
Total Tonnes 3,193.86 2,846.48
e i
Intensity* Tonnes 0.89 0.93
BE ]
Scope 2%
#HE_2
Total Tonnes 101,426.26 85,708.66
e i
Intensity* Tonnes 28.22 27.97
BE U]
Air Emission
BRIENE
Nitrogen oxides Kilograms 3,911.31 2,699.84
&1ty N
Sulfur oxides Kilograms 3.68 5.38
=Kl N
Particulate matters Kilograms 290.20 193.46
ERY NI
Hazardous Waste Generated
BEEBNMELEE
Wastewater:
BEK
Total Tonnes 53.51 65.49
e i
Intensity* Tonnes 0.01 0.02
BE U]
Solid Waste:
EIR2EEY) .
Total Tonnes 272.42 181.77
me i
Intensity* Tonnes 0.08 0.06
BE ]
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VII.LENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA +-IBIEEERIRFE »)
SUMMARY (continued)

158

Unit 2022 2021°
Bl 20225 F 2021 ES
Non-Hazardous Waste Generated
BEBVELE

Wastewater:

BEK :
Total Tonnes 28,417,544.06 23,985,275.11
ne M
Intensity* Tonnes 7,907.13 7,828.28
BE ]

Solid Waste:

ERREY) .
Total Tonnes 3,607.76 3,275.45
ne i
Intensity* Tonnes 1.00 1.07
BE ]

Packaging Materials Used
for Finished Products

KA mPr AR RERE
Total Tonnes 25,694.50 24,700.90
me i
Intensity* Tonnes 7.15 8.06
BE U]

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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VII.LENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA + -IBIEEERRFE »)
SUMMARY (continued)

Unit 2022 2021°
Efil 20225 E 20215 E°
Energy and Water Resources
Consumption
RERRKERERE

Electricity:

B
Total MWh 169,540.38 142,916.35
we KRB
Intensity* MWh 47.17 46.64
nE KRB

Steam:
Total Tonnes 154,246.66 122,094.16
ne U
Intensity* Tonnes 42.92 39.85
nE i

Gasoline:

A
Total litres 45,213.67 100,372.56
we NI
Intensity* litres 12.58 32.76
BE R

Diesel:

Z I
Total litres 187,514.21 242,746.20
ne NI
Intensity* litres 52.18 79.23
BE N

Natural Gas:

AR
Total m? 1,328,337.12 963,382.31
ne AR
Intensity* m? 369.61 314.43
BE AR

Refrigerants:
%210
Total Kilograms 11.34 47.62
ne NI
Intensity* Kilograms 0.003 0.02
nE NI

Water Resources:

KER
Total Tonnes 28,854,603.12 24,292,077.28
we U]
Intensity* Tonnes 8,028.74 7,928.42
nE i
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VII.ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Notes:

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Scope 1 refers to the greenhouse gas emissions directly
generated by the Group’s business, including combustion of
gasoline, diesel, natural gas, refrigerants, etc.

Scope 2 refers to the Group's business “indirect energy” GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased electricity.

The abovementioned carbon emissions are calculated with
reference to the emission factors published by the “China
Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors” issued by the
Climate Change Department of the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC and the “Reporting Guidance on
Environmental Key Performance Indicators” issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The intensity is calculated based on the production volume per
million units.

Some data for the previous year are restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation.
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N BEBS

BFRERAR
(BiE - HERE ARSI

THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG E1p
LIMITED
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—MRiE
RA A MIE IR &SI =F
A. Environmental
A. IRIR
Aspect A1 Emissions
BEA1 HE Y
General Disclosure Information on: 107-117
— ik B EHBERARERBI BRI MBS -BER
EEBREYNELSHN
(a) the policies; and
() BR; &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
(b) BTHETABEARENHRAZERRINE
B
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 112, 116, 120,
123, 157-158
FABENIERALY  HIRWREE R HRE B IS o
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 120, 123, 157
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
FEAMIEREAT.2 B (EE) kEREE (FEE2) AERBHRE CUHE
B RWER BE MUSESEN  FIERM
H) o
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 112, 116, 157

B SR AE IS 1RA1 .3

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FFEEAEREEYEE LU & WNEA) ZBE (1
NEeEE8BM -§ERMTE) o
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG 5| ) (%

162

LIMITED (continued)

General

Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page

—RRIEE

R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH

A. Environmental (continued)
A. IR (&)

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 112, 116, 158
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

FEENIERA LY FELERSEEYSEE QUESE) K (WER) Z2E
MAFE“M.AE Shst &) o

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 109-110,
achieve them. 117-123

FRAMISIEATS WA UNHIREE R A EDEEERAMERIEN
TR

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 110-116
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

FRGENIERAT6  HWMEREERBEEEYN G L KM PAET LAY
BERIR RS ER S LB RPTERENAI P BR o

Aspect A2 Use of Resources

[EEA2 BiRER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 117-126
energy, water and other raw materials.

— Rz BE ERFERER (BIEER  KREMEME) K-

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg. 120, 123, 159

B SR AR IS IRA2. 1

electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

RENEDNER R HEEER WE - RIOH) 25
2 UKEEE) REBE MUSEEBEU -8BR
ﬁﬂu‘i’%) °
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LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
A. Environmental (continued)
A. IRIf (&)
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit 125, 159

of production volume, per facility).
RSB AENIETRA2.2 MEKEREE USEEBEN -SEXRME) o

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 118-123
steps taken to achieve them.

RS ENIEREA2.3 HMPFIEI LM REANaER R AEIEEERM
PREXBO A BR

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 124-125
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

FARENIERA2.4 HISKREGER KR LRI B EAREE U] LA K
Wk B R ER S BRI P BR o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in 158
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

FEENIERA2S HEmFAASEMENRE (UMEsHE) & (WER)
FEBAEE-
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LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
A. Environmental (continued)
A. IRIf (&)
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
[EEA3 RIRRRAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant impact on 127
the environment and natural resources.
— AR EE BEZETAHRIERRAEREHNERNTENER -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 127

environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

B B AR IETRA3 HWMEREHHRERRABERNEARAZE RBERE
EIEAHTEENITE -

Aspect A4 Climate Change
[EmEA4 RIZE1E
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 128-129

climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

— AR R B REHEERIEGHETAELERENEAR
EAERAE ERIBUR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues 128-129

which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

FEENIERAL1 HIEEEKIEGHETAELERENEXARIEAER
EH KEHTH-
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LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
B. Social
B. &
Aspect B1 Employment
[EEB1 B3
General Disclosure Information on: 130-137, 149
— Rz BE BN EE BERSH  TIERE B 5%
2 Zulb - RIERUKREMEFEREF R !
(a) the policies; and
(@) HE; &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
(b) BTHETABEARENHRAZERRINE
Kto
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 133
example, full-or part-time), age group and
geographical region.
FRAEMISEBT.Y  EMA N EEEE 2B EE) Faan RitEE
DHESMEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 134

RS AA XIS 1RB1 .2

geographical region.
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LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
B. Social (continued)
B. #1& (&

Aspect B2 Health and Safety
[EmEB2 fgmHaARE
General Disclosure Information on: 138-144, 149
— R i B8 ERARMZE2IHEREERFREEERPHBAEMEEN

(a) the policies; and

(@ BX;, &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer
(b) BTHETABEAXENHERAZERRANE
Ko

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 145

each of the past three years including the reporting
year.

B S AE A5 1EB2.1 BE=F (BREEREE) SFRITHNABMKIEER.
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 144
FREMISEB2.2 REIBEXIFEHH-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 138-144

B SR AE XI5 1%B2.3

adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

7 PR ER AR B B 35 R R Bl 22 2 45 T > LU MHRBA 1T e B
BHEe
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General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RiIRE
RASE A ISR g ] B¥
B. Social (continued)
B. #1& (&
Aspect B3 Development and Training
f@mB3 2R R EN
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 145-147
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
— AR B BRARAES BT T FIE B0 38 K F sE B BUR - it
EallEE)
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 148
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
FEENIEER3.1 EMAKEEER NEREEE PREERE) DK
RilfEEB DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 148

B SR AE W I51%B3.2

gender and employee category.
MR EESERE D BREETARINNFHE
2o

167




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RGN (T RERARS

Viil. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND N EREBMESXZFRBERATIN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"BY (IRIE- (B RERERESE
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG 31 ) @)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
B. Social (continued)
B. 1 & (&
Aspect B4 Labor Standards
[EmB4 S ITH#A
General Disclosure Information on: 149
— AR EE BERABEE T 5R G55 T :
(a) the policies; and
(@ BX;, &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
by BTHETABEAXENHBZRKRRINE
Ko
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices 149

to avoid child and forced labor.
8 #1248 S5 1EB 4.1 WA iR s 1R B B BBV E e A o & T Ko 55 T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices 149
when discovered.

FISRAENIEIRB4.2 HMEHRBERBREHRERIB TR D 5o
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Viil. "ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND N EREBMESXZFRBERATIN
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"BY (IRIE-HtEREREREIE
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG 31 ) @)

LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
RASE A ISR g ] B¥
B. Social (continued)
B. 1 & (&)
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
EmEB5 HrEREIR
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 150
the supply chain.
— AR EE EEMHEENIREREERABEER-
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 151

FSRAERNISIRB5. 1 WMES oM HERME -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 150
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FAENIEEB5.2 WA AR EEENES > mERITHERIBMNNMHE
BHE URERAITRERG %

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 150
and social risks.

3R 5 48 R0 F5 4B 5.3 HMARHNHEESERONRERERTERRNIE
B> U ER AT R EEZR 5% ©

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 150
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
7 #2458 X $512B5.4 BT PREREE T2 AIRRE R KRB EG
MR BT RER T A
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LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—RRIEE
R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH
B. Social (continued)
*i = (nﬁ)
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
[EEB6 EmAE
General Disclosure Information on: 151-155
— R i B8 ERMREHERNRBNEERALE - ES  RH KA
RREEMURBRG AR
(a) the policies; and
(@ B, &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
(b) BTHETABEARENHEBAZERRINE
Ko
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to 154
recalls for safety and health reasons.
7 2 45 %35 12B6.1 EENEEZXEmRBPRLEERRIEAMARLIK
=R
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 154
received and how they are dealt with.
FRAENMIEEB6.2 BEBANERKBRBNEFEE U REEFE-
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N BEREBSZHBABMRABEN
é(f%iﬁ*?i@&%iﬁ#ﬁ%?'é
(&)

Vill. “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE"BY
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (continued)

General

Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page

—RRIEE

R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH

B. Social (continued)
B. #1& (&

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 154
protecting intellectual property rights.

RS ENIETEB6.3 HE A R RIE A E B RIS o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 152-153
procedures.

FEAENMIEEB6.4 HIEEMEBEREREIWNER-

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 154
policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

[ #1248 335 1%B6.5 HatoH B E B RMRIE RTAREER U RAEREHITRER
Vabr

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption

[EmB7 RES

General Disclosure Information on: 155

— R

BERADILERERE ~ B3R EREF At R EERY ©

(a) the policies; and

(@) HEK; &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

by BTFHETABEAEZZNHEBEZERRAMNE
Hlo

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
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LIMITED (continued)

General

Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page

—MRiE

R i 4R A5 1R HR&EEs BH

B. Social (continued)
*i =] (l\ﬁ)

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 156
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

7 #8245 33512871 i %EiﬁﬁW%ﬁf*’_Aiﬂf@éﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@éﬁ%%ﬁ
EQ\%{#E"J%E&D&DAHD

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 155
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

FARAAXMISIER7.2 PR REREF > URHEBARITRER G -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 155
directors and staff.

FEAMIEEB7.3 MM ESKETIRENRESHEI -

Aspect B8 Community Investment

[EEBs HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 156
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

— AR BE BNt E2HERT RS LFﬁT‘%i EREMmMEREE
BEBEERTERNREIEE

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 156
environmental concerns, labor needs, health, culture,
sport).

[ #4835 18881 EIEMERE NMHEBE - BREEE - HFIER-EE X
1E~B2A) °

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 156

R B2 4B W5 12B8.2

area.

EEITHRBEFAHAER WEHRAFRE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED
LWRESEEBAS Y FRaRBERARE

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) set out on pages 179 to 403, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BIUIZBEREE

=2

RURRSEEBASSY FRMRG
BRABIRRE

(RREANRRHE LB R DB RA
)

BER

AITETERBIZE179F403EFRE LR
BeERBRASOFERRMDERAT
(MERE)) REWB AR HBATE
EE) NEEUBERER ZEEHH
RWEXBER_E-__F+=-8=+—H
NizEMBERRIER - MBEZBILEEE
Mzt EEREMZEBRARR KE
BEEHRRREERERERET &
ZEEEVHFERRNE (BREETEES
BEROEE) o

EITRB AU BRRERBREL G
firg (TEBGSMAT)) BHHNE
BYHREER (EAYHHREER)
BEERATHMR SEER-ZT T

TZA=Z+—HRGEEM BRI UK
BEZALFENGEMBRERER
BRERAENN LEKBEEBATR
PR BERE L BRE -

ERE#

FITREBEEBGMAGRMINES
ZHER (TEBRBER)) ETEZ
TR RTHRRAERER T ZEEE—
THRANARS BB Z GG Y
BREARENSE —H - REEHE
GEMAENEEESBERETR (57
A1) »ATEI S&EE LRETH
BOTESHMERBEE A1THEE &
SRS EREECEHRBEMS
EENERERREHER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBIEBZEEAELENFEH D =B
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the ZABGEMBERRTEEEMNEE.
consolidated financial statements of the current period. ZA{TRBRERESHBRERLIMILE
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit HMERFEENLESZE MAGHILSE
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and HIEBEBZEXRER -

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

MBEZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REMBERERZAE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

& i B T

We identified impairment assessment of
the goodwill of interventional products
cash generating unit with amount of
RMB3,199,417,000, including Argon Medical
Devices Holding, Inc. ("Argon”), as a key
audit matter due to its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the
significant management estimate involved in
assessing the impairment of goodwill.
EEERINAERREEFEUZHE (£
A AEM3,199,417,0007T) BEE (B3F
BIRBEBMIZREBRELE ((EIR))) 1FHE
REZSEE DERESRNGEMBRRAR
BAXERTEEHERER I RERNEE
JE &5t

In estimating the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated, the management has made a
number of significant assumptions in the value
in use calculation. The key assumptions mainly
include discount rate and revenue growth
rates applied.

REstEHEBENENRSELEMZ A B
TR EEENEREESERERAETE
KRR - B F E B EPT AR IR
WA RR-

Details of significant judgments and
assumptions in the impairment assessment
are disclosed in notes 5 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BETHFHNERASEBRFERGSHT
B RMIFES R 18 IFEE ©

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the goodwill of interventional products
cash generating unit from acquisition of Argon
included:
EENMBBERIN A AERREELEA 2 BHERE
FHEREZIEF EF ¢

e Understanding the internal controls relevant to the
impairment assessment of the goodwill;

o THRABBRENLARZAIMIES

e  Evaluating the valuation methodology and long-
term growth rate with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists;

e AR LEBZERNHEN T EGEER EREIRE
=

e  Evaluating the discount rate, including developing
a range of independent estimates and comparing
those with the discount rate selected by the
management, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists; and

e TEHFMREEEZERNHE) P EREIRE > B
HRE—RINBIGE UTHHESEREEZENG
WEER; &

e  Evaluating the revenue growth rates by comparing
with historical performance and industry data.

s BERBERRERTFEFHELEBFEBRAERRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’'s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

BANZHENRE S
HthEH

ENRESFHHMENAS - HMER
BREFRAFMBNER  EFBERS
MBREKRESHUIFL 2 ZBEAR

P
= °©

EFHEGMBRRFHNERILRE
BHMER EEFAHAMENERE
R B ALER A &

MERGEMBREAMS  ESNEMR
EREHMER tMZBEMERZE
RHEEEHBREAESEELBRED
EXNEREFEERTR B FFE
BEAHERMAL - HEESENE TR
TR A EMEN HIRERHERERAL
EFAREZFE -ESUILLEER
FIEBARSG o

EARERRAEERETEGSALE
BN EBMBREENREBARTRF
PINRBERERRNEEMAFHNESH
BHR& THEFABHEESHBR
KNFERAFERNBEFNERMER
BWERIERRILFIENASIEFES -

ERARGEEMBERERT EF8 5T
it EEEFECEMNED TEER
BRTRELAFBEERRNEIER XU
REBFEEERGSER BFIFES
BER BSEEBHRIUFLEZ S5E
HBRIBENA LR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

ZHEAE RS MEBRRAK
ERRE

AITHERDHEEMBREERES
AEERRIMGFNHERMERNENE
RERMENG G ERE WH A SEARTT
ERZHEMKRS  TRRBENEE
mREm BT (FRER 85 Kit
ZHNEE R EEAE B o AITE B
FEENABHEMEMALTETSI K
EEE-tERESBKFHRFRE B
TEEREBZREBZHMENETHNEZ
ABAE 35 IR B N SRR ER AL © A SRR AL AT LA
REGFERSIE IRGERPHE
BREREREZEFRSHMBREME
FAE KA S M WK R B R
E o BB RIREE SRR A AR FE K o

ERREEBRBENETEZED—
R ATEREXAE  RIEFEEE
R o 1T75 ¢

o BB RFHEHENIREFRIERMER
mMEUBRERFEEANERRAH
Rk R RRTEZEFUEY
ZERE UKRERNTEREKREEN
BEZRE FRAXTERNER-
RRIEFRES RBER - BRE B
BER BRI SR ERAEE
PEF 2 £ AR BE IR AR EEFM
BERHFEERERRANER SR
RAEEFEBRMERLIREANE
o [ER At A L Pz o

s THEZZBEBBANEIES > R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VRS GRS =

ZHEA B RS MBS RRAK
BENEE®

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

SHEESERAESBRNBE S
MR AEL & st st RABRIREN S
Ee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safequards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tung Wai Lung Ricky.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

gro At S

~

w3 ,E\JJIL

KEMMEZEWRARRK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
- — BT —4F
+=AR +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IFFE
B 5 ARBTR ARBTT
C<$==7l)
Revenue WA 6 13,619,007 13,208,942
Cost of sales iHE A (6,505,925) (5,856,049)
Gross profit EF] 7,113,082 7,352,893
Other income, gains and losses HA A~ W ka8 7 444,765 (61,362)
Impairment losses under expected FEHREERERE T2
credit loss model, net of reversal BB (GOBREEE]) 8 (33,332) (25,741)
Selling expense HER (2,427,077) (2,695,065)
Administrative expenses TEMAE (1,116,689) (1,118,816)
Research and development expenses A 2£[I s (546,552) (503,080)
Finance costs B E Al A 9 (191,401) (140,441)
Share of results of associates FEILEE ABIEE 77,906 69,988
Share of results of joint ventures EEEEREES (2,801) (531)
Profit before tax R8BI F 3,317,901 2,877,845
Income tax expense TSR 10 (424,267) (420,066)
Profit for the year F N A 2,893,634 2,457,779
Other comprehensive income (expense) Efth & E K A (%)
Item that may be reclassified HEQEHDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmzEH
Exchange differences arising on MEBEBINEFEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE 7 A= %8 356,458 (81,482)
Total comprehensive income FARAEZEUWALREZE
for the year 3,250,092 2,376,297
Profit for the year attributable to RABEB NEBILFERN
owners of the Company St A 2,723,309 2,275,929
Profit for the year attributable to FFERERE(EER
non-controlling interests St A 170,325 181,850
2,893,634 2,457,779




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROHT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

I\T:'

m R EMEEWAZRE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE B - _HF+_A=+—HILEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
NOTE RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
—E=-C —B—F
+Z=AH +=A
=+—H =+—H
IEEFE IEFE
B 5 ARBTR AREBTT
(fe&E5)
Total comprehensive income for the FF&BEEGEEREE
year attributable to: WA 8%
Owners of the Company ZNNSIEZ ZS N 3,053,141 2,206,128
Non-controlling interests IEERER 196,951 170,169
3,250,092 2,376,297
Earnings per share srRER
Basic (RMB per share) EX (BRAREIT) 14 0.60 0.51
Diluted (RMB per share) #E (B ARET) 0.60 0.50
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e IR

At 31 December 2022 A2 ZF+"H=+—H
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
(restated)
—E_C —E=—
+=H _TZE
. =iZB =it
Bt 5E ARBFTR ARES
/\‘I% |J
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M R R 15 6,342,212 5,782,227
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 515,221 476,317
Investment properties REME 17 140,785 133,788
Goodwill B 18 3,638,741 3,348,497
Deposits paid for acquiring TUEE 2~ BB &
property, plant and equipment RE2ENES 455,570 467,730
Intangible assets BEEE 19 1,722,176 1,798,577
Interests in associates RS QB RE R 20 1,375,302 1,139,691
Interests in joint ventures RegbtxmEn 21 358,035 180,757
Financial assets at fair value BT ESt AER
through profit or loss HEZERMEE 22 120,301 100,943
Deferred tax assets RIEIRISE B 23 159,453 157,042
Finance lease receivables FEW R E B R 24 23,037 40,959
Loan receivables FEU B =R 25 184,165 318,811
Prepayments I 27 70,536 79'353
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE - 293,247
15,105,534 14,317,939
Current assets MEE E
Inventories 78 26 2,315,343 1,781,735
Loan receivables FEWE ™R 25 627,626 428,514
Trade and other receivables & & B8 53 BR 7R R H At
FE U R I8 27 7,024,893 6,070,207
Debt instruments at fair value B FEst AEA
through other comprehensive LEHBAGEZ
income BB LA 28 495,337 425,316
Finance lease receivables EWREHERE 24 70,831 85,122
Financial assets at fair value through % AF{Ezt ABm st
profit or loss EZEMEE 22 - 10,000
Pledged/restricted bank deposits BRI ZREIIRIT
== 29 694,084 760,895
Cash and bank balances RERIEITLHER 30 6,862,278 6,698,029
18,090,392 16,259,818
Current liabilities mEasE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEst ABm
through profit or loss STErEMER 22 - 56,694
Trade and other payables FET B 7 IR A K
HMEARIB 31 4,370,333 4,009,609
Contract liabilities aaRE 32 370,150 317,025
Borrowings (EEN 33 960,808 601,328
Tax payable BRI 179,144 150,670
Deferred income IR YA 35 13,110 8,816
Lease liabilities HE&RE 36 29,323 22,988
Provisions B 11,655 10,606
5,934,523 5,177,736
Net Current Assets BN E B RE 12,155,869 11,082,082
Total Assets less Current Liabilities WEERREERS 27,261,403 25,400,021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BN ER
At 31 December 2022 R -Z - " F+"F=+—H
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
(restated)
T —E—
+=8 +=A
=+—H =+—H
B = ARBFTRT ARETT
C<=cpl)
Capital and Reserves BARKHE
Share capital N 37 457,063 457,063
Reserves EXia] 21,211,874 18,949,583
Equity attributable to owners KABIEB ANELER
of the Company 21,668,937 19,406,646
Non-controlling interests JEER T 1,777,666 1,640,359
Total Equity W m 4B e 23,446,603 21,047,005
Non-current Liabilities FEREER
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFESAER
through profit or loss FFECEMAER 22 - 199
Borrowings RN 33 2,403,212 2,462,688
Bonds payable FEE 34 993,977 992,549
Deferred income 4% JIE YT A 35 69,094 91,148
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEEE 23 199,797 222,620
Lease liabilities HE&SR 36 104,077 57,857
Contract liabilities BHEaRE 32 7,642 3,305
Provision B 37,001 522,650
3,814,800 4,353,016
27,261,403 25,400,021

The consolidated financial statements on pages 179 to 403
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

LONG Jing
REAE

DIRECTOR

EF

FBI79E403 B GV HBEHRROCEES
R _E_=F="HA=1+HitERE®E
FE WHUTEEAREZTSEE !

CONG Rinan
4=k
DIRECTOR
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGAEFS IN EQUITY
et e

\\7|— I:l
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE _T - _F+_HA=+—HLEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRAREAER
Share-
Share  Statutory based Non-
Share  premium surplus Translation  payments Other  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserves profits Total interests Equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Note a) (Note b)
MR
RivEE  EEERR AERAR
R (i i EREE HE  RftEE  REER @i EREE  RENE
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R
(zka) (Ktzkb)
At 1 January 2021 RISZ-E-f- 452,233 2,575,060 257,956 (93,271) 99,561 1,280,529 13,461,512 18,033,580 845,108 18,878,688
Restatements due to business combination AZZZZEF-£4 U'FE’J?»F‘A
under common control in 2022 (note 3(a)) B3 (H33(a) - - 3315 - - 6,630 98,459 108,404 - 108,404
At 1 January 2021 (restated) RZZZ-E-F-A @E5) 452,233 2,575,060 261,211 (93,271) 99,561 1,287,159 13,559,971 18,141,984 845,108 18,987,092
Profit o the year (restated) FERRR (S5 - - - - - - 220599 2275929 181850 2,457,779
Other comprehensive expense for the year EREMRERY - - - (69,801) - - - (69,801) (11,681) (81,482)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income FR2E () WALE BE3)
for the year (restated) - - - (69,801) - - 2215929 2,206,128 170,169 2,376,297
Consideration for business combination “EC-ER-BHTHERAE AR
under common control in 2021 (note 3) (Mfa3) - - - - - (1,202,366) - (1,02,366) - (1,202,366)
Deemed disposal of partial interest in RIELER-HNBLIZH P ER
& subsidary (note ¢ (Hito) - - - - N R SN e85 1,382,285
Adoption of share award scheme (note 38 (a)(c)) SRR BEHEl (¥ £38(a)(c) 4830 168,084 - - - (160539 - 12,375 - 12375
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BN EREEZ RN BERAT
payments (note 38) (hi338) - - - - 72,575 - - 72,575 3917 76,492
Repurchase of shares under a share award RERMAEHHEERR (H:38(0)
scheme (note 38 ()) - - - - (20,636) 343 - (20,293) - (20,293)
Recognition of sales of repurchased shares  BESR ERER AR EH BMEER D
under a share award scheme (note 38 (a)) o - - - - - 88,411 - 88,411 - 88,411
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) - - - - - - (653,288) (653,288) - (653,288)
At 31 December 2021 (restated) RIBZ-E+ZA=+-BBE5) 457083 2743144 261211 (163072) 151500 774128 15,182,612 19406646 1,640,359 21,047,005
At 31 December 2021 (restated) RZBZ-E+ZA=+-H i) 457,063 2,743,144 261,211 (163,072) 151,500 774128 15,182,612 19,406,646 1,640,359 21,047,005
Profitfor the year REEER - - - - - SB39 273309 17035 2893634
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMZENA - - - 329,832 - - - 329,832 26,626 356,458
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEWALE - - - 3983 - - 273309 3,083,141 196951 3,250,092
Consideration for business combination ZEICER-BHTHERAHIRE
under common control in 2022 (note 3) (3#3) - - - - - (288,000 - (288,000) - (288,000)
Adoption of share award scheme (note 38 (a)(c)) bR B 58 (H5:38(a)(c)) - - - - - 46,958 - 46,958 - 146,958
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BRERERZURMARRAR
payments (note 38) (Hf338) - - - - 90,092 - - 90,092 1675 91,767
Repurchase of shares under ashare award IR BB BRI A (EE38(0)
scheme (note 38 (a)) - - - - (19,965) (15,283) - (35,248) - (35,248)
Recognition of sales of repurchased shares BB ERERA A B3 ANEERS
under a share award scheme (note 38 (a)) (H338(a)) - - - - - 25572 - 25,572 - 25,572
Dividends recognised as distribution (note 13) ~ BEZBAMKEIRE (fi513) - - - - - - (680319)  (680319)  (61319) (741,638
Other equity changes of an associate HENFEMEBREE - - - - - 50,095 - 50,095 - 50,095
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZB=1+-8 457,063 2,743,144 261,271 166,760 221,627 593,470 17,225,602 21,668,937 1,777,666 23,446,603
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

l\‘7[_ =)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

Notes:

(a)

B mEEHRK

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries
established in PRC (as defined in note 1) require the appropriation of
10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory surplus
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the PRC
companies, in normal circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve
shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into capital and
expansion of its production and operation. For the capitalisation of
statutory surplus reserve into capital, the remaining amount of such
reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered capital.

Other reserves mainly represent the difference between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid to acquire the additional interest in
subsidiaries, and the cost of the ordinary shares held by the trustees
under share award scheme.

On 30 June 2021, Shandong Weigao Orthopedic Device Company
Limited (“Weigao Orthopaedic”), the subsidiary of the Company,
completed its listing on the Science and Technology Innovation Board
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the initial public offering of the
ordinary shares (the "“Offering”). Weigao Orthopaedic received total
net proceeds of RMB1,382,285,000 from the Offering, among which
RMB761,120,000 were recognised in other reserves.

B 5E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAS\H FLOWS
REREMEBWMER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZEZE - “F+_A=+—HIFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= =
—T-- B —F
+—=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE IEEE
ARBTR AREBTT
C<== 1)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RS
Profit before tax PR AT = A 3,317,901 2,877,845
Adjustments for: KIEH Y FAE
Interest income ) E WA (116,419) (72,888)
Finance costs B A 191,401 140,441
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BEKRKRHBITE
equipment 510,998 459,029
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 37,160 31,092
Depreciation of investment properties KEYEITE 3,853 5,216
Allowances for credit losses EERIERE 33,332 25,741
Allowances for inventories FEEE 13,078 6,956
Impairment losses on intangible assets mLEERERIE 10,806 -
Amortisation of intangible assets mE EE 250,501 241,333
Share-based payment expenses MR ABER Z(AREEZ 91,767 76,492
Share of results of associates e NCIE S (77,906) (69,988)
Share of results of joint ventures ELEEhEER 2,801 531
Gain on deemed disposal of investment in  fRAHER —RE=Z AT
an associate KB W (100,398) -
Gain on disposal of structured deposit HE &R E TR & (163) -
Gain on disposal of investments in HERKWB AR ZIREN
subsidiaries Y & (47,832) -
Gain on currency forward Bz r s (34,500) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - -BEKRKEZ
plant and equipment (W am) 518 (60,908) 2,928
Loss on currency option SRR 1,289 6,289
Release of deferred income 4% JIE ST A R PR (24,097) (18,539)
Gain from changes in fair value of BT ESABGSEZ
financial assets at fair value through THEELATFEEZE NG
profit or loss (19,557) (3,323)
Exchange (gain)/loss R (Kwm) Ei8 (148,611) 52,549
3,834,496 3,761,704
Movements in working capital EESTE
Increase in inventories FE1enm (538,447) (180,408)
Increase in trade and other receivables [E UL B 5 BR 7R B E fth FE UK
IFE (801,923) (44,881)
Decrease in finance lease receivables FEUS Rb 5 AR & 7R IE R D 29,659 93,526
Increase in loan receivables FE UL & FR 1 A0 (61,291) (308,967)
(Increase)/decrease in debt instruments BAFESFAEMEE
at fair value through other WAStEZEHB TR
comprehensive income (ghn) R (70,021) 52,777
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current HMIERBEE
assets B () 296,995 (296,995)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other FE B 5 BR S Efth FE 1T
payables g, G 430,321 (72,758)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 57,462 3,915
Increase in deferred income 4% SIE UL A 12 A0 6,337 33,361
(Decrease)/increase in provisions B CRZL) /10 (485,649) 526,847
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERE MWK

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
RMB'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHZE
- — BT —4F
+=AH +=A
=+—H =+—H
L E IEFE
ARBFRT ARETT
C<$==7l)
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 2,697,939 3,568,121
Income taxes paid EfPTEH (483,365) (481,428)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ #REEIEFRISIREFE 2,214,574 3,086,693
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Purchases of property, BEYME -BEARXE
plant and equipment (614,066) (652,355)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTLEE (43,669) (46,198)
Payments for right-for-use assets FTREEENR (2,934) -~
Deposits paid for acquiring property, TMUEEY = BB &
plant and equipment REZNNEE (455,570) (467,731)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEE—RIE AR
a subsidiary (note 39) BEREFEE (F5E39) - (10,287)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMZE - FE REE
plant and equipment Frig 18 5,747 49,187
Interest received BUF 2 107,385 61,454
Withdrawal of pledged/restricted EENE IR R
bank deposits RITER 573,134 680,080
Placement of pledged/restricted FABIKRZ R
bank deposits RITER (506,323) (1,100,846)
Purchase of time deposits BETEHEM (1,443,435) -~
Disposal of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFAEBR
through profit or loss STHEE (29,937) (38,275)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEATES AEGZ
through profit or loss ETRMEE - 3,800
Investment in joint ventures REERENKRE (179,000) -
Investment in an associate R—EMECENKE (8,000) -~
Disposal of an associate HE MBS b 790 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB AT 26,915 -
Repayment of loan receivables BEBWENR - 3,192
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES IR BX¥MEFrAREFE (2,568,963) (1,517,979)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEI\/IENT OF CASH FLOWS

A=
/\7[_ |:| Eﬁli /ﬁ%#ﬁ%
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z__"F+_B=+—HIEFEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2022 31/12/2021
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(restated)
8= BHE
—_=E_ —ET—F
+=B +—H
=+—H =+—H
ILEE EFE
AREBFrT ARETT
(&R&E7)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g
Repayments of borrowings BEE™N (874,672) (716,441)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEaE (32,724) (25,837)
New borrowings raised BT I = 967,944 519,009
Interest paid B FE (184,619) (127,114)
Dividends paid BEKRE (741,638) (653,288)
Capital injection by non-controlling FFERKRETFE
shareholders - 1,382,285
Proceeds from adoption of BR4N Bz 17 B8 B 51 B PR S 718
share award scheme - 172,914
Repurchase of shares under TR 35 B 17 B B 51 8 Bl g i 17
a share award scheme (35,248) (72,864)
Sales of repurchase of shares under H & RIRR D BB 58] Y
a share award scheme (O] B AR (7D - 88,411
Net cash flow on business combination HEZEHH THEBEHZ
under common control (note 3) REREFE8 (5E3) (120,000) (1,115,000)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEXEFRAZRE 3T (1,020,957) (547,925)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND  IR&ERIREZEY GRL)
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 ansE e (1,375,346) 1,020,789
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENRERTEEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,698,029 5,731,678
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ShEEE RSB E 96,160 (54,438)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF MEFRMRERIRNSZEY
YEAR, represented by bank balances and  (5iR17&EH RIS
cash 5,418,843 6,698,029
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

1.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited (the “"Company”) was established and
registered as a joint stock company with limited liability
in the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC") under
the Company Law of the PRC on 28 December 2000
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Weigao
Holding Company Limited (”"Weigao Holding"”), a
company registered in the PRC with limited liability. Its
ultimate controlling party is Chen Xue Li. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is No.1, Weigao Road, Weihai Torch Hi-
Tech Science Park, Shandong Province, PRC.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of medical device products, orthopaedic
products, interventional products, pharma packaging
products and blood management products, and operate
financing business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.

—iREH

LWERESERBRED FRMERN
BRAS (KA RZZZZF
TR NABREBEFEARKEMN
(T Ey) ABAER BRI K st
MaRNHBERAE  RERNRE
BEMERZFIARRAT (THEZFT)
EFRET - ARTEZERATDS
HesEBERAE ((He&EER
81) ERRPEEMIEREE
NF HRBRERT RRBF &
NE)ZEMMER R EEEFEME
HPELRERENESRMESRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January
2022 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

2.

FRAEEMFHRSEN (TE
AMBHRSEMN) 85TF

REEERHE NN ESHERE
ERERTE

REFE AEBCEREREB
gt g (EBEMAET)) 18
N NI EBYBRSEAES]
o BREEANR T "F—H—
etz R AERFEHRE®
BIER > LRGSR B®RE

BRVBRSER RASSER

B35 (55T %)
EBUBREEN —B-—FAH
$16% (BT4)  =+BEBR
Covid-1918 78
MRS EE
EHRHEBFI6R N BERES
(E5T7) E-EERR
B BOF G 3R
SEUH LS BEAN—E
CHES BB A
SEMBRER  EEMBELSE
Caes) A2 EERE
(CE—N\%F
it t
)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

FRAEEMHHRSEN (TE
AMBHRSEMN) 1E5TF
(%)

E R B R EMBIMITIERME
BREEARETS

rEBRKRIEFEATIEEME
M R EMBI ] BB B IR & 2R

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2020
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKFRS 16
Amendments to

HKAS 1
Amendments to

HKAS 1
Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

190

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification

of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the
“2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting
date for classification of liabilities as current or non-
current, which:

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

2.

FRAEEMFHRSEN (TE
AMBHRSEN) 185TF

(%)

EEMFE R EMBIMITIERME
BREFNRETE (8

' RIEZ=F—B—BxZBRREN
FEHRBEN-

2 RSEE M BRKBHEEHE
ESVE

: RIZE-MFE-RB—BHZRBHBH
FEHRABEN-

BR N X PRItBURE] B R G %
AIRAEET RSN KRB EETRHE
RFTAEEMHM] B EH HRSER
RAEST A RAIFARRERG G
MEMBRRBUERTE -

FRGTEUNE 1R (B518) &E
REH B HIF T RIEMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

2.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 the 2020
Amendments and the 2022 Amendments

e specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle
the liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the requirements
introduced by the 2020 Amendments have been
modified by the 2022 Amendments. The 2022
Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the
end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date. Covenants which are required
to comply with only after the reporting period do
not affect whether that right exists at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk that
the liabilities could become repayable within twelve
months after the reporting period, if the entity classify
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-
current when the entity's right to defer settlement of
those liabilities is subject to the entity complying with
covenants within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 the 2020
Amendments and the 2022 Amendments
(continued)

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022
Amendments, together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024, with early application permitted.
If an entity applies the 2020 amendments for an earlier
period after the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the
entity should also apply the 2022 Amendments for that
period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s right to defer
settlement for borrowings and bonds payable of
RMB2,022,345,000 are subject to compliance with
certain financial ratios within 12 months from the
reporting date. Such borrowings were classified as non-
current as the Group met such ratios at 31 December
2022. Upon the application of the 2022 Amendments,
such borrowings will still be classified as non-current as
the covenants which the Group is required to comply
with only after the reporting period do not affect
whether that right exists at the end of the reporting
date and such borrowing will still be classified as non-
current.

Except as described above, the application of the 2020
and 2022 Amendments will not affect the classification
of the Group’s other liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE
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3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS

The Group accounts for all its business combinations
involving entities under common control using the
principles of merger accounting.

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

December 2022

In the current year, the Company acquired 100%
interests in Weihai Weigao Medical Materials
Co., Ltd. ("Weigao Medical Materials”) from
Weigao Holding with a total cash consideration
of RMB288,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The
Company acquired control over Weigao Medical
Materials on 9 September 2022.

Weigao Medical Materials is engaged in the
research and development, manufacturing and
sales of infection protection products, disposable
interventional surgery auxiliary kits, disposable
sterile surgical kits and disease control protection
products.

Weigao Medical Materials was established on 13
March 2002, which was held by Weigao Holding,
and thereby the Group and Weigao Medical
Materials came under common control of Weigao
Holding. Since Weigao Medical Materials and
the Group has been under common control by
Weigao Holding before and after the acquisition,
the Group has applied the principles of merger
accounting with reference to Accounting Guideline
5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations to the Acquisition issued by the
HKICPA as if the common control combination had
been effected since the establishment of Weigao
Medical Materials.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

December 2022 (continued)

The consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 have
been restated to include the assets and liabilities
of Weigao Medical Materials as if they were
within the Group since 13 March 2002. The
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2021 have also been restated to include
the results and the cash flows of Weigao Medical
Materials.

The effects of the application of merger
accounting on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows. Line
items that were not affected by the changes have
not been included.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND 3.

RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31
December 2022 (continued)

aHEEET @

(a) BE—FT__F+_-A=+—H
ILFEZEHE (B

The year
ended The year
31 December ended
2021 as 31 December
previously 2021 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
S S
b St ot -3
+=B=+—-H +=R=+—-H
ILEE ILEE
(MEF28H) HE (& 5))
AREFT ARBFT AREFTT
Revenue KA 13,151,719 57,223 13,208,942
Cost of sales HE A (5,882,315) 26,266 (5,856,049)
Gross profit E£7 7,269,404 83,489 7,352,893
Other income, gains and losses HEMA = K E51E (64,157) 2,795 (61,362)
Impairment losses under expected ~ TBHIEEBEER T 2R E
credit loss model, net of reversal ~ &518 (1f& &) (26,982) 1,241 (25,741)
Selling expense HERS 2, 66 695) (33,370) (2,695,065)
Administrative expenses THR (1,111,777) (7,039) (1,118,816)
Research and development expenses &5z (492 133) (10,947) (503,080)
Finance costs EE RN (140,396) (45) (140,441)
Profit before tax BRAR A& A 2,841,721 36,124 2,877,845
Income tax expense PRt (415,093) (4,973) (420,066)
Profit for the year FNEF 2,426,628 31,151 2,457,779
Total comprehensive income FREAWALE
for the year 2,345,146 31,151 2,376,297
Profit for the year attributable to: T3 & IBREMGERNEF
Owners of the Company N/NSIE 2PN 2,244,778 31,151 2,275,929
Total comprehensive income T EBERLEER
for the year attributable to: SEHBARE .
Owners of the Company N/NSIE 2SN 2,174,977 31,151 2,206,128

The basic earnings per share during the year ended
31 December 2021 changed from RMBO0.50 per
share to RMBO0.51 per share due to the application
of merger accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE - —"F+_HA=+—HLFE

MERGER ACCOUNTING AND 3. AHETEETY @
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(a) Merger accounting in the year ended 31 (a) 8F=E—F-_—_F+"A=+—H
December 2022 (continued) IEFEZaHEH (@
The effects of the application of merger REEHEFZHNZ 7
accounting on the consolidated statement of :—fﬁ—f—:ﬁ =—+—HZ&
financial position as at 31 December 2021 are BMBRAKRZZERT QD
summarised below. Line items that were not ToRZEBTENEBIL R
affected by the changes have not been included. FA o
As at
31 December As at
2021 as 31 December
previously 2021 as
reported Adjustments restated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-ZE--§ R=ZT-—-%
+-B=+- .. T-RA=+—H
(Mnx%a 25k B (=35
AR®EFTT AREFTT AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment — #3 B2 Kot 5,719,370 62,857 5,782,227
Interests in associates N =0 1,138,901 790 1,139,691
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 156,462 580 157,042
Total Non-current assets FRBEERE 14,253,712 64,227 14,317,939
Current assets MENE E
Inventories 78 1,734,557 47,178 1,781,735
Trade and other receivables BB 2R R MEWTRE 6,045,579 24,628 6,070,207
Debt instruments at fair value AT E AHMEERA
through other comprehensive ~ stEZEHIE
income 419,752 5,564 425,316
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFEEEY 6,628,927 69,102 6,698,029
Total Current assets MENEERE 16,113,346 146,472 16,259,818
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables N B 2R R A MR IR 3,952,044 57,565 4,009,609
Contract liabilities SNEE 310,866 6,159 317,025
Tax payable EARE 149,633 1,037 150,670
Total Current liabilities MEBAREE 5,112,975 64,761 5,177,736
Net Current Assets MBEEFE 11,000,371 81,711 11,082,082
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 42 & & B 81 & & 25,254,083 145,938 25,400,021
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Reserve CBE 18,810,028 139,555 18,949,583
Equity attributable to owners of AATEE AEL#ED
the Company 19,267,091 139,555 19,406,646
Non-Current liabilities FrRBaR
Deferred income EIEWA 84,765 6,383 91,148
Total Non-Current liabilities EREaBEEE 4,346,633 6,383 4,353,016
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

3. MERGER ACCOUNTING AND
RESTATEMENTS (continued)

(b) Merger accounting in the year ended 31

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

December 2021

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Shandong Weigao Blood Technology, the subsidiary
of the Company acquired 100% interests in Wego
Healthcare Fund Holding Corporation (“Wego
Healthcare”) from Weigao Holding with a total
net cash consideration of RMB1,202,366,000. The
Company acquired control over Wego Healthcare
on 3 March 2021.

Wego Healthcare was incorporated in the United
States on 15 November 2016, and it is an
investment holding company. The principal assets
of Wego Healthcare are (i) 100% interest in Rad
Source Technologies, Inc (“Rad Source”); and
(ii) 19.8% interest in Weihai Shangyuan Phase 1
Venture Capital Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Weihai Shangyuan Fund”).

Rad Source is engaged in production of proprietary
X-ray based irradiation machines that are used for
blood irradiation, cannabis industry, small animal
research and other research applications.

Through step acquisition, Weigao Holding
obtained 100% interests in Wego Healthcare on
24 December 2018 with a cash consideration
of RMB423,000,000. Since 24 December 2018,
thereby the Group and Wego Healthcare came
under common control of Weigao Holding.
Since Wego Healthcare and the Group are under
common control by Weigao Holding before and
after the acquisition, the Group has applied the
principles of merger accounting with reference to
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations to the Acquisition
issued by the HKICPA as if the common control
combination had been effected since 24 December
2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 RRGFEMBEREREE

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Lease,
and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE - —"F+_HA=+—HLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

4.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. FENEAMERREBEERE
BEgilE ®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group's
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interest (if any) are derecognised. A
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified that to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional
concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
bank balances, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and
no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial
assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUEEMFRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EgstlE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

206

A business is an integrated set of activities and
assets which includes an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The acquired
processes are considered substantive if they
are critical to the ability to continue producing
outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce
or cannot be replaced without significant cost,
effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business
combination under common control, are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEE (B
Business combinations or asset EBECHIAETEINIE (&
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations EHESH

(B A HHEEEIREE
BE—EHAKR—EEER
2> BEME R BEIE & A EE
DEEERER o B P EE R
EHRFELEFEELNENE
MEE GEEEWNITHEBER
SR E - A#HIERNE
HBET HHEFELEEEY
HNEENEBEERER BHREA
BEXBTR NERHELEE
HOENFEEBEERKA
AR ERENIFER T HEIER
B RFTKBRAERREASE
Bifo

BT (EREE THES
SR 5N LUKRE S ABR o 1
HEEHIB I ABUAT
fEEtE > HE BRI D
RAEESBEE SEED
W T > BT A AP
2 & E R B A LUR R
s B 75 = 2 4 18 70 B8 1T = AR
A > A FELEM o 1
B B A5 — R 7E 8% 4 B 70 4B 3
PSR o

' LEREEAERAE S FRIBRHERAT 2022 £§R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework"”) except for transactions and events
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21,
in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, respectively.

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset
acquisitions (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non- controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value.

EBESHAEENE (8

EETU (B

HENDREBB ZAE K
BrZzFERBED S H KR
BOUERBERWES ZK
AiEm (WA 2 A FERNE
Mo BHRWE B @R 2
BEWBEEEKREAREERZ
FPRFE-HENNGEH
B ZBEWIBEEKRE RIE
BREZFHE BHEEHBZA
BE-WWIED 2 FEREDS
BRWEDUEFAERKE
BZBARED (WE) 2 FE
RUABANG > B H 2 = RRRE Y
Bm PSR E W R o

BREEERZ IR TR
A BT 5 38 B 12t 1) #4548
FNB AR ZEEFREZIF
ik m o BIFEREm LS
BIEWEEL 2 @A P E
EZEHEITRHARATE
EAIEET E T E R EZEE
hIRBEBERGHERFL -H
fthBA 7 JFERED A
FESE-

209




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Merger accounting for business
combination involving businesses under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements items of the combining
businesses in which the common control
combination occurs as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining businesses first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from
the controlling party's perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or bargain
purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements are presented as if the
businesses had been combined at the beginning
of the previous reporting period or when they first
came under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's relevant cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than
an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

212  SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NEFAOMBHRREBERE
EEHE @®

4.2 FEGHHE (B

BE (&

RHEHEBARSEEEMUN
ReEEEMARNPEMIR
TELEEUR BENEG
THEFAEENHEREDS
B-EXERHERTELE
U (RIBREELEBMUARNPR
—BREEEEN) RHNER
Ko PR EmEBREEMEE
*% SRS EE BN HEPAFR
BETEN (NHREELEEQ
B MoBEHREESE-

rEEERMBEBEBHE AR
GECEELENBENER
E )N

HRRERFREEFFENR
g

MEADIEAEENEESR
EARENNER -EAXE
NERERSERKRETNHY
B R AEERR > A 2 EFI N
HEZER L FBER

GEREE-—BEAELH W
ZHEAHRPERRZTY
BHBEIENEGERHZEEF
BHEERN - KREERITERIR
GNMEN —BZHFMEAR
ZIER HEEFIEEA BT
HEREZEENEBZTNR
FH—HABZREREFE-

' LEREEERASDTERRAERAT 2022 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate
or joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. FRESUBRREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EgstlE @

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

214

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective
evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate or joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’'s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
(i.e. sales with a right of return), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using the expected value method,
which better predicts the amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end
of each reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during each reporting period.

ERSHKA (&

GMNERELAEBREER
FEARE RSN ER
) oMARETEFREEERN
Rz EfE-

HEARGNERNEGNEE
RENaBfEIBARKE
Bl

TEAA

HresrgNEza4 (B
MERERNEE)  A&EH
ATEREEE A AR
FHRALEERZAHNAR
B G HRKARESZ
REEEE-

PJENBZA A
REEARN AIRESFARAER
RABETEEHNARR (B4
2R ERBZAREMER

HEREBRER) HIRBEW
N EIE

REREARFT AEETE
A RZE (BEERERM
ENBZAFEEARE
mEH Z 5T fh) » LB ER B
REBSHRZBERIRNE
BREREZERES-

217




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/
exchange for dissimilar products, the Group
recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the
amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled (therefore, revenue
would not be recognised for the products
expected to be exchanged);

(b) a contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales) for its right to recover products
from customers and are presented as right to
returned goods asset.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified

good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging
for the specified goods or services to be provided
by the other party.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of buildings and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

220 SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NEZAMBHRREERE
BEgilE ®

4.2 FEGHER B

HE &

FKEEER AN

IHREERBEEEEERE

AEBREHEERIRR
ERENREHERBEBBRES
12B U THBF K&
HE BT FAEEEEERE
E-HTHEEEEEHER
AR E % - FEAIEE REE
BEEHEEZAGENRNHE
RN EREER B -

EREEE

EREEENMAERE

s HEBBVHKENSE
LE

s RHABLABHMIZAFH
BY1E {1 72 & 1 "B &= PR
WEREREEERSE ;

s XEEBREELENEMAMG
=RE30 %NS

o FEBEFKKBIRER
EE -BRZEEFRMI
ERRFEHEEERERE
HERR R FEHERESN
A TR E A BYFR BT A A o

ERREERA SR E TR
RE I E RAEEEN R 1
SRS S MM E B R
F U

' LEREEAERAE S FRIBRHERAT 2022 £§R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. RUZEUFERRBERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEHEE @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHER B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rE B EmRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4,
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

option.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ira R RN

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar e T R MY 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4. BRECGUBBREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EEHER @
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 4.2 TEFHEE (B

Leases (continued) HE &

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFFHZAEN (B

Lease modifications MHEEXN

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a MHRUATER AEERHE

separate lease if: BEENZEREEAR:

e the modification increases the scope of the e EBNZEBEM—IENZ
lease by adding the right to use one or more HHEBEENEREM
underlying assets; and BAHEESE ; &

e the consideration for the leases increases by e MHEREBEMNEES
an amount commensurate with the stand- HEEBEBAEBZIEIL
alone price for the increase in scope and BREERRBRIEES
any appropriate adjustments to that stand- #9151 L B AF
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the HAE MBS HE o
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted MAZEBEEEARNEE
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures EBms > AEBBEAREN
the lease liability based on the lease term of the FREHHAERKEBTRMEREE
modified lease by discounting the revised lease IR ESTHE MR REL
payments using a revised discount rate at the ESTHENHER EMst2
effective date of the modification. KIEETHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZE T " " F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at commencement
date at amounts equal to net investments in the
leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective leases. Initial direct costs are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15
to assess whether sale and leaseback transaction
constitutes a sale by the Group.

The Group as a buyer-lessor

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the
requirements of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as
a sale of asset, the Group as a buyer-lessor does
not recognise the transferred asset and recognises
a loan receivable equal to the transfer proceeds
within the scope of HKFRS 9.

226 SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MNGESHMBBERBERE
gEtHE @

4.2 FEGHER B

HE &

FEFEZHEN (B

PIREEERE

BWENAREEERER
BEBYBREENFIRE
TERE U nEAFES
B VISR AFEES
BRAABANREIEEN
TREE ©

BRI S

rEREREEBYBRSE
RIS 15 R ENEERME
[B] 52 5 2 & 18 B 2 & B A9 85

o
=

AEBFAEDHEA

MANEEBY B RS EL
BISHEARFEELERTE
WEEBZ ~&EBFSE
R-—LEATTHDEEES
EMERESNEBMHR
SEAFORBLEANEEMT
IERYFEW B RN

' LEREEERASDTERRAERAT 2022 £}



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z - " F+_FB=+—HIEFE

4. RRGESUHBEREBERE
EEHE @®

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 FEGHHE (B

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment
in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in
associates and joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H{E """ F+_B=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 4.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associate that
does not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on
an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or pro